
741 Colonel Ledyard Highway
Ledyard, Connecticut 06339

Chairman            
Kevin J. Dombrowski

TOWN OF LEDYARD
CONNECTICUT
Finance Committee

~ AGENDA ~

Regular Meeting - Hybrid Format

Town Hall Annex Building5:00 PMWednesday, January 18, 2023

In -Person Location goes here

Join Zoom Meeting from your Computer, Smart Phone or Tablet:

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86065224602?pwd=c3RrdTQ1WTd5allUUEs1ZFVrbjl0Zz09

by Audio Only: Telephone:  +1 646 558 8656; Meeting ID: 860 6522 4602  ; Passcode: 865037

I CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. CITIZENS COMMENTS

IV. PRESENTATIONS / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP Annual Audit Report Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

Town of Ledyard 2022 Audit Presentation.pdf
Annual Audit FYE-2022-06-30-Management Advisory Letter.pdf
revised Signed Final Report and Financial Statements.
-fye-2022-06-30.pdf
Signed Federal Single Audit Report-FYE-2022-06-30-REVISED.pdf
Signed Governance Communication-FYE-2022-06-30.pdf
Signed State Single Audit Report.-FYE-2022-06-30pdf.pdf
Annual Audit FYE-2022-06-30-Management Advisory Letter.pdf

Attachments:

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Finance Committee Regular Meeting Minutes of January 4, 2023

FIN-MIN-2023-01-04.pdfAttachments:

VI. FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTS

· Revenue Report December 31, 2022
· Expenditure Year-to-Date Report- December 31, 2022
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Finance Committee ~ AGENDA ~ January 18, 2023

REVENUE REPORT - YEAR TO DATE VS 
ACTURAL2022-12-30.pdf
EXPENDITURE REPORT - YEAR TO DATE VS 
ACTURAL-2022-12-30.pdf

Attachments:

OLD BUSINESS

1. Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) and Capital Non-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act 
Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects and expend ARPA 
Funding.

ARPA project accounting 12.29.22.xlsxAttachments:

2. Any other Old Business proper to come before the Committee.

VII. NEW BUSINESS

1 Discussion and possible action on the transfer of the Board of Education FY 21-22 
operating budget audited surplus of $448,253 to the BOE Capital Reserve Fund in 
accordance with the Town Council adopted resolution that created the funding 
mechanism. Not factored into the aforementioned surplus is the Board of Education 
Healthcare deficit for the same audit period of $861,753.

Discussion Item- School Surplus.docxAttachments:

2. MOTION to adopt proposed revisions to the "Resolution Establishing 
Administrator/Department Head Benefits" as contained in the draft dated January 9, 
2023.

2022 REVISIONS - RES DEPT HEAD ADMINSTRATORS 
BENEFITS-2023-01-09.pdf
TADP Revision for new Resolution JAN2023.pdf

Attachments:

3. Any other New Business proper to come before the Committee.

IV ADJOURNMENT

DISCLAIMER:     Although we try to be timely and accurate these are not official records of the 
Town.

Page 2 of 2 

2
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 2

Agenda

• Terms of Engagement

• Executive Summary

• Financial Highlights

• Federal and State Single Audit

• Governance Communication

• Management Advisory Letter

• Upcoming GASB Pronouncement

• Contact Information

2
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 3

Terms of Engagement

• Express opinions on whether the basic financial statements
are presented in accordance with GAAP

• Express an “in relation” to opinion on the
o Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and

o Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance

• Express an opinion on compliance related to
o Major Federal Award Programs and

o Major State Programs

3
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 4

Terms of Engagement Continued

• Provide a report on internal control over financial reporting
and compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants

• Provide a report on internal control over compliance related
to major federal award programs and major state programs

4
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 5

Executive Summary

• Financial Statements
o Unmodified Opinion on the basic financial statements

 Best opinion available

o Emphasis of Matter paragraph – GASB 87 Leases

 A right-to-use lease asset and corresponding lease liability is now
recorded for lease arrangements where the term is greater than 12
months and the Town is the lessee

o Significant deficiency on internal controls over financial reporting

 BOE prepaid items reported as expenditures in FY22

• General fund $345K

• Aggregate remaining funds $93K

5
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Financial Highlights – Governmental Activities

6
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Financial Highlights – Governmental Funds

7
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 8

Financial Highlights – General Fund

• General Fund Budget
o Property tax collections totaled $41.1M ~ $215K higher than budget

o Total revenues and transfers in were higher than budgetary estimates
by $856K

o Expenditures and transfers out were $5K lower than budgeted
appropriations.

8
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 9

Federal Single Audit

• Total Federal Awards expended - $5.3M

• Major Programs
o COVID-19 – Education Stabilization Fund - $1.4M

o Child Nutrition Cluster - $1.5M

• Unmodified Opinion on major program compliance

• No compliance or internal control findings

9
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State Single Audit

• Total State Awards expended – $17.4M, subject to testing -
$3.9M

• Major Programs
o Tiered PILOT and MRSA Pilot - $874K and $310K

o Vocational Agriculture - $997K

• Unmodified opinion on major program compliance

• No compliance or internal control findings

10
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©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 11

Required Communications

• Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
o New Standards adopted – GASB 87 Leases

o Significant Estimates

 Net Pension Liability

 Net OPEB Liability

 Capital Assets – Useful lives

 Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

 Leases – Incremental Borrowing Rate

• Disagreements with management – None

11
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Required Communications

• Uncorrected misstatements
o Deferred outflows for contributions subsequent to measurement date for

OPEB Plan

o Rehab loans receivable – not reported in previous years

o Allocation of net pension liability to business-type activities

o Prepaid items for BOE

• Corrected misstatements
o Attached to governance communication

12
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Auditors’ Communication Continued

• Management representations - Signed

• Management consultations with other independent accountants - None

• Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement - None

• Significant findings or issues that were discussed, or the subject of
correspondence with management - None

• Other audit findings or issues – Management Advisory Letter

• Other information in documents containing audited financial statements
o RSI, Introductory and Statistical Information – no opinion

o Combining and individual financial statement and schedules, SEFA and SESFA – in
relation to financial statements opinion

13
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Management Advisory Letter

• Capital Assets
o Excel spreadsheets

• Rehabilitation Loans
o In previous years rehabilitation loans were not tracked and reconciled to the general

ledger

• General Ledger Maintenance
o Water fund – an isolated incident where expenses that pertained to FY21 were reported

in FY22

• Prior Year Findings:
o Board of Education – Education Grant Fund and School Lunch Fund Accounting

 Adjustments were required Education Grant Fund and School Lunch Fund

14

17



©2023 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 15

GASB Standards

• Implementation year 2023
o Statement 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations

o Statement 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements

o Statement 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements

15
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Contact Information

Nikoleta McTigue Stephen Gross

Principal Manager

Nikoleta.McTigue@claconnect.com Stephen.Gross@claconnect.com

860-570-6377 401-330-2752

19
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Board of Finance 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 
Page 2 

Matters Noted in the Previous Year 

The following matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation were noted 
in the previous year but have not been fully remediated. Again, we offer our recommendations as 
constructive suggestions for your consideration as part of the ongoing process of modifying and 
improving accounting controls and administrative practices. 

Special Revenue Fund Accounting – Board of Education 

The trial balances presented to us for audit for the Education Grant fund and the School Lunch fund 
contained numerous account balances that were not properly recorded in accordance with grant 
accounting (accounts receivable, grant revenues, grant expenditures, etc.). As a result, adjusting 
journal entries were required for these accounts. We also noted that the Board of Education has made 
improvements from the prior year. We noted that all cash accounts were reconciled as of year-end. 

Recommendation - We recommend that all Board of Education fund trial balances be properly 
reconciled to the underlying, supporting data in a timely manner at year-end. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already 
discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various entity personnel, and we will be 
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these 
matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the 
Board of Finance, others within the organization, state awarding agencies and pass-through entities 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
 

PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 

TOWN COUNCIL: 

Kevin Dombrowski, Chairman 
Andra Ingalls 
Whit Irwim 

John Marshall 
Mary K. McGrattan 

Gary Paul 
S. Naomi Rodriguez 

Timothy Ryan 
William D. Saums 

 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

Frederick B. Allyn III, Mayor 
 

Treasurer Ian Stammel 
Director of Finance  Matthew Bonin 
Assessor Adrianna Hedwall 
Tax Collector  Kathleen Damicis 
Town Clerk  Patricia A. Riley 
Town Attorney  Matthew Ritter 

 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION: 
 

Anthony Favry, Chairman 
Michael Brawner 

Kate DiPalma-Herb 
Brandon Graber 

Whit Irwin 
Joanne Kelley 

Steve Munger 
Naomi Rodriguez 

Robert Russak 
 

Superintendent of Schools  Jason S. Hartling 
Director of Finance & Human Capital Rachel Moser 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 
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Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

(2) 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Ledyard, 
Connecticut’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement 
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

x Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

x Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 
x Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

 
x Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 
x Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
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Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

(3) 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information and the pension and 
OPEB schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introductory section, and statistical section but does not include the basic 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do 
not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
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Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

(4) 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 27, 2022, on our consideration of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Ledyard, 
Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

JUNE 30, 2022 

(5) 

As management of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut (Town), we offer readers of the Town of Ledyard’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 

Financial Highlights 

x The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $90,483,431 (net position).  Of
this amount, $68,916,793 was attributable to governmental activities and $21,566,638 to
business-type activities.

x The Town’s total net position increased by $2,663,780.  This was primarily due to the State’s
Teachers Retirement Fund’s proportionate share of the net pension and OPEB liabilities
associated with the Town.

x As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $5,288,587, an increase of $5,060,499 in comparison with the prior year.
The increase is due primarily to the sale of bonds for funding of school construction projects.

x At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $3,842,255
or 6.0% of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial 
statements.  The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.  This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets and deferred outflows of 
resources less liabilities, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

JUNE 30, 2022 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods 
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of Ledyard that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the Town include general government, 
public safety, health and welfare, public works, library, parks and recreation and education.  The 
business- type activities of the Town are for water operations and sewer operations. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits I and II. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of Ledyard uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Town can be 
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

x Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing decisions. 

Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The Town maintains 17 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances for the two funds considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 15 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each 
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in Schedules 3 
and 4. 
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Major Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

General Library Commission Miscellaneous State Grants 
Capital Projects Animal Control Housing Rehab Program 

Cafeteria Senior Center Fund 
Education Grants Parks and Recreation 

 Sawmill Restoration  Endowment Fund
Mill Rate Stabilization Student Scholarships 
Town Aid Road 
STARS Fund 
Student Activities  

The Town adopts an annual budget for its General Fund.  A budgetary comparison statement has been 
provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.  The basic governmental fund 
financial statements can be found on Exhibits III and IV. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Town of Ledyard maintains two different types of proprietary funds.  Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  The Town uses an enterprise fund to account for its water operations and its sewer 
operations.  Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among the Town’s various functions.  The Town uses an internal service fund to account for its 
medical benefits.  Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type 
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statement provides information for the water operations and 
for the sewer operations, which are considered to be major funds of the Town.  The internal service fund 
financial statement provides information for the Town’s medical plan benefits.  The basic proprietary fund 
financial statements can be found on Exhibits V, VI and VII. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the Town. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary 
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be 
found on Exhibits VIII and IX. 

Notes to financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 28-75. 
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Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning the Town of Ledyard’s progress in funding its obligation 
to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees and the budgetary information 
for the General Fund. 

The individual and combining statements and other schedules referred to earlier in connection with 
nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary 
information. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  For the Town of Ledyard, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and 
deferred inflows by $90,483,431 at the close of the fiscal year. 
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Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The largest portion of the Town’s net position, $82,727,635, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure) less any related debt and related liabilities used 
to acquire those assets that are still outstanding.  The Town uses these capital assets to provide services 
to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the Town’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the Town’s net position, $2,250,084, represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  Any remaining balance of unrestricted net position may 
be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

Governmental Activities 

Already noted was the statement of activities' purpose in presenting information on how the Town’s net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  A summary of changes in net position follows.  For 
the fiscal year, net position increased by $3,025,806.    

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2020

Current and other assets $ 33,022,351    $ 29,606,993  $ 2,933,843    $ 3,205,015  $ 35,956,194    $ 32,812,008  

Capital assets, net of 

 accumulated depreciation  111,544,113 113,524,462 23,439,468 23,928,234 134,983,581 137,452,696 

  Total assets 144,566,464 143,131,455 26,373,311 27,133,249 170,939,775 170,264,704 

Deferred outflows of resources 6,407,042  3,433,594    48,446   56,522       6,455,488      3,490,116    

Current and other liabilities 19,840,155    22,040,222  1,076,658    1,024,746  20,916,813    23,064,968  

Long-term liabilities 

 outstanding 57,618,211    52,528,691  3,778,461    4,236,361  61,396,672    56,765,052  

  Total liabilities 77,458,366    74,568,913  4,855,119    5,261,107  82,313,485    79,830,020  

Deferred inflows of resources 4,598,347  6,105,149    -  -       4,598,347      6,105,149    

Net Position:

  Net investments in

 capital assets 63,467,397    64,912,397  19,260,238 19,304,065 82,727,635    84,216,462  

  Restricted 2,250,084  1,509,012    -  -       2,250,084      1,509,012    

  Unrestricted 3,199,312 (530,422)      2,306,400    2,624,599  5,505,712 2,094,177    

Total Net Position $ 68,916,793 $ 65,890,987  $ 21,566,638 $ 21,928,664 $ 90,483,431 $ 87,819,651  
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The reader should remember that the basis of accounting used in the government-wide statement of 
activities excludes capital expenditures, while its revenues include general taxes whose primary purpose 
is for the construction of those very assets or their related debt service. 

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 
Statement of Changes in Net Position 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

 
Significant changes from the prior year for revenues are as follows: 

x Operating grants and contributions decreased $5,393,597 due to state payments on behalf of 
teachers for teacher’s retirement and retiree healthcare. 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues:

  Program revenues:

    Charges for services $ 4,914,881    $ 4,411,050    $ 1,629,652    $ 1,640,864    $ 6,544,533    $ 6,051,914    

    Operating grants and

     contributions 23,589,976 28,983,573 -                     -                     23,589,976 28,983,573 

    Capital grants and 

     contributions 1,153,532    494,782       -                     -                     1,153,532    494,782       

  General revenues:

    Property taxes 41,308,872 39,220,278 -                     -                     41,308,872 39,220,278 

    Grants not restricted to 

     specific programs 2,588,103    1,781,932    2,235            -                     2,590,338    1,781,932    

    Unrestricted investment 

     earnings  44,038         25,011         3,019            3,006            47,057         28,017         

    Miscellaneous revenue 928,065       52,275         -                     -                     928,065       52,275         

  Gain on sale of capital assets 59,607         -                     -                     -                     59,607         -                     

      Total revenues 74,587,074 74,968,901 1,634,906    1,643,870    76,221,980 76,612,771 

Expenses:

  General government  12,769,431 11,207,407 -                     -                     12,769,431 11,207,407 

  Public safety  4,969,198    4,689,253    -                     -                     4,969,198    4,689,253    

  Public works 4,381,495    3,809,749    -                     -                     4,381,495    3,809,749    

  Health and welfare 1,288,537    1,254,436    -                     -                     1,288,537    1,254,436    

  Library 558,913       548,815       -                     -                     558,913       548,815       

  Parks and recreation 707,451       540,700       -                     -                     707,451       540,700       

  Education 45,505,397 49,728,084 -                     -                     45,505,397 49,728,084 

  Interest and fiscal charges  1,119,207    1,179,715    -                     -                     1,119,207    1,179,715    

  Water department -                     -                     1,550,362    1,356,610    1,550,362    1,356,610    

  Sewer department -                     -                     708,209       639,656       708,209       639,656       

      Total expenses 71,299,629 72,958,159 2,258,571    1,996,266    73,558,200 74,954,425 

Change in net position before tran 3,287,445    2,010,742    (623,665)      (352,396)      2,663,780    1,658,346    

Transfers (261,639)      (209,088)      261,639       209,088       -                     -                     

Change in net position 3,025,806    1,801,654    (362,026)      (143,308)      2,663,780    1,658,346    

Net Position at Beginning of Year 65,890,987 64,089,333 21,928,664 22,071,972 87,819,651 86,161,305 

Net Position at End of Year  $ 68,916,793 $ 65,890,987 $ 21,566,638 $ 21,928,664 $ 90,483,431 $ 87,819,651 
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Revenues 

Governmental activities revenues totaled $74,587,074, for the fiscal year.  Property taxes are the largest 
revenue source for the Town and represent 55.4% of governmental revenues.  Operating grants and 
contributions revenues are the Town’s second largest revenue source (31.6%) and include Education 
Cost Sharing funds and payments on-behalf payments made by the State of Connecticut for State 
teacher’s Retirement pension and OPEB benefits. 

Capital grants and contributions revenues account for 1.6% of governmental revenues for the year and 
are made up of school building grants, public works grants and general improvement grants.  Charges 
for services accounts for 6.59% of governmental revenues and include the school lunch program, adult 
education, nurses, vocational agriculture and other tuition and park and recreation programs.   

Expenses 

Significant changes from the prior year are as follows: 

• Education expenses decreased by $4,222,687 due to the State’s Teachers Retirement Fund’s 
proportionate share of the net pension and OPEB liabilities associated with the Town.  

Governmental activities expenses totaled $71,299,629 for the fiscal year.  Of the expenditures, 63.8% or 
$49,505,397 was for education.  Public safety expenses amounted to $4,969,198, or 7.0%, while public 
works amounted to $4,381,495 or 6.1%. Library expenses were $558,913 or 0.8%.  Park and recreation 
expenses were $707,451 or 1.0 %.  General government expenses were $12,769,431, or 17.9%, and 
health and welfare expenses were $1,288,537 or 1.8%.  Interest and fiscal charges were $1,119,207 or 
1.6% 

Business-Type Activities 
 
Revenues 

General revenues do not support the Town’s business-type activities; thus, the largest source of revenues 
comes from charges for services, assessments, and transfers from the general fund.  Of the $1,634,906 
in revenue from the Water department and Sewer department, 99.7% comes from charges for services 
and assessments.  Investment income and grants not restricted to specific programs makes up the final 0.3% 
of revenues for the Town’s business activities. 

There were no significant changes noted from the prior year. 

Expenses 

Business-type expenses totaled $1,550,362 and $708,209 for the Water and Sewer departments, 
respectively, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
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Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance - 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and 
balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s 
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The combined fund balances of the governmental funds at June 30, 2022 was $5,288,587, an increase 
of $288,088 in comparison with the prior year. 

General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the operating fund of the Town.  At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned 
fund balance of the General Fund was $3,842,255.  Current tax collections were 98.5% of the adjusted tax 
levy. 

The fund balance of the general fund decreased by $43,375 during the fiscal year. 

Capital Projects Fund 
 
The Capital Projects fund deficit decreased by $3,544,735 primarily due to bond issuances and transfers 
in exceeding capital outlay.  

Proprietary Funds 

The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail.  The Town's enterprise fund posted an overall decrease in net position of 
$362,026 for the fiscal year.  This was primarily due to depreciation of capital assets. 

Water Fund 

Unrestricted net position of the Water Fund at the end of the year amounted to $1,408,781.  

Sewer Fund 

Unrestricted net position of the Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $897,619. 

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have been previously addressed in the discussion of 
the Town's business-type activities. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

A detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is presented on Exhibit 
A-1 and A-2. A summary of that schedule follows: 

 
Overall, budgetary revenues and expenditures had positive variances. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

At June 30, 2022, the Town of Ledyard’s investment in capital assets in both governmental and business-
type activities amounted to $134,983,581 net of depreciation.  This includes land, buildings, equipment, 
distribution and collection system and infrastructure.  Capital assets for governmental activities decreased 
by 1.7% (net), while business-type capital assets decreased 2.0% (net).  These changes included the 
following: 

Construction in progress increased $325,118 for governmental-type activities as various town projects are 
underway. There were no significant additions to the business-type capital assets during the year. 

  

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and other financing uses:   

Property taxes $ 40,894,619 $ 40,894,619 $ 41,109,833 $ 215,214          

All other revenues 18,831,198 18,831,198 19,438,688 607,490          

Appropriation of fund balance -                     914,760       -                     (914,760)         

Transfers in 570,000       570,000       603,273       33,273            

        Total 60,295,817 61,210,577 61,151,794 (58,783)           

Expenditures and other financing uses:  

Expenditures 59,037,935 58,519,380 58,521,333 (1,953)             

Transfers out 1,257,882    2,691,197    2,673,836    17,361            

        Total expenditures  60,295,817 61,210,577 61,195,169 15,408            

Change in Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ (43,375)        $ (43,375)           
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Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 
Statement of Capital Assets, Net 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found on pages 45 and 46. 

Long-Term Debt 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town’s long-term debt decreased by $210,257.  At the end of the 
current fiscal year, the Town had total bonded and note debt outstanding of $38,987,031.   

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 
General Obligation, Sewer Bonds, Clean Water and Water Notes 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

The Town has an “AA/Stable” rating from Standard and Poor’s for general obligation debt. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 2.0% to 4.0% 
times total tax collections including interest and lien fees and the tax relief for the elderly freeze grant.  
The current debt limitation for the Town is $271,517,932 which is significantly in excess of the Town’s 
outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found on pages 48-52. 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Land $ 6,310,688      $ 6,310,688      $ 984,285       $ 984,285       $ 7,294,973      $ 7,294,973  

Construction in progress 488,674         163,556         -             -             488,674  163,556     

Land improvements 3,347,305      3,455,956      -             -             3,347,305      3,455,956  

Buildings and improvements 90,896,373    92,777,037    20,677         22,331         90,917,050    92,799,368    

Distribution and collection system -          -             22,277,655 22,771,946 22,277,655    22,771,946    

Machinery and equipment 1,721,684      1,799,989      154,149       145,677       1,875,833      1,945,666  

Right-of-use Asset 158,275         -             -             -             158,275  -    

Vehicles 3,240,779      3,457,489      2,702    3,995    3,243,481      3,461,484  

Infrastructure 5,380,335      5,559,747      -             -             5,380,335      5,559,747  

Total $ 111,544,113 $ 113,524,462 $ 23,439,468 $ 23,928,234 $ 134,983,581 $ 137,452,696 

*RYHUQPHQWDO

�����Activities

%XVLQHVV�7\SH

�����Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

General purpose bonds $ 7,658,538  $ 8,195,263  $ - $ - $ 7,658,538    $ 8,195,263    

School bonds 24,933,000 23,837,000 - -  24,933,000 23,837,000 

Sewer bonds 12,809   18,527   1,128,190 1,246,472 1,140,999  1,264,999  

Water bonds 1,560,000  1,790,000  272,463   357,738   1,832,463  2,147,738  

Clean water notes 716,819   806,318   -  -  716,819   806,318   

Water notes -   -   2,705,212 2,945,970 2,705,212  2,945,970  

Total $ 34,881,166 $ 34,647,108 $ 4,105,865 $ 4,550,180 $ 38,987,031 $ 39,197,288 
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Next Year’s Budget and Rates 

The Town elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2022-
2023 budget.  The Town decided that it was important to continue the support of the schools and adopt 
a budget designed to promote long-term fiscal stability.  In order to meet the objectives of the 2022-2023 
budget, the Town recognized the need to continue its pattern of cost containment. 

The 2022-2023 general fund budget will be $63,510,221 an increase of 5.33% over the prior year 
adjusted budget.  Utilizing $1,000,000 from the Mill Rate Stabilization Fund, the Town Council was able 
hold the mill rate increase to .10.  

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to familiarize our citizens, taxpayers and customers with the Town’s 
finances and to demonstrate the Town’s fiscal accountability for its operation.  Questions concerning this 
report, or request for additional financial information, should be directed to Finance Director, 741 Colonel 
Highway, Ledyard, CT 06339-1541, Telephone (860) 464-3235, email finance.director@ledyardct.org. 
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See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents  21,115,243$                  -$                                  21,115,243$                  

Receivables:

Property Taxes, Net 984,313                         -                                    984,313                         

User Charges, Net -                                    173,517                         173,517                         

Loans 714,100                         -                                    714,100                         

Intergovernmental 10,315,557                    -                                    10,315,557                    

Other Receivables 224,722                         -                                    224,722                         

Internal Balances  (1,553,758)                    1,553,758                      -                                    

Prepaid Items 1,222,174                      132,663                         1,354,837                      

Total Current Assets 33,022,351                    1,859,938                      34,882,289                    

Noncurrent Assets:

Assessment Receivable, Net -                                    1,073,905                      1,073,905                      

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable  6,799,362                      984,285                         7,783,647                      

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated  Depreciation  104,744,751                  22,455,183                    127,199,934                  

Total Noncurrent Assets 111,544,113                  24,513,373                    136,057,486                  

Total Assets  144,566,464                  26,373,311                    170,939,775                  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding 216,574                         48,446                           265,020                         

Deferred Outflows Related to Pension 3,145,892                      -                                    3,145,892                      

Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB 3,044,576                      -                                    3,044,576                      

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 6,407,042                      48,446                           6,455,488                      

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 3,315,086                      143,581                         3,458,667                      

Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities 585,157                         31,455                           616,612                         

Accrued Interest Payable 406,760                         18,280                           425,040                         

Unearned Revenue  2,385,530                      434,127                         2,819,657                      

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable 9,700,000                      -                                    9,700,000                      

Current Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities 3,447,622                      449,215                         3,896,837                      

Total Current Liabilities 19,840,155                    1,076,658                      20,916,813                    

Noncurrent Liabilities:  

Due in More Than One Year  57,618,211                    3,778,461                      61,396,672                    

Total Liabilities  77,458,366                    4,855,119                      82,313,485                    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Inflows Related to Pension 15,431                           -                                    15,431                           

Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB 4,582,916                      -                                    4,582,916                      

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,598,347                      -                                    4,598,347                      

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 63,467,397                    19,260,238                    82,727,635                    

Restricted for: 

Endowments:

Nonexpendable 41,914                           -                                    41,914                           

Expendable 26,953                           -                                    26,953                           

Education 1,285,807                      -                                    1,285,807                      

Housing Rehabilitation 746,114                         -                                    746,114                         

Unspent Grants Proceeds 149,296                         -                                    149,296                         

Unrestricted  3,199,312                      2,306,400                      5,505,712                      

Total Net Position 68,916,793$                  21,566,638$                  90,483,431$                  
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Net Revenue (Expense) and

Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Government

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type

Function/Program Activities Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities:  

General Government  12,769,431$      2,093,329$        103,857$           -$                       (10,572,245)$     -$                       (10,572,245)$     

Public Safety  4,969,198          188,899             25,544               -                         (4,754,755)         -                         (4,754,755)         

Public Works  4,381,495          137,012             163,327             1,153,532          (2,927,624)         -                         (2,927,624)         

Health and Welfare  1,288,537          676,504             1,388,772          -                         776,739             -                         776,739             

Library 558,913             5,623                 20,523               -                         (532,767)            -                         (532,767)            

Parks and Recreation  707,451             332,649             -                         -                         (374,802)            -                         (374,802)            

Education   45,505,397        1,480,865          21,887,953        -                         (22,136,579)       -                         (22,136,579)       

Interest and Fiscal Charges  1,119,207          -                         -                         -                         (1,119,207)         -                         (1,119,207)         

Total Governmental Activities  71,299,629        4,914,881          23,589,976        1,153,532          (41,641,240)       -                         (41,641,240)       

Business-Type Activities:  

Water 1,550,362          1,145,827          -                         -                         -                         (404,535)            (404,535)            

Sewer 708,209             483,825             -                         -                         -                         (224,384)            (224,384)            

Total Business-Type Activities  2,258,571          1,629,652          -                         -                         -                         (628,919)            (628,919)            

Total Primary Government  73,558,200$      6,544,533$        23,589,976$      1,153,532$        (41,641,240)       (628,919)            (42,270,159)       

GENERAL REVENUES   

Property Taxes  41,308,872        -                         41,308,872        

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs  2,588,103          2,235                 2,590,338          

Unrestricted Investment Earnings 44,038               3,019                 47,057               

Miscellaneous  928,065             -                         928,065             

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 59,607               -                         59,607               

Transfers  (261,639)            261,639             -                         

Total General Revenues and Transfers  44,667,046        266,893             44,933,939        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,025,806          (362,026)            2,663,780          

Net Position -  Beginning of Year 65,890,987        21,928,664        87,819,651        

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 68,916,793$      21,566,638$      90,483,431$      
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EXHIBIT III 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
BALANCE SHEET  

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(19) 

 

Capital Nonmajor Total

General Projects Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS  

Cash and Cash Equivalents  17,011,520$   50$                 4,103,673$     21,115,243$   

Receivables:

Property Taxes Receivable, Net 984,313          -                      -                      984,313          

Loans -                      -                      714,100          714,100          

Due from Other Governments   -                      9,812,033       503,524          10,315,557     

Other Receivables 125,608          79,686            19,428            224,722          

Due from Other Funds 2,381,164       6,909,399       4,095,581       13,386,144     

Prepaid Items 1,128,952 -                      93,222            1,222,174       
Total Assets  21,631,557$   16,801,168$   9,529,528$     47,962,253$   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND  FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 2,482,378$     299,425$        533,283$        3,315,086$     

Accrued Payroll and Other Liabilities 520,667          9,782              54,708            585,157          

Due to Other Funds  12,812,496     -                      2,381,164       15,193,660     

Unearned Revenue  -                      2,028,164       357,366          2,385,530       

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable -                      9,700,000       -                      9,700,000       

Total Liabilities  15,815,541     12,037,371     3,326,521       31,179,433     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 844,809          -                      -                      844,809          

Unavailable Revenue - Loans -                      -                      714,100          714,100          

Unavailable Revenue - Intergovernmental 

  Receivable -                      9,812,033       123,291          9,935,324       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 844,809          9,812,033       837,391          11,494,233     

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 1,128,952       -                      135,136          1,264,088       

Restricted -                      79,686            1,494,070       1,573,756       

Committed -                      4,512,121       3,736,410       8,248,531       

Unassigned 3,842,255       (9,640,043)      -                      (5,797,788)      

Total Fund Balances  4,971,207       (5,048,236)      5,365,616       5,288,587       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of  

  Resources, and Fund Balances  21,631,557$   16,801,168$   9,529,528$     47,962,253$   
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EXHIBIT III 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(20) 

 
RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net  

position (Exhibit I) are different because of the following:  

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit III)    5,288,587$      

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial   

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:   

Governmental Capital Assets 147,766,629    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (36,222,516)     

Net Capital Assets   111,544,113    

Other long-term assets and deferred outflows of resources are not 

available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are 

deferred in the funds:   
Property Tax Receivables Greater Than 60 Days   844,809           
School Construction Intergovernmental Receivable - Accrual Basis Change 9,812,033        
Housing Rehabilitation Loan Receivables - Accrual Basis Change 714,100           
Unavailable Grants 123,291           
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 3,145,892        
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB 3,044,576        

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of  

risk management to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of    

the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities   

in the statement of net position.     253,758           

Long-term liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are not due and 

payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the 

funds:

Bonds and Notes Payable   (34,881,166)     
Financed Purchases Payable   (33,875)            
Lease Payable (165,300)          
Deferred Charge on Refunding 216,574           
Unamortized Premium on Bonds Payable (3,293,111)       
Interest Payable on Bonds   (406,760)          
Landfill Post-Closure Costs (78,000)            
Total OPEB Liability (14,438,554)     
Compensated Absences   (1,681,989)       
Net Pension Liability (6,493,838)       
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB (4,582,916)       
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (15,431)            

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit I)    68,916,793$    
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EXHIBIT IV 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(21) 

 

Capital Nonmajor Total

General Projects Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES

Property Taxes, Interest, and Lien Fees  41,109,833$   -$                    -$                    41,109,833$   

Intergovernmental Revenues  21,939,791     1,314,771       5,429,926       28,684,488     

Charges for Services 2,911,472       438,859          892,708          4,243,039       

Investment Income 43,051            -                      987                 44,038            

Contributions -                      -                      126,390          126,390          

Other -                      63,317            875,000          938,317          

Total Revenues  66,004,147     1,816,947       7,325,011       75,146,105     

EXPENDITURES

Current:  

General Government  12,188,344     -                      78,987            12,267,331     

Public Safety  4,305,814       -                      -                      4,305,814       

Public Works  2,825,303       -                      450                 2,825,753       

Health and Welfare  1,233,152       -                      28,517            1,261,669       

Library 528,633          -                      29,846            558,479          

Parks and Recreation  459,325          -                      169,285          628,610          

Education   38,637,354     -                      5,874,253       44,511,607     

Debt Service:  

Principal Retirement  2,550,942       -                      -                      2,550,942       

Interest and Other Charges 1,202,357       377,054          12,956            1,592,367       

Lease Payment 45,735            -                      -                      45,735            

Capital Outlay  204,820          2,967,844       -                      3,172,664       

Total Expenditures  64,181,779     3,344,898       6,194,294       73,720,971     

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

  OVER EXPENDITURES 1,822,368       (1,527,951)      1,130,717       1,425,134       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds Issuance -                      3,000,000       -                      3,000,000       

Refunding Bonds Issuance -                      -                      2,605,000       2,605,000       

Premiums -                      -                      695,458          695,458          

Lease Issuance 204,820          -                      -                      204,820          

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent -                      -                      (2,867,881)      (2,867,881)      

Sale of Capital Assets -                      59,607            -                      59,607            

Transfers in from Other Funds  603,273          2,133,079       -                      2,736,352       

Transfers Out to Other Funds  (2,673,836)      (120,000)         (4,155)             (2,797,991)      

Total Other Financing (Uses) (1,865,743)      5,072,686       428,422          3,635,365       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (43,375)           3,544,735       1,559,139       5,060,499       

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 5,014,582       (8,592,971)      3,806,477       228,088          

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 4,971,207$     (5,048,236)$    5,365,616$     5,288,587$     
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EXHIBIT IV 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(22) 

 

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit II) are 
different because of the following: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit IV) 5,060,499$         

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 

reported as depreciation and amortization expense.  

Capital Outlay 1,111,646           

Depreciation and  Amortization Expense  (3,068,498)          
Disposition of Capital Assets (23,497)               

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial  

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.  
Property Taxes Receivable - Accrual Basis Change 199,039              

Change in Housing Loans 671,842              

Change in Grant Receivables 123,291              

Change in Net Pension Asset (109,584)             
Changes in Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 3,103,120           

Changes in Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB (145,140)             

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources  
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 

the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has 

any effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,   

premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts  
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of 

these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.   

Bonds Issuance  (3,000,000)          

Refunding Bonds Issuance (2,605,000)          
Payment to Bond Escrow Agent 2,867,881           

Deferral Amount in Refunding 47,881                

Principal Payments on Bonds and Notes Payable  2,503,061           

Principal Payments on Financed Purchases 32,339                
Bond Premium  (695,458)             

Lease Issuance (204,821)             

Payments on Leases 39,521                

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current   
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  

Amortization of Deferred Charge on Refunding  (32,413)               

Amortization of Premium  540,351              

Accrued Interest    580                     
Landfill Post-Closure Costs 13,000                

Change in Compensated Absences   (46,194)               

Change in Net Pension Liability (6,493,838)          
Change in Deferred Inflows Related to Pension 3,453,203           

Change in Total OPEB Liability 1,829,396           

Change in Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB (1,946,401)          

The net expense of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.  (200,000)             

    Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit II)   3,025,806$         
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EXHIBIT V 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(23) 

 

Business-Type Activities Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities 

Total

Enterprise Internal 

Water Sewer Funds Service Fund

ASSETS

Current Assets:   

Receivables:

User Charges, Net 111,038$        62,479$          173,517$        -$                    

Due from Other Funds 714,295          862,794          1,577,089       253,758          

Prepaid items 85,275            47,388            132,663          -                      

Total Current Assets 910,608          972,661          1,883,269       253,758          

Noncurrent Assets: 

Receivables: 

Assessments 1,065,798       8,107              1,073,905       -                      

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable  682,577          301,708          984,285          -                      

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated  

  Depreciation  18,227,757     4,227,426       22,455,183     -                      

Total Noncurrent Assets 19,976,132     4,537,241       24,513,373     -                      

Total Assets 20,886,740     5,509,902       26,396,642     253,758          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge in Refunding 40,160            8,286              48,446            -                      

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 133,498          10,083            143,581          -                      

Accrued Liabilities -                      31,455            31,455            -                      

Accrued Interest Payable -                      18,280            18,280            -                      

Due to Other Funds -                      23,331            23,331            -                      

Unearned Revenue 434,127          -                      434,127          -                      

Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable 330,933          118,282          449,215          -                      

Total Current Liabilities 898,558          201,431          1,099,989       -                      

Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable

  and Related Liabilities 2,740,154       1,038,307       3,778,461       -                      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,740,154       1,038,307       3,778,461       -                      

Total Liabilities 3,638,712       1,239,738       4,878,450       -                      

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 15,879,407     3,380,831       19,260,238     -                      

Unrestricted 1,408,781       897,619          2,306,400       253,758          

Total Net Position 17,288,188$   4,278,450$     21,566,638$   253,758$        

Major Funds
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EXHIBIT VI 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(24) 

 

Business-Type Activities Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities 

Major Funds Total

Enterprise Internal 

Water Sewer Funds Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services 1,133,094$     483,467$        1,616,561$     -$                    

Other 12,733            358                 13,091            -                      

    Total Operating Revenues 1,145,827       483,825          1,629,652       -                      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services -                      286,172          286,172          -                      

Repairs and Maintenance -                      21,780            21,780            -                      

Contracted and Purchased Services 1,120,451       23,075            1,143,526       -                      

Materials and Supplies -                      127,299          127,299          -                      

Utilities 12,504            51,179            63,683            -                      

Depreciation Expense 355,072          157,179          512,251          -                      

Total Operating Expenses 1,488,027       666,684          2,154,711       -                      

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (342,200)         (182,859)         (525,059)         -                      

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Nonoperating Grant -                      2,235 2,235              -                      

Income on Investments 1,962              1,057              3,019              -                      

Interest Expense (62,335)           (41,525)           (103,860)         -                      

Total Nonoperating Expenses (60,373)           (38,233)           (98,606)           -                      

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (402,573)         (221,092)         (623,665)         -                      

Transfers In 364,603          176,154          540,757          -                      

Transfers Out (210,985)         (68,133)           (279,118)         (200,000)         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (248,955)         (113,071)         (362,026)         (200,000)         

Net Position - Beginning of Year 17,537,143     4,391,521       21,928,664     453,758          

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 17,288,188$   4,278,450$     21,566,638$   253,758$        
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EXHIBIT VII 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(25) 

 
Business-Type Activities Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities 

Major Funds Total

Enterprise Internal 

Water Sewer Funds Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers and Users 1,302,920$         587,550$            1,890,470$         200,000$            

Payments to Suppliers (1,156,157)          (277,062)             (1,433,219)          -                          

Payments to Employees -                          (282,989)             (282,989)             -                          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 146,763              27,499                174,262              200,000              

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 

  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Assessments 116,643              26,375                143,018              -                          

Grants -                          2,235                  2,235                  -                          

Transfers from Other Funds 364,603              176,154              540,757              -                          

Transfers to Other Funds (210,985)             (68,133)               (279,118)             (200,000)             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by  

  Noncapital Financing Activities 270,261              136,631              406,892              (200,000)             

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Additions to Property, Plant, and Equipment   (23,485)               -                          (23,485)               -                          

Principal Payments (Bonds and Notes) (332,705)             (120,310)             (453,015)             -                          

Interest Payments (62,796)               (44,877)               (107,673)             -                          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by  Capital 

 and Related Financing Activities (418,986)             (165,187)             (584,173)             -                          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

    Interest on Investments  1,962                  1,057                  3,019                  -                          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 1,962                  1,057                  3,019                  -                          

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -                          -                          -                          -                          

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year -                          -                          -                          -                          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME

  (LOSS) PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING 

  ACTIVITIES

    Operating Income (Loss) (342,200)$           (182,859)$           (525,059)$           -$                        

    Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income  

     (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by     

     Operating Activities:

Depreciation  355,072              157,179              512,251              -                          

Change in Assets and Liabilities:   

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable   (16,073)               (13,427)               (29,500)               -                          

(Increase) Decrease in Other Asset (85,275)               (47,388)               (132,663)             

(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds  173,165              129,652              302,817              200,000              

Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds  -                          (12,500)               (12,500)               -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 62,073                (6,341)                 55,732                -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities -                          3,183                  3,183                  -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue 1                         -                          1                         -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Adjustments  488,963              210,358              699,321              200,000              

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)  Operating Activities 146,763$            27,499$              174,262$            200,000$            
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EXHIBIT VIII 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(26) 

 
Pension

Trust Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents   -$                     

Investments, at Fair Value:  

Mutual Funds  27,111,717      

Receivables:  

Accrued Interest and Dividends  8,717               

Total Assets   27,120,434      

NET POSITION
Restricted for Pension Benefits 27,120,434$    
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EXHIBIT IX 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(27) 

 
Pension

Trust Funds

ADDITIONS:

Contributions: 

Employer 1,131,235$      

Plan Members 195,857           

Total Contributions 1,327,092        

Investment Earnings:  

Net Change in Fair Value of Investments (5,681,627)       

Interest and Dividends 1,370,134        

Total Investment Earnings (4,311,493)       

Less Investment Expenses: 

Investment Management Fees 69,761             

Net Investment Earnings (4,381,254)       

Total Additions (3,054,162)       

DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits 1,808,430        

Administration 30,812             

Total Deductions 1,839,242        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (4,893,404)       

Net Position - Beginning of Year 32,013,838      

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 27,120,434$    
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

(28) 

  
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut (the Town) have been 
prepared in conformity with GAAP as applied to government units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant policies of 
the Town are described as follows: 
 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Town was incorporated in 1836 and covers an area of 40.5 square miles. The Town 
operates under the provisions of its Charter and General Statutes of the State of 
Connecticut (the Statutes). The Mayor, who is the chief executive officer, is directly 
responsible for the administration of all departments, agencies, and offices. The Town 
provides the following services: general government, public safety, public works, parks 
and recreation, library, health and welfare services, water pollution control, and 
education. 
 

The legislative power of the Town is vested in the Town Council, which consists of nine 
members, unless otherwise provided by the Charter. The Department of Finance, under 
the supervision of the Director of Finance (appointed by the Mayor), is responsible for 
keeping accounts and financial records, the assessment and collection of taxes, the 
collection of special assessments and other revenues, the custody and disbursement of 
Town funds, the control over expenditures and such other powers and duties as may be 
required by ordinance or resolution of the Town Council. The Town Treasurer, appointed 
by the Town Council, has all power and duties conferred or imposed by law. 
 

The Town has the power to incur indebtedness by issuing bonds and notes as provided 
by the General Statutes. 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America require that the 
reporting entity include the primary government, organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion 
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. A 
government is financially accountable for a legally separate organization if it appoints a 
voting majority of the organization’s governing body and there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens 
on, the government. These criteria have been considered and have resulted in the 
inclusion of the fiduciary component unit as detailed below. 
 

Fiduciary Component Units 

The Town has established a single-employer Public Retirement System (PERS), 
Ledyard Retirement System, to provide retirement benefits to qualified employees. The 
Town appoints the majority of the Board and is required to make contributions to the 
pension plan.  
 

The financial statements of the fiduciary component unit are reported as Pension Trust 
fund in the fiduciary fund financial statements. Separate financial statements have not 
been prepared for the fiduciary component unit. 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

(29) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. 
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements; however, 
interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary 
funds and fiduciary funds, including fiduciary component unit, even though the latter is 
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental 
and proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation  

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Under this method, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they 
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting. However, debt service principal and interest expenditures on 
general long-term debt, including lease liabilities, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, and claims and judgments and postemployment benefits are 
recognized based on specific accounting rules applicable to each, generally when 
payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions, including entering into contracts 
giving the Town the right to use lease assets, are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and financing through leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

(30) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Property taxes when levied for, charges for services, and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period and intergovernmental revenues when eligibility requirements are 
met are all considered to be measurable and so have been recognized as revenues of 
the current fiscal period, if available. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable only when cash is received by the Town. 
 
The Town reports the following major governmental funds:  
 
General Fund 

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 
 
Capital Projects Fund 

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial revenues to be used for major 
capital asset construction and/or purchases. 
 
The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:  
 
Water Fund 

The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s water operations. 
 
Sewer Fund 

The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s sewer operations. 
 
Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:  
 
Internal Service Fund 

Used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or 
agency to other departments or agencies of the Town on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
The Town’s internal service fund is its Medical Self-Insurance Fund which is no longer 
active. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Types 

These funds account for assets held by the government in a trustees capacity. Trust 
funds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust 
agreement. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the 
Town’s own programs. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Fiduciary Fund Types (Continued) 

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Ledyard Retirement System, 
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees. 

 
Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants 
for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 
3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated 
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the water and sewer enterprise funds 
and of the Town’s internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for the enterprise fund and the internal service fund include the cost 
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 
 

D. Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases 

In June 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard 
requires the recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously 
were classified as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources 
recognized based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single 
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are 
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this standard, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a 
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. 

The Entity adopted the requirements of the guidance effective July 1, 2021 and has 
applied the provisions of this standard to the beginning of the period of adoption. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less, when purchased, such as certificates of deposit and investment 
pools. 
 
Investments 

All investments are stated at fair value. 
 

F. Receivables and Payables 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are assessed as of October 1 and are levied the following July 1. Taxes 
are due and payable in equal installments on July 1, and January 1, following the date of 
the Grand List. Interest of 1 ½% per month is charged on delinquent taxes. Liens are 
effective on the attachment date and are continued by filing prior to the following levy 
date. Additional property taxes are assessed for motor vehicles registered subsequent to 
the Grand List date through July 31 and are payable in one installment due January 1. 
An amount of $128,823 has been established as an allowance for uncollectible taxes. 
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivable, including property taxes receivable, are reported net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts represents those accounts 
that are deemed uncollectible based upon past collection history and management’s 
assessment of creditor’s ability to pay. 
 
Interfunds 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” 
or “advances to/from other funds.” 
 
Loan Receivables 

Loan receivable in the Housing Rehab Program are related to Community Development 
Block Grant funds that are available to income eligible residential property owners for 
housing rehabilitation. Loan receivables are recorded and revenues are recognized upon 
sale of the property. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Prepaid Items and Inventory

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather
than when purchased.

Purchased inventory (if any) for the school cafeteria fund, a special revenue fund, is
valued at lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out method). United States Department of
Agriculture donated commodities are valued at market value plus the amount disbursed
for processing and storage charges. Expenditures are recognized when consumed.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the governmental activity
column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed, except for intangible right-to-use
lease assets, the measurement of which is discussed in Note 1.I below. Donated capital
assets, work of art, and similar items are recorded at acquisition value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Land and construction in progress are note depreciated. The other tangible and intangible
property, plant, equipment, the right to use lease equipment, and infrastructure of the Town
are depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Building 50 Years
Building Improvements 20 to 50 Years 
Distribution and Collection Systems 75 Years 
Public Domain Infrastructure 75 Years 
Machinery and Equipment 5 to 20 Years 
Right-to-Use Equipment 5 Years 

Capital outlay is reported as expenditures and no depreciation/amortization expense is 
reported in the governmental fund financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

I. Leases 

Lessee 

The Town is a lessee for noncancellable leases of equipment. The Town recognizes 
a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the 
applicable governmental activities or business-type activities in the government-wide 
and in the proprietary fund financial statements. The Town has not set a de-minimis 
threshold to recognize a lease liability.  
 
At the commencement of a lease, the Town initially measures the lease liability at the 
present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term. 
Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments 
made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, 
adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus 
certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over its useful life. 
 
Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how Town determines (1) the 
discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, 
(2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. 
 

x The Town uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. 
When the interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the Town 
generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate 
for leases. 

x The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease.  

x Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are 
composed of fixed payments and the purchase option price that the Town is 
reasonably certain to exercise. 

 
The Town monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement 
of its lease and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur 
that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability. 
 
Lease assets are reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are reported 
with long- term debt on the statement of net position. 
 

J. Compensated Absences 

Town employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for 
payment upon termination, death, or retirement. Vacation and sick leave expenses to be 
paid in future periods are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds 
only for amounts due, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 
The general fund is typically used to liquidate the liability. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

K. Net Pension Liability 

The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of 
projected benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension 
liability or asset), net of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position is determined using the same valuation methods that are used by 
the pension plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net position. The net 
pension liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of 
the employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period. 
 

L. Total Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (OPEB) Liability 

The total OPEB liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of 
projected benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service. The total OPEB 
liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the 
employer’s prior fiscal year and no later than the end of the current fiscal year, 
consistently applied from period to period. 
 

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net asset or fund balance 
that applies to a future period or periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town reports a deferred charge on 
refunding and deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB in the government-wide 
statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. A deferred outflow of 
resources related to pension or OPEB results from differences between expected and 
actual experience, changes in assumptions, or other inputs. These amounts are deferred 
and included in pension and OPEB expense in a systematic and rational manner over a 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that 
are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive 
employees). 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued) 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net asset or fund balance that 
applies to a future period or periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The Town reports deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions and OPEB in the government-wide statement of net position. A 
deferred inflow of resources related to pension or OPEB results from differences 
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, or other inputs. 
These amounts are deferred and included in pension expense and OPEB expense in a 
systematic and rational manner. Also, for governmental funds, the Town reports 
unavailable revenue, which arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes, interest on 
property taxes, long-term loans, and intergovernmental receivables. These amounts are 
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period during which 
the amounts become available. 
 

N. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statement, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net 
position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued, including capital 
leases, is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing uses. Principal payments, and issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

O. Fund Equity

Equity in the government-wide financial statements is defined as “net position.” Net
position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The components of net position are detailed
below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of 
bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or improvement of these assets net of unexpended proceeds. Deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this 
component of net position. 

Restricted Net Position – These amounts are restricted to specific purposes when 
constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) externally imposed by 
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislations. 

Unrestricted Net Position – This category represents the net position of the Town, 
which are not restricted for any project or other purpose. A deficit will require future 
funding. 

The equity of the fund financial statements is defined as “fund balance” and is classified 
in the following categories: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance – These amounts cannot be spent because they are 
not in spendable form, or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 

Restricted Fund Balance – These amounts are restricted to specific purposes when 
constraints placed on the use of resources by external parties, such as debt 
covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

Committed Fund Balance – This represents amounts constrained for a specific 
purpose by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority. The 
Ledyard Board of Finance is the highest level of decision making authority for the 
Town and can commit fund balance through the adoption of a resolution prior to the 
end of the fiscal year. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution 
remains in place until similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

O. Fund Equity (Continued) 

Assigned Fund Balance – For all governmental funds other than the General Fund, 
this represents any remaining positive amounts not classified as restricted or 
committed. For the General Fund, this includes amounts constrained for the intent to 
be used for a specific purpose by the Board of Finance, who has been delegated to 
assign amounts by the Town Charter. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – The residual amount not allocated to any other fund 
balance category in the General Fund and any residual deficit balance of any other 
governmental funds. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available for use, it is the Town’s 
practice to use restricted resources first. Additionally, the Town would first use 
committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned. 
 

P. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
including disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities and reported revenues, 
expenses, and expenditures during the fiscal year. Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 

Q. Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through December 27, 2022, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 
 
 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

The Town adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
included in the general fund financial statements: 
 

x The Mayor compiles the budget requests from the Town departments and 
agencies, with the exception of the Board of Education, and presents the budget 
to the Town Council. The Board of Education files a detailed estimate of 
expenditures with the Mayor for transmittal to the Town Council. The Town 
Council, after its review process, prepares and presents a recommended budget 
for Town Meeting approval. 
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

x The Board of Education, which is not a separate legal entity but a function of the
Town, is authorized under State law to make any transfers required within their
budget at their discretion. Any additional appropriations must have Board of
Education, Town Council, and, if necessary, Town Meeting approval.

x Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year.

x The legal level of control, the level at which expenditures may not exceed
appropriations, is at the department level.

x Individual additional appropriations of less than 1% of the current tax levy can be
made by the Town Council, the accumulative total of which cannot exceed 2% of
the current tax levy. During the year, the General Fund budget was increased by
$914,760 from additional appropriations from the Town Council.

x Additional appropriations of more than 1%, and any resolution authorizing the
issuance of bonds or notes or other borrowings, require Town Meeting approval.
Upon request by the Mayor, during the last three months of the fiscal year, the
Town Council may transfer any unencumbered appropriation, or portion thereof,
from one department, commission, board, or office to another. No transfer may
be made from any appropriation for debt service and other statutory charges.

x Generally, all unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end except those for
capital projects funds. Appropriations for capital projects are continued until
completion of applicable projects even when projects extend more than one fiscal
year.

x The Town has adopted a fund balance reserve policy and has set the minimum
undesignated/unreserved balance for the general fund at an amount equal to 7%
of current year General Fund expenditures. The Town will avoid the appropriation
of fund balance for recurring operating expenditures.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the 
following functions: 
 

Expenditures 

in Excess of

Function Appropriations

Department of Finance 147,326$         

Fixed Charges 484,525           

Public Safety  132,526           

Library 5,011               

 
Department of finance overages related to utilities costs that were in excess of budget in 
addition to unbudgeted tax refunds. Fixed charges overages related to under budgeted 
Board of Education health insurance costs. Public safety overages related to dispatch 
salaries in excess of budget. Lastly, library charges overages related to additional 
salaries. 
 

C. Fund Deficits 

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported deficit fund balance/net position in the following 
fund: 
 

Capital Project Fund  $      5,048,236 

 
The fund deficit will be eliminated by grant funding and future bonding. 
 
 

NOTE 3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-
402). Deposits may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by the Statutes or, 
in amounts not exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit, in an 
“out of state bank” as defined by the Statutes, which is not a “qualified public depository.”  

 

The Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-400) permit municipalities to invest in: 
1) obligations of the United States and its agencies; 2) highly rated obligations of any state 
of the United States or of any political subdivision, authority or agency thereof; and 
3) shares or other interests in custodial arrangements or pools maintaining constant net 
asset values and in highly rated no-load open end money market and mutual funds (with 
constant or fluctuating net asset values) whose portfolios are limited to obligations of the 
United States and its agencies, and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such 
obligations. Other provisions of the Statutes cover specific municipal funds with particular 
investment authority. The provisions of the Statutes regarding the investment of municipal 
pension funds do not specify permitted investments. Therefore, investment of such funds is 
generally controlled by the laws applicable to fiduciaries and the provisions of the applicable 
plan. 
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NOTE 3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The Statutes (Sections 3-24f and 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares of the State 
Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). This investment pool is under the control of the State 
Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Treasurer’s Cash Management Advisory Board 
and are regulated under the State Statutes and subject to annual audit by the Auditors of 
Public Accounts. Investment yields are accounted for on an amortized-cost basis with an 
investment portfolio that is designed to attain a market-average rate of return throughout 
budgetary and economic cycles. Investors accrue interest daily based on actual earnings, 
less expenses and transfers to the designated surplus reserve, and the fair value of the 
position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 
 
A. Deposits 

Deposit Custodial Credit Risk  

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits 
may not be returned to it Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, 
Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, $19,169,350 of the Town’s bank balance of 
$20,195,059 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows: 
 
Uninsured and Uncollateralized 17,151,863$    

Uninsured and Collateral Held by the Pledging 

Bank's Trust Department, Not in the Town’s Name 2,017,487        
Total Amount Subject to Custodial Risk 19,169,350$    

 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Town to significant concentrations of 
credit risk consist primarily of cash. From time to time, the Town’s cash account 
balances exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. The Town reduces its 
credit risk by maintaining its cash deposits with major financial institutions and 
monitoring their credit ratings. 
 
Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and purchased within 90 days of maturity. At 
June 30, 2022, the Town’s cash equivalents amounted to $1,919,148. The following 
table provides a summary of the Town’s cash equivalents as rated by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations. 
 

Standard 

& Poor's

State Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) AAAm

 
STIF is an investment pool of high-quality, short-term money market instruments with an 
average maturity of less than 60 days. There were no limitations or restrictions on any 
withdrawals due to redemption notice periods, liquidity fees, or redemption gates. 
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NOTE 3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

B. Investments 

At June 30, 2022, the Town’s investments (all pension trust fund investments) of 
$27,111,717 consisted entirely of mutual funds. 
 
Investment Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party. The Town policy is to pre-qualify all financial 
institutions that it will do business with. The Town has no amounts subject to custodial 
credit risk. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 

The Town’s investment policy limits its investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk - Investments 

Connecticut state statutes limit the investment options of cities and towns. The Town has 
adopted an investment policy that allows the same type of investments as state statutes. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Town’s investment policy requires diversification by limiting investments to avoid 
overconcentration in securities from a specific issuer. No more than 5% of the Town’s 
investments were invested in any one issuer in which credit risk was applicable.  
 
Fair Value 

The Town uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain 
assets and to determine fair value disclosures. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon 
quoted market prices. However, in certain instances, there are no quoted market prices 
for certain assets or liabilities. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, 
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. 
Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the 
discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates 
may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the asset or liability. 
 
Fair value measurements focus on exit prices in an orderly transaction (that is, not a 
forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the measurement 
date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the 
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or 
the use of multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, 
determining the price at which willing market participants would transact at the 
measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and 
circumstances and requires the use of significant judgment. 
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NOTE 3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

B. Investments (Continued) 

Fair Value (Continued) 

The Town’s fair value measurements are classified into a fair value hierarchy based on 
the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the 
assumptions used to determine fair value. 
 
The three categories within the hierarchy are as follows: 
 

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in markets that are not active, interest rates and yield curves observable at 
commonly quoted intervals, implied volatilities, credit spreads, and market-
corroborated inputs. 
 
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that 
relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which 
there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. 
Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined 
using pricing models, discounted cash flows methodologies, or similar techniques, as 
well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant 
management judgement. 
 

The Town has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022: 
 

June 30, Fair Value Measurements Using

2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by Fair Value Level:

Mutual Funds 27,111,717$      27,111,717$   -$                    -$                    

 
Mutual funds classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices 
quoted in active markets for those securities. 
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NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES 

Receivable balances have been disaggregated by type and presented separately in the fund 
financial statements. Only receivables for the Town’s government-wide financial statements 
with allowances for uncollectible accounts as of June 30, 2022, including the applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are presented below. 
 

Property Taxes

Interest and

Taxes Lien Fees Total

Accounts Receivable 854,587$            258,549$            1,113,136$         

Less: Allowance for  

  Uncollectible Accounts (128,823)             -                          (128,823)             

Net Accounts Receivable 725,764$            258,549$            984,313$            

Use Charge Receivable

Water Sewer

Department Department Total

Accounts Receivable 111,038$            62,479$              173,517$            

Less: Allowance for  

  Uncollectible Accounts -                          -                          -                          

Net Accounts Receivable 111,038$            62,479$              173,517$            

 
There is no allowance applied to water and sewer assessments receivable and the loan 
rehab program receivable since the amounts due are liened and the lien remains with the 
property. 
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Governmental Activities:  

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:  

Land  6,310,688$      -$                   -$                   -$                   6,310,688$      

Construction in Progress  163,556           325,118         -                     -                     488,674           

Total Capital Assets Not Being 

  Depreciated 6,474,244        325,118         -                     -                     6,799,362        

Capital Assets Being Depreciated

  and Amortized:

Land Improvements  4,200,355        -                     -                     -                     4,200,355        

Buildings and Improvements  116,822,110    256,357         -                     -                     117,078,467    

Machinery and Equipment  3,573,830        121,790         -                     -                     3,695,620        

Right to Use Equipment -                       204,820         -                     -                     204,820           

Vehicles  7,313,504        203,561         146,935         -                     7,370,130        

Infrastructure  8,417,875        -                     -                     -                     8,417,875        

Total Capital Assets Being 

  Depreciated and Amortized 140,327,674    786,528         146,935         -                     140,967,267    

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

  and Amortization for:

Land Improvements  744,399           108,651         -                     -                     853,050           

Buildings and Improvements  24,045,073      2,137,021      -                     -                     26,182,094      

Machinery and Equipment  1,773,841        200,095         -                     -                     1,973,936        

Right of Use Equipment -                       46,545           -                     -                     46,545             

Vehicles  3,856,015        396,774         123,438         -                     4,129,351        

Infrastructure  2,858,128        179,412         -                     -                     3,037,540        

Total Accumulated Depreciation

  and Amortization 33,277,456      3,068,498      123,438         -                     36,222,516      

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

  and Amortized, Net  107,050,218    (2,281,970)     23,497           -                     104,744,751    

Governmental Activities Capital   

  Assets, Net 113,524,462$  (1,956,852)$   23,497$         -$                   111,544,113$  

Business-Type Activities:  

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:  

Land  984,285$         -$                   -$                   -$                   984,285$         

Total Capital Assets Not Being  

  Depreciated 984,285           -                     -                     -                     984,285           

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:  

Buildings and Improvements  66,163             -                     -                     -                     66,163             

Distribution and Collection System 32,018,955      -                     -                     -                     32,018,955      

Machinery and Equipment  770,525           23,485           -                     -                     794,010           

      Vehicles 124,337           -                     -                     -                     124,337           

Total Capital Assets Being  

  Depreciated 32,979,980      23,485           -                     -                     33,003,465      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:  

Buildings and Improvements  43,832             1,654             -                     -                     45,486             

Distribution and Collection System 9,247,009        494,291         -                     -                     9,741,300        

Machinery and Equipment  624,848           15,013           -                     -                     639,861           

      Vehicles 120,342           1,293             -                     -                     121,635           

Total Accumulated Depreciation  10,036,031      512,251         -                     -                     10,548,282      

Total Capital Assets Being  

  Depreciated, Net 22,943,949      (488,766)        -                     -                     22,455,183      

Business-Type Activities Capital  

  Assets, Net 23,928,234$    (488,766)$      -$                   -$                   23,439,468$    
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as 
follows: 
 
Governmental Activities:

General Government 88,542$           

Public Safety 560,551           

Public Works 401,991           

Health and Welfare 13,552             

Library 27,828             

Parks and Recreation 42,174             

Education 1,933,860        

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental 
  Activities 3,068,498$      

Business-Type Activities:

Water Fund 355,072$         

Sewer Fund 157,179           

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type 
  Activities 512,251$         

 
 

NOTE 6 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

Interfund payables and receivables: A summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2022 is 
as follows: 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 2,381,164$      
Capital Projects General Fund 6,909,399        
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 4,095,581        
Water Fund General Fund 690,964           
Water Fund Sewer Fund 23,331             
Sewer Fund General Fund 862,794           
Internal Service Fund General Fund 253,758           

Total 15,216,991$    

 
The General Fund holds primarily all the cash for the Town and the resulting due to/from 
other results from these cash allocations. 
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NOTE 6 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED) 

Interfund transfers: A summary of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2022 is as follows: 
 

Transfer In

Capital Total

General  Projects Water Sewer Transfer

Fund Fund Fund Fund Out

Transfers Out:

General Fund -$               2,133,079$    364,603$   176,154$   2,673,836$    

Capital Projects Fund 120,000     -                    -                 -                 120,000         

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,155         -                    -                 -                 4,155             

Water Fund 210,985     -                    -                 -                 210,985         

Sewer Fund 68,133       -                    -                 -                 68,133           

Internal Service Fund 200,000     -                    -                 -                 200,000         

Transfers In 603,273$   2,133,079$    364,603$   176,154$   3,277,109$    

 
Transfers are used to account for the financing by the General Fund of various programs 
and activities in other funds. Transfers out from the General Fund are various capital 
improvements for capital nonrecurring items and board of education capital items. The 
General Fund also transfers amounts to the Water and Sewer Fund for operating cost. 
Capital projects fund transferred bond premiums to mill rate stabilization fund, a nonmajor 
governmental fund, to be used to pay future debt service. 
 
Short-Term Obligations 

The Town uses bond anticipation notes during the construction period of various public 
projects prior to the issuance of the bonds at the completion of the project.  
 
Short-term obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 

Date Maturity Interest Balance Balance

Issued Date Rate (%) July 1, 2021 Issued Retired June 30, 2022

5/10/21 5/10/22 2.00% 11,700,000$    -$                    11,700,000$    -$                    

5/10/22 5/1/24 3.25% -                      9,700,000        -                      9,700,000        

11,700,000$    9,700,000$      11,700,000$    9,700,000$      
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NOTE 7 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:  

Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds 33,840,790$    5,605,000$      5,281,443$      34,164,347$    2,602,443$     

Premium on Bonds 3,138,004        695,458           540,351           3,293,111        -                     
Total Bonds and 

  Premiums 36,978,794      6,300,458        5,821,794        37,457,458      2,602,443       

Notes Payable from Direct 

  Borrowing 806,318           -                      89,499             716,819           77,365            

Lease Liability -                      204,821           39,521             165,300           52,413            

Financed purchases 66,214             -                      32,339             33,875             33,875            

Landfill Post-Closure Costs 91,000             -                      13,000             78,000             13,000            

Compensated Absences 1,635,795        46,194             -                      1,681,989        337,000          

Total OPEB Liability 16,267,950      -                      1,829,396        14,438,554      331,526          

Net Pension Liability -                      6,493,838        -                      6,493,838        -                     

Total Governmental 

  Activities Long-
  Term Liabilities   55,846,071$    13,045,311$    7,825,549$      61,065,833$    3,447,622$     

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Business Type Activities:

Bonds and Notes Payable:

General Obligation Bonds 1,604,210$      -$                    203,557$         1,400,653$      203,557$        

Premium 130,511           -                      8,700               121,811           -                     

Total Bonds and 

  Premiums 1,734,721        -                      212,257           1,522,464        203,557          

Notes Payable from Direct 

  Borrowing 2,945,970        -                      240,758           2,705,212        245,658          

Total Business-Type

  Activities Long-
  Term Liabilities   4,680,691$      -$                    453,015$         4,227,676$      449,215$        

All long-term liabilities for the governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General 
Fund. 
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NOTE 7 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds as of June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 
 

Balance

Original Date of Date of Interest Outstanding

Amount Issue Maturity Rate June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities:  

General Purpose:  

Refunding Improvement Bonds 1,755,000$      05/25/16 06/30/29 1.00-4.00% 382,538$         

Improvement Bonds 6,561,000        05/25/16 06/30/36 2.75-5.00% 4,845,000        

Refunding Improvement Bonds 2,136,000        07/06/21 10/01/33 0.40-4.00% 2,136,000        

Improvement Bonds 295,000           05/10/22 05/01/42 3.125-5.00% 295,000           

Total General Purpose 10,747,000      7,658,538        

School:  

Refunding Improvement Bonds 2,975,000        05/25/16 06/30/29 1.00-4.00% 749,000           

Improvement Bonds 15,000,000      05/17/17 07/15/36 3.00-5.00% 11,840,000      

Improvement Bonds 34,250             05/25/16 06/30/24 4.00-5.00% 10,000             

Improvement Bonds 6,000,000        06/12/19 06/01/39 3.00-5.00% 5,360,000        

Improvement Bonds 4,000,000        05/11/21 09/01/40 3.00-4.00% 3,800,000        

Refunding Improvement Bonds 469,000           07/06/21 10/01/33 0.40-4.00% 469,000           

Improvement Bonds 2,705,000        05/10/22 05/01/42 3.125-5.00% 2,705,000        

Total School 31,183,250      24,933,000      

Sewer:  

Refunding Improvement Bonds 45,000             05/25/16 06/30/29 1.00-4.00% 12,809             

Water:  

Refunding Improvement Bonds 2,910,000        05/25/16 06/30/29 1.00-4.00% 1,560,000        

Total Governmental 

  Activities 34,164,347$    

Business-Type Activities:

Water Fund:  

Refunding Bonds 1,250,000$      05/25/16 06/30/29 1.00-4.00% 272,463$         

Sewer Fund:  

Improvement Bonds 1,300,000        05/17/17 09/30/26 3.00-5.00% 1,020,000        

Refunding Bonds 380,000           05/25/16 06/30/29 1.00-4.00% 108,190           

Total Sewer Fund 1,680,000        1,128,190        

Total Business-Type

  Activities 1,400,653$      

The sewer improvement bonds are supported by means of an assessment program. All 
obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the Town. 
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NOTE 7 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual debt service requirements of general obligation bonds are as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 2,602,443$      1,233,747$      203,557$         46,427$          

2024 2,587,337        1,126,578        202,663           37,621            

2025 2,361,519        1,018,012        93,481             33,181            

2026 2,361,519        914,872           93,481             28,742            

2027 2,331,519        808,461           93,481             24,303            

2028-2032 10,660,010      2,713,190        388,990           7,434              

2033-2037 9,080,000        1,034,450        325,000           21,374            

2038-2042 2,180,000        150,350           -                      -                     

Total 34,164,347$    8,999,660$      1,400,653$      199,082$        
 

 
Notes Payable From Direct Borrowing 

The Town has three State of Connecticut Clean Water and Drinking Water Fund serial notes 
outstanding. These loans were issued to finance improvements to the sewer plant, pump 
stations, and the water distribution infrastructure. A schedule of notes payable at June 30, 
2022 is presented below: 
 

Balance

Original Date of Date of Interest Outstanding

Amount Issue Maturity Rate June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities:  

Water:  

Clean Water Notes 1,629,000$      12/27/10 06/01/19 2.00% 716,819$         

Business-Type Activities:

Water Fund:  

Drinking Water 926,007           09/30/06 09/30/26 2.05% 229,698           

Drinking Water 3,781,622        02/27/15 03/31/35 2.00% 2,475,514        

Total Drinking Water Notes 4,707,629        2,705,212        

Total Notes 3,422,031$      

The annual debt service requirements of notes payable are as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 77,365$           13,705$           245,658$         51,963$          

2024 85,966             12,004             250,644           46,978            

2025 87,702             10,269             255,730           41,892            

2026 89,472             8,499               260,919           36,702            

2027 91,278             6,693               226,565           30,698            

2028-2032 285,036           8,874               1,112,630        93,111            

2033-2037 -                      -                      353,066           5,764              

Total 716,819$         60,044$           2,705,212$      307,108$        
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NOTE 7 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Statutory Debt Limitations 

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by 
Connecticut General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule: 
 

Debt Net

Category Limit Indebtedness Balance

General Purpose 87,273,621$      7,658,538$        79,615,083$      

Schools 174,547,242      42,810,948        131,736,294      

Sewers 145,456,035      1,140,999          144,315,036      

Urban Renewal 126,061,897      -                         126,061,897      

Pension Deficit 116,364,828      -                         116,364,828      

 
The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts 
from taxation, $271,517,932. 
 
The indebtedness reflected above includes bonds outstanding in addition to the amount of 
bonds authorized and unissued against which bond anticipation notes are issued and 
outstanding. 
 
Authorized/unissued bonds: On June 30, 2022, the Town had authorized unissued bonds as 
follows: 
 
School 8,177,948$      

 
The authorized/unissued debt for schools has been reduced by anticipated grant proceeds 
from the State of Connecticut of $27,000,000 relative to the school construction project. 
 
Water system related debt of $1,832,463 has been excluded from the calculation. 
 
Finance Purchase Commitments 

The Town has one active financed purchase commitment as of year-end. The asset 
acquired through the financed purchase is as follows: 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Equipment 163,850$         

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (30,722)            
Net Book Value 133,128$         
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NOTE 7 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Financed Purchases Commitments (Continued) 

Obligations of Governmental Activities under financed purchases at June 30, 2022 were as 
follows: 
 

Governmental 

Year Ending June 30, Activities

2023 35,484$           

Total Minimum Payments 35,484             

Less: Amount for Interest (1,609)              
Present Value of Minimum Payments 33,875$           

 
Lease Payable 

The Town leases equipment for various terms under long-term, noncancelable lease 
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2027. 
 
Total future minimum lease payments under lease agreements are as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 52,413$         6,896$           59,309$         

2024 55,095           4,215             59,310           

2025 29,063           1,930             30,993           

2026 15,456           1,085             16,541           

2027 13,273           302                13,575           

Total Minimum Lease Payments 165,300$       14,428$         179,728$       

 
Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs 

The Town closed its landfill in 1999. State and federal laws and regulations require landfill 
closures to meet certain standards. Monitoring costs for the next 8 years at $13,000 per 
year are $91,000. These amounts are based on estimates which are subject to change due 
to inflation, technology, or applicable laws and regulations. 
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NOTE 8 FUND BALANCE 

As of June 30, 2022, fund balances are composed of the following: 
 

Nonmajor

General Capital Governmental

Fund Projects Funds Total

Fund Balances:  

Nonspendable:  

Permanent Fund Principal -$                       -$                       41,914$             41,914$             

Prepaid Expenses 1,128,952          -                         93,222               1,222,174          

Total Nonspendable 1,128,952          -                         135,136             1,264,088          

Restricted for:  

Housing Rehab -                         -                         32,014               32,014               

Endowments -                         -                         26,953               26,953               

Miscellaneous Grants -                         -                         123,483             123,483             

Education Grants -                         -                         607,752             607,752             

Student Activities -                         -                         465,369             465,369             

Student Scholarships -                         -                         212,686             212,686             

Road Improvements -                         79,686               25,813               105,499             

Total Restricted -                         79,686               1,494,070          1,573,756          

Committed for:

Sawmill Restoration -                         -                         2,960                 2,960                 

Senior Center -                         -                         18,039               18,039               

Library Management -                         -                         21,979               21,979               

Animal Control -                         -                         16,669               16,669               

Education -                         -                         13,836               13,836               

Mill Rate Stabilization -                         -                         3,430,279          3,430,279          

Parks and Recreation Center -                         347,797             232,648             580,445             

Capital and Nonrecurring Projects -                         4,164,324          -                         4,164,324          

Total Committed -                         4,512,121          3,736,410          8,248,531          

Unassigned     3,842,255          (9,640,043)         -                         (5,797,788)         

Total Fund Balances   4,971,207$        (5,048,236)$       5,365,616$        5,288,587$        
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NOTE 9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss including torts; public official liabilities; police 
liability; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to 
employees; and natural disasters. Generally, the Town obtains commercial insurance for 
these risks. 
 
Due to the Town and Board of Education experiencing significant increases in claims 
payments over prior fiscal years, the Town converted to a fully insured plan for health 
insurance. As of July 1, 2018, the Town participates in the State of Connecticut Partnership 
2.0 Plan. 
 
The Town has been utilizing residual net position to offset current increases in health care 
costs. As of June 30, 2022 the remaining balance in the fund is $253,758.  
 
Commitments and Litigation 

Amounts received or receivable from federal and state grantor agencies are subject to audit 
and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, 
although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits and the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable. In the opinion of the Town attorney, the resolution of these matters 
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 

Pension Plans 
 
A. Plan Description 

Summary 

The Town is the administrator of a single-employer defined benefit Public Employee 
Retirement System (PERS) established by Town Ordinance and administered by the 
Town to provide pension benefits for its employees. Plan provisions are determined by 
the various union contracts. The PERS is considered to be part of the Town’s financial 
reporting entity and is included in the Town’s financial reports as a pension trust fund. 
The PERS does not issue a stand-alone report. 
 
Valuation of Investments 

Investments are valued at fair value. There are no investments of 5.0% or greater in any 
one organization. 
 
Classes of Employees Covered 

As of July 1, 2021, the plan’s membership consists of: 
 
Retired Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving 

  Benefits 100

Vested Terminated Members Entitled to But Not Yet 

  Receiving Benefits 35

Non-Vested Terminated Employees Due a Refund 37

Active Members 63
Total Participants 235

 
B. Benefit Provisions 

Town and Public Works employees are eligible for a normal pension after attaining age 
65 and shall be entitled to a retirement benefit equal to 1.5% of final average earnings 
multiplied by years of credited service. The maximum normal retirement benefits a 
member may receive is 50% of final average earnings. Noncertified Board of Education 
employees are eligible for a normal pension after attaining age 65 and shall be entitled 
to a retirement benefit equal to 1% of final average earnings multiplied by years of 
credited service, not exceeding 30 years. Police employees are eligible for a normal 
pension after attaining age 55 and 10 years of credited service or any age with 25 years 
of credited service, but not later than age 65. Fire employees are eligible for a normal 
pension after attaining age 55 and 10 years of credited service, but not later than age 
65. Police and Fire employees shall be entitled to a retirement benefit equal to 2% of 
final average earnings multiplied by years of credited service. The maximum benefit to 
be received annually is 75% of final average earnings. Vesting of benefits occurs on or 
after 5 years of credited service for Town, Public Works, Police and Fire employees and 
on or after 10 years of credited service for noncertified Board of Education employees. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

C. Contributions 

The Town’s contributions are actuarially determined on an annual basis using the entry 
age normal cost method. The Town’s contributions were 19% of covered payroll. 
Administration costs are financed from investment earnings. Employees are required to 
contribute 5% of earnings to the plan. 
 

D. Assumed Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method 
in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as 
of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

US Equity - Large Cap 32.25% 4.50%

US Equity - Small/Mid Cap 4.25  4.80  

Non-US Equity - Developed 19.50  7.30  

Non-US Equity - Emerging 6.50  8.60  

US Corporate Bonds - Core 27.00  1.10  

Non-US Debt - Developed 5.50  0.70  

US Treasuries (Cash) 5.00  3.40  

Total 100.00%

 
E. Net Pension Liability 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized a net pension asset of 
$6,493,838. The components of the net pension asset of the Town at June 30, 2022 
were as follows: 
 
Total Pension Liability 33,614,272$    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 27,120,434      
Net Pension (Asset) Liability 6,493,838$      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 

  Total Pension Liability 80.68%

Covered Payroll 4,254,773$      

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of the 

  Covered Payroll 152.62%
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
E. Net Pension Asset (Continued) 

Changes in Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position (Asset) Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)

Balances as of July 1, 2021 31,904,254$       32,013,838$       (109,584)$           

Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 473,992              -                          473,992              

Interest on Total Pension 

  Liability 1,967,983           -                          1,967,983           

Differences Between Expected 

  and Actual Experience 1,018,759           -                          1,018,759           

Changes of Assumptions 57,714                -                          57,714                

Employer Contributions -                          1,131,235           (1,131,235)          

Member Contributions -                          195,857              (195,857)             

Net Investment Income -                          (4,381,254)          4,381,254           

Benefit Payments, Including 

  Refund of Employee 

  Contributions (1,808,430)          (1,808,430)          -                          

Administrative Expenses -                          (30,812)               30,812                

Net Changes 1,710,018           (4,893,404)          6,603,422           

Balances as of June 30, 2022 33,614,272$       27,120,434$       6,493,838$         

 
F. Rate of Return 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension 
plan investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was -14.01%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expenses, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
G. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Actuarial Method Used Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

Mortality Basis PubG-2010(B) Public Plan Mortality 

for General Employees, Scale MP-202

Inflation 2.80%

Salary Increases Including Inflation 4.00%

Investment Rate of Return 6.25%

 
H. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of June 30, 2022 was 
6.25%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan 
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the Town 
contributes at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. For this 
purpose, only employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan 
members and their beneficiaries are included. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
pension liability. 
 

I. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the Pension Plan, calculated using the 
current discount rate of as well as what the Pension Plan’s net pension liability would be 
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 
percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Rate 1%   Increase

5.25% 6.25% 7.25%

 Net Pension (Asset) Liability 10,159,439$       6,493,838$         3,377,283$         
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

I. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
(Continued) 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense 
(income) of $1,178,334. As of June 30, 2022, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are reported as follows: 
 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience  535,935$         15,431$           

Changes of Assumptions 34,599             -                       

Net Difference Between Projected and

  Actual Earning on Pension Plan Investments 2,575,358        -                       

Total 3,145,892$      15,431$           

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in the pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2023 1,019,415$      
2024 492,271           
2025 345,502           
2026 1,273,273        
Total 3,130,461$      

 
Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System – Pension 
 
A. Plan Description 

Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public 
schools are provided with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement 
System, a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by 
the Teachers Retirement Board. Chapter 167a of the State Statutes grants authority to 
establish and amend the benefit terms to the Teachers Retirement Board. The Teachers 
Retirement Board issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www.ct.gov. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System – Pension (Continued) 
 

B. Benefit Provisions 

The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Employees are eligible to 
retire at age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited 
service including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.  
 
Normal Retirement 

Retirement benefits for employees are calculated as 2% of the average annual salary 
times the years of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary 
during the three years of highest salary). 
 
Early Retirement 

Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of 
Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of 
Connecticut service with reduced benefit amounts.  
 
Disability Retirement 

Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of 
service. Five years of credited service is required for nonservice-related disability 
eligibility. Disability benefits are calculated as 2% of average annual salary times 
credited service to date of disability, but not less than 15% of average annual salary, nor 
more than 50% of average annual salary.  
 

C. Contributions 

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79-436 as 
amended), contribution requirements of active employees and the State of Connecticut 
are approved, amended, and certified by the State Teachers Retirement Board and 
appropriated by the General Assembly. 
 
Employer (School Districts) 

School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan. 
 
The statutes require the state of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts’ 
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when 
combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with any additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the amount of “on-behalf” contributions made by the 
state was $5,330,196 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental 
revenues and education expenditures. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System – Pension (Continued) 
 

C. Contributions (Continued) 

Employees 

Effective July 1, 1992, each teacher is required to contribute 6% of salary for the pension 
benefit. 
 
Effective January 1, 2018, the required contribution increased to 7% of pensionable 
salary. 
 

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory 
requirement that the State pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount 
recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related 
state support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with 
the Town were as follows: 
 
Town's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

  Liability -$                     

State's Proportionate share of the Net Pension

  Liability Associated with the Town 63,656,332      

Total 63,656,332$    

 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as June 30, 2020. At June 30, 2022, the Town has no proportionate share of 
the net pension liability. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 the Town recognized pension expense and revenue 
of $4,109,164 in Exhibit II. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System – Pension (Continued) 
 

E. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation 2.50% 
Salary increase 3.00-6.50%, including inflation 
Investment rate of return 6.90%, net of pension plan investment  
   expense, including inflation 

 
Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for 
males and 103% for females at ages 82 an above), projected generationally with MP-
2019 for the period after service retirement. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study for the five year period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 
2019. 
 
Assumption changes since the prior year are as follows: 

x There were no changes in assumptions that affected the measurement of the 
TPL since the prior measurement date. 

Benefit changes since the prior year are as follows: 
x There were no changes in benefit provisions that affected the measurement of 

the TPL since the prior measurement date. 
 
Cost of Living Allowance 

For teachers who retired prior to September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are 
made in accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3% 
and a maximum of 5% per annum. 
 
For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System before July 1, 
2007 and retire on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made 
that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the 
year granted, with a maximum of 6% per annum. If the return on assets in the previous 
year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.5%. 
 
For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System after July 1, 2007, 
pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for Social 
Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If 
the return on assets in the previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 
3%, and if the return on the assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the 
maximum increase is 1.0%.  
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System – Pension (Continued) 
 

E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

Long-Term Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
current capital market assumptions and the target asset allocation as provided by the 
State of Connecticut Treasurer’s Office are summarized in the following table: 
 

Expected Target

Asset Class Return Allocation

Domestic Equity Fund 5.60% 20.00%

Developed Market Intl. Stock Fund 6.00   11.00   

Emerging Market Intl. Stock Fund 7.90   9.00   

Core Fixed Income Fund 2.10   16.00   

Inflation Linked Bond Fund 1.10   5.00   

Emerging Market Debt Fund 2.70   5.00   

High Yield Bond Fund 4.00   6.00   

Real Estate Fund 4.50   10.00   

Private Equity 7.30   10.00   

Alternative Investments 2.90   7.00   

Liquidity Fund 0.40   1.00   

Total 100.00%

 
F. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that state contributions will 
be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates in the future years. Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability.  
 

G. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability is $-0- and, therefore, the 
change in the discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the state of 
Connecticut.  
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System – Pension (Continued) 
 

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued financial statements available at www.ct.gov. 
 

I. Other Information 

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of 
the financial statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has 
no obligation to contribute to the plan. 
 

Employees Defined Contribution Plan 
 

A. Plan Description 

The Town has established a defined contribution plan for Non-Union Professionals hired 
after July 1, 2009; Town Hall Union employees hired after 7/1/2012; Supervisors Union 
employees hired after 7/1/2012; Nurses Union employees hired after 7/1/2013; 
Teamsters Union employees hired after 7/1/2012; Police Union employees hired after 
7/1/2012; and Firefighters Union employees hired after 7/1/2013. It is a mandatory plan 
with no opt out. As of June 30, 2022, the plan was administered by Voya. The authority 
for establishing and amending plan provisions rests with the Town Council. 
 
The Town matches up 5% of employee contributions for Nurses Union, Emergency 
Communication Services Union, and Town Hall Union, up to 6% for Supervisors Union, 
Teamsters Union, and Firefighters Union, and matches up to 10% for Police Union and 
department heads. Actual contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2022 
totaled $827,552, which consisted of $536,038 contributed by employees and $291,514 
contributed by the Town. The current year covered payroll for the plan is $6,010,846. 
 
The participants’ employer contributions to their account are vested as follows: 
 

Year 1 20%

Year 2 40

Year 3 60

Year 4 80

Year 5 100

 
The Town’s matching contributions for Non-Union Professionals are determined by a 
“Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits,” as adopted by Town 
Council. The Town’s matching contributions for union employees are determined by 
collective bargaining agreements. 
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Employees Defined Contribution Plan (Continued) 
 

A. Plan Description (Continued) 

The Board of Education has established a 403(b) plan, a defined contribution plan 
administered by OMNI. The plan is offered to employees of Ledyard Public Schools who 
are expected or scheduled to work 20 hours or more per week. Both pre and post tax 
options are available. Contributions are made through payroll deductions and 
participation is voluntary. Actual contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 
2022 totaled $794,933, which consisted of $764,230 contributed by employees and 
$30,703 contributed by the Board of Education. 
 
In addition, the eligible employees can voluntarily contribute to the State of Connecticut 
457 Plan, a defined contribution plan. Both pre and post tax options are available. 
Contributions are made through payroll deductions and participation is voluntary. For 
eligible Ledyard employees not covered by a defined benefit plan, the 457 participants 
are eligible for matching contributions to the Town’s 401(a). The Town of Ledyard 
401(a) Plan holds Town matching funds for employees who use the 457 Plan as their 
Town retirement plan. The 401(a) Plan currently is with Voya because the state plan will 
not accept the Town match due to the small size. Actual contributions to the plan for the 
year ended June 30, 2022 totaled $188,024, which consisted of $149,308 contributed by 
employees and $38,716 contributed by the Town. 

 
 

NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS 

Town OPEB Plan 
 

A. Plan Description 

The Town administers one single-employer, postretirement healthcare plan for the Board 
of Education, the Town OPEB plan. The plan provides medical benefits to eligible 
retirees and their spouses. The Town OPEB plan is administered by the Town. Plan 
provisions are determined by union contract and may be amended by union 
negotiations. 
 
The Town currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go 
basis. As of June 30, 2022, the Town has not established a trust fund to irrevocably 
segregate assets to fund liability associated with the postemployment benefits, which 
would require the reporting of a trust fund in accordance with GASB guidelines. 
Administration costs are financed from current operations.  
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Town OPEB Plan (Continued) 
 

B. Benefit Provided 

The Town plan provides for medical benefits for all eligible Board of Education retirees.  
 
Eligibility 

BOE Certified & Secretaries: An employee retiring shall be eligible to receive health 
benefits for self and spouse. 
 
Normal Retirement 

BOE Certified: Earlier of age 60 with 20 years of service or 35 years of service with no 
age requirement. 
 
Secretaries: Age 65 with no service requirement. 
 
Early Retirement 

BOE Certified: Earliest of age 60 with 10 years of service, 25 years of service with no 
age requirement, or age 55 with 20 years of service. 
 
Secretaries: Age 55 with 10 years of service. 
 
Cost Sharing: Retirees must pay 100% of the blended pre-65 medical premium rate for 
self and spouse, less the $1,320 annual. 
 
CT Teachers’ Retirement Board subsidy for BOE Certified. 
 
Non-Medicare Retiree Plans: Board of Education Non-Medicare retirees receive Century 
Preferred or Lumenos HSA plans through Anthem. 
 
These plans have both medical and prescription drug components. 
 
Medicare Retiree Plans: Board of Education Medicare retirees receive fully insured 
Anthem Group Medicare plans. The medical component is covered by a Medicare 
Supplemental Plan F and the prescription drug component is covered by a BlueScript 
plan. The employer liability for these Medicare retirees is $-0-. The retiree pays the full 
premium. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. 
 
Membership in the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2021: 
 
Retired Members or Beneficiaries Currently 

  Receiving Benefits 37                    

Active Members 248                  
Total 285                  
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Town OPEB Plan (Continued) 
 

C. Total OPEB Liability 

The Town’s total OPEB liability of $14,438,554 reported at June 30, 2022 was measured 
as of June 30, 2021 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
 

D. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless 
otherwise specified: 
 
Salary Increases 3.50%

Discount Rate 2.16%

Health care Cost Trend Rates
Medical 5.5 %, Reduced 0.5% Per Year to 

an Ultimate Rate of 4.5%
Prescription Drug 7.0 %, Reduced 0.5% Per Year to 

an Ultimate Rate of 4.5%
Administrative 3.00%

Mortality Rates Varies by Group

 
The discount rate was based on the 20-year tax exempt GO municipal bond index. 
 
Mortality Rates for Teachers and Administrators are the RP-2014 White Collar tables 
projected generationally using scale MP-2021. 
 
Mortality Rates for Secretaries are the RP-2014 total dataset tables adjusted to 2006 
and projected generationally using scale MP-2021.  
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Town OPEB Plan (Continued) 
 

D. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs (Continued) 

These tables reasonably reflect the projected mortality experience of the Plan as of the 
measurement date. Explicit mortality improvement projection was made to reasonably 
reflect future mortality improvement. 
 

E. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB

Liability

(a)

Balances as of July 1, 2021 16,267,950$    

Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 583,260           

Interest on Total OPEB Liability 312,335           

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience

(2,671,164)       

Changes in Assumptions or Other Inputs 215,562           

Benefit Payments (269,389)          

Net Changes (1,829,396)       

Balances as of June 30, 2022 14,438,554$    

 
Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 
2.21% as of June 30, 2020 measurement date to 2.16% as of June 30, 2021 
measurement date. 
 

F. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town using the current discount 
rate, as well as what the Town’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the 
current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Discount Discount

Rate Rate Rate

1.16% 2.16% 3.16%

Total OPEB Liability 17,391,140$       14,438,554$       12,140,789$       
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Town OPEB Plan (Continued) 
 

G. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health care Cost Trend 
Rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town using the current health care 
cost trend rate, as well as what the Town’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower 
or 1 percentage point higher than the current health care cost trend rates: 
 

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Healthcare Healthcare Healthcare

Cost Trend Cost Trend Cost Trend

Rates (6.00% Rates (7.00% Rates (8.00%

decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to

4.00%) 5.00%) 6.00%)

Total OPEB Liability 11,921,112$       14,438,554$       17,791,043$       

 
H. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $531,535. At 
June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources

Differences Between Expected and Actual  

  Experience -$                     3,532,173$      

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 3,044,576        1,050,743        
Total 3,044,576$      4,582,916$      

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2023 (364,060)$        
2024 (364,060)          
2025 (364,060)          
2026 (364,060)          
2027 (14,227)            

Thereafter (67,873)            
Total (1,538,340)$     
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement Plan – OPEB 
 
A. Plan Description 

Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public 
schools plus professional employees at State Schools of higher education are eligible to 
participate in the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System Retiree Health 
Insurance Plan (TRS-RHIP), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other 
postemployment benefit plan administered by the Teachers’ Retirement Board (TRB), if 
they choose to be covered. 
 
Chapter 167a Section 10-183 (t) of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and 
amend the benefit terms to the TRB. TRS-RHIP issues a publicly available financial 
report that can be obtained at www.ct.gov/trb. 
 

B. Benefit Provisions 

There are two types of the health care benefits offered through the system. Subsidized 
Local School District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving 
coverage through their former employer and the CTRB Sponsored Medicare 
Supplement Plans provide coverage for those participating in Medicare but not receiving 
Subsidized Local School District Coverage. 
 
Any member who is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to 
continue health care coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $110 per 
month for a retired member plus an additional $110 per month for a spouse enrolled in a 
local school district plan is provided to the school district to first offset the retiree’s share 
of the cost of coverage, and any remaining portion is used to offset the district’s cost. 
The subsidy amount is set by statute and has not increased since July 1996. A subsidy 
amount of $220 per month may be paid for a retired member, spouse, or the surviving 
spouse of a member who has attained the normal retirement age to participate in 
Medicare, is not eligible for Part A of Medicare without cost, and contributes at least 
$220 per month towards coverage under a local school district plan. 
 
If a member participating in Medicare Parts A & B so elects, they may enroll in one of the 
CTRB Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans. Effective July 1, 2018, the System 
added a Medicare Advantage Plan option. Active members, retirees, and the state pay 
equally toward the cost of the basic coverage (medical and prescription drug benefits) 
under the Medicare Advantage Plan. Retired members who choose to enroll in the 
Medicare Supplement Plan are responsible for the full difference in the premium cost 
between the two plans. Additionally, effective July 1, 2018, retired members who cancel 
their health care coverage or elect to not enroll in a CTRB sponsored health care 
coverage option must wait two years to re-enroll.  
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement Plan – OPEB (Continued) 
 

B. Benefit Provisions(Continued) 

Survivor Health Care Coverage 

Survivors of former employees or retirees remain eligible to participate in the plan and 
continue to be eligible to receive either the $110 monthly subsidy or participate in the 
TRB-Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans, as long as they do not remarry. 
 

C. Eligibility 

Any member who is currently receiving a retirement or disability benefit is eligible to 
participate in the plan. 
 
Credited Service 

One month for each month of service as a teacher in Connecticut public schools, 
maximum 10 months for each school year. Ten months of Credited Service constitutes 
one year of Credited Service. Certain other types of teaching services, State 
employment, or wartime military service may be purchased prior to retirement if the 
member pays one-half the cost. 
 
Normal Retirement 

Age 60 with 20 years of Credited Service in Connecticut, or 35 years of Credited Service 
including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut. 
 
Early Retirement 

Age 55 with 20 years of Credited Service including 15 years of Connecticut service, or 
25 years of Credited Service including 20 years of Connecticut service. 
 
Proratable Retirement 

Age 60 with 10 years of Credited Service. 
 
Disability Retirement 

No service requirement if incurred in the performance of duty, and five years of Credited 
Service in Connecticut if not incurred in the performance of duty. 
 
Termination of Employment 

Ten or more years of Credited Service. 
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement Plan – OPEB (Continued) 
 

D. Contributions 

State of Connecticut 

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183t, contribution requirements of active 
employees and the State of Connecticut are approved, amended, and certified by the 
State Teachers’ Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. The 
State contributions are not currently actuarially funded. The State appropriates from the 
General Fund one third of the annual costs of the Plan. Administrative costs of the Plan 
are financed by the state. Based upon Chapter 167a, Subsection D of Section 10-183t of 
the Connecticut statutes, it is assumed the state will pay for any long-term shortfall 
arising from insufficient active member contributions. 
 
Employer (School Districts) 

School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the amount of “on-behalf” contributions made by the 
state was $125,430 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental 
revenues and education expenditures. 
 
Employees/Retirees 

The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows: 
active teachers pay for one-third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of 
their pensionable salaries, and retired teachers pay for one-third of the Plan costs 
through monthly premiums, which helps reduce the cost of health insurance for eligible 
retired members and dependents. 
 

E. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2022, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net 
OPEB liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory 
requirement that the State pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount 
recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related 
state support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the 
Town was as follows: 
 
Town's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability -$                     

State's Proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability

  Associated With the Town 6,935,241        

Total 6,935,241$      
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement Plan – OPEB (Continued) 
 

E. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued) 

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
June 30,2020. At June 30, 2022, the Town has no proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense and revenue of 
$(256,096) in Exhibit II. 
 

F. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Inflation 2.50%

Health Care Costs Trend Rate 5.125% for 2020, Decreasing to an

Ultimate Rate of 4.50% by 2023

Salary Increase 3.00% - 6.50%, Including Inflation

Investment Rate of Return 2.17%, Net of OPEB Plan

Investment Expense, Including

Inflation

Year Fund Net Position Will be Depleted 2023

 
Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for 
males and 103% for females at ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-
2019 for the period after service retirement. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2019. 
 
The changes in the assumptions since the prior year are as follows: 

x Discount rate changed from 2.21% to 2.17% 
x Expected annual per capita claims costs were updated to better reflect 

anticipated Medicare and prescription drug claim experience based on scheduled 
premium increases through calendar year 2024. 

The changes in the benefit terms since the prior year are as follows: 
x There were no changes to benefit terms in the two years preceding the 

measurement date. 
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement Plan – OPEB (Continued) 
 

F. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the GASB 75 
valuation process. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of 
return assumption, including the Plan’s current asset allocations and a log-normal 
distribution analysis using the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) for each major asset 
class compiled by Horizon Actuarial Services, LLC in its “Survey of Capital Market 
Assumptions, 2020 Edition”. The long-term expected rate of return was determined by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and then adding expected inflation. The assumption is not expected to 
change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation 
assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future 
years. The plan is 100% invested in U.S. Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) for which the 
expected 10-Year Geometric Real Rate of Return is (0.42%). 
 

G. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.17%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with GASB 
75. The projection was based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020. 
 
In addition to the actuarial methods and assumptions of the June 30, 2020, actuarial 
valuation, the following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the projection 
of cash flows: 

x Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the active 
membership present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, total 
payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.00% 

x Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member 
contribution rate. Employee contributions for future plan members were used to 
reduce the estimated amount of total service costs for future plan members. 

x Annual State contributions were assumed to be equal to the most recent five-
year average of state contributions toward the fund. 
 

Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
depleted in 2023 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the 
determination of the single equivalent rate. 
 

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend 
Rate and the Discount Rate 

The Town’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability is $-0- and, therefore, the 
change in the health care cost trend rate or the discount rate would only impact the 
amount recorded by the state of Connecticut.  
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Connecticut State Teacher’s Retirement Plan – OPEB (Continued) 
 

I. OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Connecticut State Teachers OPEB Plan fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued State of Connecticut Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report at www.ct.gov 
 

J. Other Information 

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of 
the financial statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has 
no obligation to contribute to the plan. Detailed information about the Connecticut State 
Teachers OPEB Plan fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued State of 
Connecticut Comprehensive Annual Financial Report at www.ct.gov. 
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Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:  

Property Taxes 40,894,619$      40,894,619$      41,109,833$      215,214$           

Intergovernmental Revenues  15,674,219        15,674,219        16,484,165        809,946             

Charges for Services 3,076,979          3,076,979          2,911,472          (165,507)            

Investment Income 80,000               80,000               43,051               (36,949)              

Total Revenues  59,725,817        59,725,817        60,548,521        822,704             

Expenditures:  

Current:  

General Government  1,311,954          1,307,062          1,302,573          4,489                 

Department of Finance 1,014,923          1,030,223          1,177,549          (147,326)            

Commissions 37,250               37,250               22,178               15,072               

Boards and Committees 2,500                 2,500                 1,206                 1,294                 

Fixed Charges 9,173,128          9,173,128          9,657,653          (484,525)            

Public Safety  4,174,083          4,174,083          4,306,609          (132,526)            

Health and Welfare  1,427,959          1,427,959          1,262,981          164,978             

Public Works  2,806,668          2,831,668          2,825,303          6,365                 

Library 523,622             523,622             528,633             (5,011)                

Parks and Recreation  461,401             465,556             459,633             5,923                 

Education  33,671,969        33,671,969        33,223,716        448,253             

Debt Service  4,432,478          3,874,360          3,753,299          121,061             

Total Expenditures  59,037,935        58,519,380        58,521,333        (1,953)                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

   Over Expenditures 687,882             1,206,437          2,027,188          820,751             

Other Financing Sources (Uses):  

Appropriation of Fund Balance -                         914,760             -                         (914,760)            

Transfers In 570,000             570,000             603,273             33,273               

Transfers Out  (1,257,882)         (2,691,197)         (2,673,836)         17,361               

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)  (687,882)            (1,206,437)         (2,070,563)         (864,126)            

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources

 Over Expenditures and Other Uses -$                       -$                       (43,375)$            (43,375)$            

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Revenues Expenditures 

and Other and Other

Financing Financing 

Sources Uses

Balance, Budgetary Basis 61,151,794$      61,195,169$      

GASB 87 implementation:

Lease Proceeds 204,820 -                         

Capital Outlay -                         204,820

State Teachers’ Retirement On-Behalf Contributions:

OPEB Plan 125,430             125,430             

Pension Plan 5,330,196          5,330,196          

Balance, GAAP Basis 66,812,240$      66,855,615$      
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability: 

Service Cost 473,992$         539,906$         519,140$         736,078$         714,639$         741,107$         741,107$         917,720$         882,423$         
Interest on Total Pension Liability 1,967,983        1,937,222        1,881,133        1,875,490        1,790,419        1,656,779        1,532,686        1,442,724        1,401,316        

Changes of Benefit Terms

Differences Between Expected and

  Actual Experience 1,018,759        (295,985)          -                       (699,447)          -                       296,538           (458,860)          -                       -                       

Changes of Assumptions 57,714             81,306             -                       (249,585)          -                       543,177           452,665           -                       -                       
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of

  Member Contributions (1,808,430)       (1,603,369)       (1,468,176)       (1,242,451)       (1,088,259)       (1,057,539)       (986,331)          (845,509)          (644,882)          

 Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,710,018        659,080           932,097           420,085           1,416,799        2,180,062        1,281,267        1,514,935        1,638,857        

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 31,904,254      31,245,174      30,313,077      29,892,992      28,476,193      26,296,131      25,014,864      23,499,929      21,861,072      

 Total Pension Liability - Ending  33,614,272      31,904,254      31,245,174      30,313,077      29,892,992      28,476,193      26,296,131      25,014,864      23,499,929      

  
Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 

Contributions - Employer  1,131,235        1,098,284        1,066,295        1,278,376        1,278,376        1,057,393        1,109,374        1,075,000        969,442           
Contributions - Members 195,857           209,846           219,562           239,257           256,415           275,250           273,142           306,172           339,724           

Net Investment Income (4,381,254)       6,258,426        1,113,027        1,076,186        1,588,925        1,798,778        116,850           (147,618)          2,438,923        

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of

  Member Contributions (1,808,430)       (1,603,369)       (1,468,176)       (1,242,451)       (1,088,259)       (1,057,539)       (986,331)          (845,509)          (644,882)          
Administrative Expense (30,812)            (15,687)            (32,004)            (14,910)            (30,473)            (19,389)            (49,939)            (71,657)            (43,760)            

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (4,893,404)       5,947,500        898,704           1,336,458        2,004,984        2,054,493        463,096           316,388           3,059,447        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 32,013,838      26,066,338      25,167,634      23,831,176      21,826,192      19,771,699      19,308,603      18,992,215      15,932,768      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending 27,120,434      32,013,838      26,066,338      25,167,634      23,831,176      21,826,192      19,771,699      19,308,603      18,992,215      

 
Net Pension (Asset) Liability - Ending  6,493,838$      (109,584)$        5,178,836$      5,145,443$      6,061,816$      6,650,001$      6,524,432$      5,706,261$      4,507,714$      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

  of the Total Pension Liability 80.68% 100.34% 83.43% 83.03% 79.72% 76.65% 75.19% 77.19% 80.82%

Covered Payroll   $      4,254,773  $      4,173,503  $      4,731,754  $      4,903,307  $      5,681,648  $      5,809,341  $      5,884,824  $      7,935,812  $      7,630,588 

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of 

   Covered Payroll  152.62% -2.63% 109.45% 104.94% 106.69% 114.47% 110.87% 71.91% 59.07%

Discount Rate at End of Year 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25%

* This schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Actuarially Determined Contribution* 1,096,614$    1,098,284$    1,066,295$    1,278,376$    1,241,142$    1,057,393$    1,026,595$    1,168,151$    1,123,041$    904,786$      

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined  

  Contribution  1,131,235     1,098,284     1,066,295     1,278,376     1,278,376     1,057,393     1,109,374     1,075,000     969,442        900,000        

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)  (34,621)$       -$                  -$                  -$                  (37,234)$       -$                  (82,779)$       93,151$        153,599$      4,786$          

Covered Payroll  4,254,773     4,173,503     4,731,754     4,903,307     5,681,648     5,809,341     5,884,824     7,935,812     7,630,588     7,630,588     

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll  26.6% 26.3% 22.5% 26.1% 22.5% 18.2% 18.9% 13.5% 12.7% 11.8%

Notes to Schedule:  

Valuation date: July 1, 2021

Measurement date: June 30, 2022

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on actuarial valuation as of July 1 of the beginning of each fiscal year in which contributions are reported

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:  

Actuarial cost method  Entry age normal

Amortization method  Amortization of unfunded liability with 3.00% per year increase, closed

Remaining amortization period 6 years remaining as of July 1, 2021

Asset valuation method  Market value

Projected pay increases 4.00%

Investment rate of return  6.25%, net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality (healthy participants) PubG-2010(B) Public Plan Mortality for General Employees, Scale MP-2020

Mortality (disabled participants) PubG-2010(B) Public Plan Mortality for General Employees, Scale MP-2020

* Contribution amounts for fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and prior are Annual Required Contribution (ARC) under GASB 27.
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of

  Investment Expense -14.01% 24.50% 4.34% 4.39% 6.96% 9.50% 0.81% 1.89% 14.93%

* This schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years'  information will be displayed 

    as it becomes available.
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Town’s Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability Associated With the Town  63,656,332      80,373,297      74,508,198      57,450,149      61,786,364      65,185,087      48,803,952      34,017,535      

 
Total  63,656,332$    80,373,297$    74,508,198$    57,450,149$    61,786,364$    65,185,087$    48,803,952$    34,017,535$    

Town’s Covered Payroll   $    26,167,713  $    18,099,414  $    18,277,172  $    17,831,387  $    17,831,387  $    18,876,225  $    18,141,000  $    17,483,000 

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

   Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll  0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 60.77% 49.24% 52.00% 57.69% 55.93% 52.26% 59.50% 61.51%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in Benefit Terms None

Changes of Assumptions The Board adopted new assumptions as the result of an experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019:

 - Decrease the annual rate of real wage increase assumption from 0.75% to 0.50%.

 - Decrease payroll growth assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%.

 - Rates of withdrawal, disability, retirement, mortality, and assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual 

and anticipated experience.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age

Amortization Method Level percent of pay, closed

Single Equivalent Amortization Period 30 years

Asset Valuation Method 4-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increase 3.25%-6.50%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.90%, net of investment-related expense

* - This schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional information will be added as it becomes available.  
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB Liability: 

Service Cost 583,260$         499,814$         435,660$         354,403$         448,146$         

Interest 312,335           457,552           456,546           422,328           421,537           

Changes of Benefit Terms -                      -                      -                      563,857           -                      

Differences Between Expected 

 and Actual Experience (2,671,164)      -                      -                      (474,392)         (1,828,205)      

Changes of Assumptions and Other Inputs 215,562           2,923,053        670,446           (577,934)         (1,543,592)      

Benefit Payments (269,389)         (367,991)         (337,051)         (401,634)         (394,415)         

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (1,829,396)      3,512,428        1,225,601        (113,372)         (2,896,529)      

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 16,267,950      12,755,522      11,529,921      11,643,293      14,539,822      

Total OPEB Liability - Ending ** 14,438,554$    16,267,950$    12,755,522$    11,529,921$    11,643,293$    

  

Covered-Employee Payroll  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of 

   Covered-Employee Payroll   N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 

* This schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes 

    available.

** There are no assets accumulated in a trust fund for the payment of OPEB liabilities

***Note: Measurement date of the net pension liability is one year prior to report date.

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Assumptions Medical trend and mortality rates were updated

The discount rate was decreased from 3.21% to 2.16%.
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Town’s Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability  $                    - -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

State’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability Associated With the Town         6,935,241 11,987,680      11,619,974      11,484,671            15,903,105 

Total  6,935,241$      11,987,680$    11,619,974$    11,484,671$    15,903,105$    

Town’s Covered Payroll   $   26,167,713  $   18,099,414  $   18,277,172  $   17,831,387  $   17,831,387 

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll   0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability 6.11% 2.50% 2.08% 1.49% 1.79%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in Benefit Terms None

Changes of Assumptions Based on the procedure described in GASB 75, the discount rate used to measure plan obligations for financial accounting purposes as of 

June 30, 2020 was updated to equal the Municipal Bond Index Rate as of June 30, 2020;

Expected annual per capita claims costs were updated to better reflect anticipated medical and prescription drug claim experience;

Long-term health care cost trend rates were updated;

The percentages of participating retirees who are expected to enroll in the Medicare Supplement Plan and the Medicare Advantage Plan options

were updated based on observed plan experience.  Additionally, participants are no longer assumed to migrate from the Medicare Supplement 

Plan to the Medicare Advantage Plan after selecting an option; and,

The Board adopted new assumptions as the result of an experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019.  The changes in 

assumptions are summarized below:

 - Decrease the annual rate of real wage increase assumption from 0.75% to 0.50%.

 - Decrease payroll growth assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%.

 - Rates of withdrawal, disability, retirement, mortality, and assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and 

   anticipated experience.

Actuarial cost method Entry Age

Amortization method Level Percent of Payroll Over an Open Period

Remaining amortization period 30 Years

Asset valuation method Market Value of Assets

Investment rate of return 3.00%, Net of Investment-Related Expense Including Price Inflation

Price inflation 2.75%

* - This schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional information will be added as it becomes available. 
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GENERAL FUND 

(85) 

 
The general fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund accounts for the normal 
recurring activities of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, public works, health, social 
services, recreation, education, etc.). These activities are funded principally by property taxes, user fees, 
and grants from other governmental units. 
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GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2022 
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
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Variance with

 Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Property Taxes:

Property Taxes, Current 40,375,390$      40,375,390$      40,533,369$      157,979$           

Arrears 308,024             308,024             316,937             8,913                 

Interest 171,965             171,965             231,091             59,126               

Suspense Tax Collections 35,495               35,495               12,545               (22,950)              

Liens 3,745                 3,745                 15,891               12,146               

Total Property Taxes 40,894,619        40,894,619        41,109,833        215,214             

Intergovernmental:

Telephone Line Grants 25,000               25,000               21,250               (3,750)                

Pilot: State Property 379,330             379,330             1,184,140          804,810             

Property Tax Relief-Elderly 85,000               85,000               -                         (85,000)              

Disabled Reimbursement 1,200                 1,200                 979                    (221)                   

Civil Preparedness Reimb 29,570               29,570               -                         (29,570)              

Additional Veterans Grant 3,500                 3,500                 3,562                 62                      

Miscellaneous State Grants -                         -                         -                         -                         

Pequot Fund 1,391,000          1,391,000          1,391,000          -                         

Dui Grant Reimbursement 10,000               10,000               544                    (9,456)                

Dispatch--Preston 25,000               25,000               25,000               -                         

LYS Grant Dep of Education 26,167               26,167               26,391               224                    

Pilot: Sr Housing Authority 8,200                 8,200                 8,422                 222                    

LYS Grant Enrichment 2,000                 2,000                 -                         (2,000)                

Federal Public Law 874 1,500,000          1,500,000          1,387,082          (112,918)            

Vo-Ag Stabilization Funding 695,736             695,736             997,429             301,693             

Education Cost Sharing 11,492,516        11,492,516        11,438,366        (54,150)              

Total Intergovernmental 15,674,219        15,674,219        16,484,165        809,946             

Charges for Services:

Aco Fees 1,500                 1,500                 1,495                 (5)                       

Miscellaneous 40,000               40,000               126,814             86,814               

Red Wolf Antennae Lease 55,000               55,000               56,900               1,900                 

Town Clerk Fees 104,000             104,000             166,039             62,039               

Zoning/Wetlands/Zba Fees 14,434               14,434               15,067               633                    

Assessor's Fees 300                    300                    521                    221                    

Assessor's Shared Services -                         -                         3,071                 3,071                 

Planning 5,000                 5,000                 5,818                 818                    

Other License/Permit Fee 350                    350                    2,111                 1,761                 

Town Clerk Dog License Fees 8,500                 8,500                 13,797               5,297                 

Building Permit Fees 100,000             100,000             235,027             135,027             

Employee Health Co-Premiums 500,000             500,000             504,373             4,373                 

WPCA - Contribution to Finance Office 40,000               40,000               40,000               -                         

Lester House Rent 11,000               11,000               11,000               -                         

Dispatch Regionalization 56,000               56,000               93,016               37,016               
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EXHIBIT A-1 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2022 
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 

 

(87) 

 
Variance with

 Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Charges for Services (Continued):

Fire Police Charges 8,000$               8,000$               2,260$               (5,740)$              

Police OT 50,000               50,000               88,460               38,460               

Permit Fee 11,900               11,900               3,535                 (8,365)                

Records Fee 1,360                 1,360                 2,039                 679                    

Senior Center Fees 11,000               11,000               10,812               (188)                   

Public Health Nursing Fees 900,000             900,000             636,929             (263,071)            

Tipping Fees 62,000               62,000               54,018               (7,982)                

Library Fees 3,000                 3,000                 538                    (2,462)                

Program Registration Fees 3,000                 3,000                 3,985                 985                    

Vo Ag Tuition 772,973             772,973             717,110             (55,863)              

Special Education Tuition 179,072             179,072             82,089               (96,983)              

Non-Resident Tuition 138,590             138,590             34,648               (103,942)            

Total Charges for Services 3,076,979          3,076,979          2,911,472          (165,507)            

Investment Income:

Interest on Deposits 80,000               80,000               43,051               (36,949)              

         Total Revenues 59,725,817        59,725,817        60,548,521        822,704             

Other Financing Sources:

Appropriation of Fund Balance -                         914,760             -                         (914,760)            

Transfers In:

Contribution from Other Funds 200,000             200,000             233,273 33,273               

LVES - Contributions for Services 120,000             120,000             120,000             -                         

Water and Sewer Funds 250,000             250,000             250,000             -                         

         Total Other Financing Sources 570,000             1,484,760          603,273             (881,487)            

         Total Revenues and Other

           Financing Sources 60,295,817$      61,210,577$      61,151,794$      (58,783)$            
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EXHIBIT A-2 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -  

BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
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Variance with

 Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

EXPENDITURES

General Government:

Town Council 177,922$           177,922$           198,566$           (20,644)$            
Mayor's Office 254,307             206,862             193,018             13,844               
Administrative Support 91,400               133,953             129,112             4,841                 
Legal Services 50,000               50,000               124,356             (74,356)              
Probate / Health District 10,575               10,575               8,130                 2,445                 
Registrar of Voters 41,648               41,648               39,550               2,098                 
Election Expense 24,100               24,100               17,922               6,178                 
Human Resources Staff 119,418             119,418             119,297             121                    
Land Use 302,043             302,043             248,401             53,642               
Town Clerk 143,711             143,711             143,077             634                    
Senior Center 96,830               96,830               81,144               15,686               

Total General Government 1,311,954          1,307,062          1,302,573          4,489                 

Department of Finance:

Finance Office 429,772             429,772             475,484             (45,712)              
Assessor's Office 134,305             134,305             130,593             3,712                 
Tax Collector 130,870             130,870             238,890             (108,020)            
Manager Information Systems 319,976             335,276             332,582             2,694                 

Total Department of Finance 1,014,923          1,030,223          1,177,549          (147,326)            

Commissions:

Conservation 3,575                 3,575                 600                    2,975                 
Historic District 26,225               26,225               21,121               5,104                 
Inland Wetland and Water Course 500                    500                    157                    343                    
Planning 3,000                 3,000                 -                         3,000                 
Economic Development 3,950                 3,950                 300                    3,650                 

Total Commissions 37,250               37,250               22,178               15,072               

Boards and Committees:

Zoning Board of Appeals 500                    500                    -                         500                    
Cemetery Committee 2,000                 2,000                 1,206                 794                    

Total Boards and Commissions 2,500                 2,500                 1,206                 1,294                 

Fixed Charges:

Health Care - General Government 965,789             965,789             838,685             127,104             
Health Care - Board of Education 4,254,907          4,254,907          5,116,660          (861,753)            
Health Care - Firefighters 111,000             111,000             101,305             9,695                 
Health Care - Teamster 344,448             344,448             336,908             7,540                 
Health Care  Waivers 254,908             254,908             220,806             34,102               
Benefits Consultant 20,000               20,000               5,000 15,000               
Worker's Compensation - General Government 136,941             136,941             98,146               38,795               
Worker's Compensation - Education 314,988             314,988             294,437             20,551               
Unemployment Compensation 7,500                 7,500                 -                         7,500                 
Retirement 1,131,235          1,131,235          1,131,235          -                         
Defined Contribution Plan 310,008             310,008             287,900             22,108               
Retirement Cash Out 75,000               75,000               68,947               6,053                 
Contractual Allowances 56,020               56,020               33,039               22,981               
Social Security 606,323             606,323             602,803             3,520                 
Salary and Benefit Adjustment 70,000               70,000               37,018               32,982               
Property Insurance 472,808             472,808             454,684             18,124               
Miscellaneous Employee Expenses 18,833               18,833               17,139               1,694                 
Life / A D & D / Disability Insurance 22,420               22,420               12,941               9,479                 

Total Fixed Charges 9,173,128          9,173,128          9,657,653          (484,525)            
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EXHIBIT A-2 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -  

BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
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Variance with

 Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Public Safety:

Police 2,710,897$        2,710,897$        2,726,757$        (15,860)$            

Gales Ferry Fire 200,700             200,700             197,874             2,826                 

Ledyard Fire Company 121,430             121,430             111,775             9,655                 

Dispatch 547,725             547,725             676,417             (128,692)            

Fire Marshal 90,318               90,318               82,449               7,869                 

Administrator of Emergency Services 404,860             404,860             410,278             (5,418)                

Emergency Management 20,450               20,450               18,894               1,556                 

Animal Control 77,703               77,703               82,165               (4,462)                
Total Public Safety 4,174,083          4,174,083          4,306,609          (132,526)            

Health and Welfare

Department of Health:

Health District 110,973             110,973             110,973             -                         

Public Health Nursing 875,603             875,603             723,700             151,903             

School Nursing 344,118             344,118             334,439             9,679                 
Total Department of Health 1,330,694          1,330,694          1,169,112          161,582             

Department of Social Services 97,265               97,265               93,869               3,396                 

Total Health and Welfare 1,427,959          1,427,959          1,262,981          164,978             

Public Works:

Administration 185,816             183,716             182,662             1,054                 

Highway 1,069,841          1,058,167          1,052,845          5,322                 

Vehicle Maintenance 272,448             288,899             292,542             (3,643)                

Road Upkeep 143,300             181,641             181,627             14                      

Drainage Improvement 6,000                 8,345                 8,345                 -                         

Property Maintenance 80,500               90,129               90,128               1                        

Sanitation 1,048,763          1,020,771          1,017,154          3,617                 
Total Public Works 2,806,668          2,831,668          2,825,303          6,365                 

Library 523,622             523,622             528,633             (5,011)                

Parks and Recreation 461,401             465,556             459,633             5,923                 

Education 33,671,969        33,671,969        33,223,716        448,253             

Debt Service 4,432,478          3,874,360          3,753,299          121,061             

      Total Expenditures 59,037,935        58,519,380        58,521,333        (1,953)                

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers Out - Capital Nonrecurring 1,257,882          2,133,079          2,133,079          -                         

Transfers Out - Water and Sewer for Debt Service -                         558,118             540,757             17,361               

       Total Other Financing Sources Uses 1,257,882          2,691,197          2,673,836          17,361               

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 60,295,817$      61,210,577$      61,195,169$      15,408$             
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
 
 

(91) 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to 
expenditure for particular purposes. 

Library Commission – This fund is used to account for the library support services.  

Animal Control – This fund is used to account for animal control related activity.  

Cafeteria – This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the operations of the School 
Lunch Programs. 

Education Grants – This fund is used to account for the activities of various state and federal 
educational related grants.  

STARS Fund – This fund is used to account for the STARS Program. 

Student Activities – This fund is used to account for the various student activity accounts.  

Student Scholarships – This fund is used to account for the various student scholarships.  

Sawmill Restoration – This fund is used to account for the sawmill restoration.  

Miscellaneous Grants and Donations – This fund is used to account for miscellaneous state grant 
activities.  

Senior Center – This fund is used to account for the Senior Center activities.  

Parks and Recreation – This fund is used to account for the activity of various recreation programs 
sponsored by the Town.  

Mill Rate Stabilization Fund – This fund is used to account for bond premiums to be used to pay 
future debt service.  

Housing Rehab Program – This fund is used to account for housing rehab grants and related loans. 

Capital Project Funds 

Town Aid Road Fund – This fund is used to account for the improvements of Town roads. 

Permanent Funds 

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only 
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting Town’s programs. 
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EXHIBIT B-1 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 

(92) 

 
Special Revenue Funds

Library Animal Education STARS Student Student Sawmill

Commission Control Cafeteria Grants Fund Activities Scholarships Restoration

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -$                     -$                     549,500$         2,851,091$      14,225$           476,171$         212,686$         -$                     

Receivables, Net:

Loans -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Due from Other Governments   -                       -                       313,346           190,178           -                       -                       -                       -                       

Other Receivables -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Due from Other Funds 22,843             16,669             -                       -                       1,680               -                       -                       2,960               

Prepaid Expenses -                       -                       78,222 15,000 -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Assets 22,843$           16,669$           941,068$         3,056,269$      15,905$           476,171$         212,686$         2,960$             

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 864$                -$                     399,458$         106,004$         2,069$             9,884$             -$                     -$                     

Accrued Payroll and Other Liabilities -                       -                       -                       37,911             -                       -                       -                       -                       

Due to Other Funds -                       -                       10,951             2,369,295        -                       918                  -                       -                       

Unearned Revenue -                       -                       19,610             229,843           -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Liabilities 864                  -                       430,019           2,743,053        2,069               10,802             -                       -                       

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unavailable Revenue -                       -                       -                       123,291           -                       -                       -                       -                       

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable -                       -                       78,222             15,000             -                       -                       -                       -                       

Restricted -                       -                       432,827           174,925           -                       465,369           212,686           -                       

Committed 21,979             16,669             -                       -                       13,836             -                       -                       2,960               

Total Fund Balances 21,979             16,669             511,049           189,925           13,836             465,369           212,686           2,960               

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 

  and Fund Balances 22,843$           16,669$           941,068$         3,056,269$      15,905$           476,171$         212,686$         2,960$             
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EXHIBIT B-1 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 

(93) 

 
Capital Permanent

Special Revenue Funds Projects Funds

Miscellaneous Mill Rate Housing

Grants and Senior Parks and Stabilization Rehab Town Aid Endowment

Donations Center  Recreation Fund Program Road Fund Total

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     4,103,673$      

Receivables, Net:

Loans -                       -                       -                       -                       714,100           -                       -                       714,100           

Due from Other Governments   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       503,524           

Other Receivables 4,062               10,828             4,538               -                       -                       -                       -                       19,428             

Due from Other Funds 127,334           9,019               258,103           3,430,279        132,014           25,813             68,867             4,095,581        

Other Assets -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       93,222             

Total Assets 131,396$         19,847$           262,641$         3,430,279$      846,114$         25,813$           68,867$           9,529,528$      

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable -$                     1,808$             13,196$           -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     533,283$         

Accrued Payroll and Other Liabilities -                       -                       16,797             -                       -                       -                       -                       54,708             

Due to Other Funds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,381,164        

Unearned Revenue 7,913               -                       -                       -                       100,000           -                       -                       357,366           

Total Liabilities 7,913               1,808               29,993             -                       100,000           -                       -                       3,326,521        

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unavailable Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       714,100           -                       -                       837,391           

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable 41,914             135,136           

Restricted 123,483           -                       -                       -                       32,014             25,813             26,953             1,494,070        

Committed 18,039             232,648           3,430,279        3,736,410        

Total Fund Balances 123,483           18,039             232,648           3,430,279        32,014             25,813             68,867             5,365,616        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 

  and Fund Balances 131,396$         19,847$           262,641$         3,430,279$      846,114$         25,813$           68,867$           9,529,528$      
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EXHIBIT B-2 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
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Special Revenue Funds

Library Animal Education STARS Student Student Sawmill

Commission Control Cafeteria Grants Fund Activities Scholarships Restoration

REVENUES

Intergovernmental Revenues 1,243$             -$                     1,687,474$      3,737,431$      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Charges for Services 5,085               -                       73,823             -                       83,023             490,172           -                       -                       

Investment Income 99                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       373                  -                       

Contributions 19,280             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       24,503             -                       

Other -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Revenues 25,707             -                       1,761,297        3,737,431        83,023             490,172           24,876             -                       

EXPENDITURES

General Government  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Public Works  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Health and Welfare  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Library 29,846             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Parks and Recreation  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Education   -                       -                       1,361,083        3,909,738        82,751             480,415           40,266             -                       

Interest and Other Charges

Total Expenditures 29,846             -                       1,361,083        3,909,738        82,751             480,415           40,266             -                       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 

  EXPENDITURES (4,139)              -                       400,214           (172,307)          272                  9,757               (15,390)            -                       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Refunding Bonds Issuance -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Premiums -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Transfers In -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Transfers Out -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,139)              -                       400,214           (172,307)          272                  9,757               (15,390)            -                       

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year, as restated 26,118             16,669             110,835           362,232           13,564             455,612           228,076           2,960               

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR 21,979$           16,669$           511,049$         189,925$         13,836$           465,369$         212,686$         2,960$             

 
 

123



EXHIBIT B-2 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
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Capital Permanent

Special Revenue Funds Projects Funds

Miscellaneous Mill Rate Housing

Grants and Senior Parks and Stabilization Rehab Town Aid Endowment

Donations Center  Recreation Fund Program Road Fund Total

REVENUES

Intergovernmental Revenues 2,088$             1,690$             -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     5,429,926$      

Charges for Services -                       28,763             205,956           -                       5,886               -                       -                       892,708           

Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       129                  -                       386                  987                  

Contributions 82,607             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       126,390           

Other -                       -                       -                       875,000           -                       -                       -                       875,000           

Total Revenues 84,695             30,453             205,956           875,000           6,015               -                       386                  7,325,011        

EXPENDITURES

General Government  41,751             -                       -                       -                       37,236             -                       -                       78,987             

Public Works  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       450                  450                  

Health and Welfare  -                       28,517             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       28,517             

Library -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       29,846             

Parks and Recreation  -                       -                       169,285           -                       -                       -                       -                       169,285           

Education   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       5,874,253        

Interest and Other Charges 12,956 12,956             

Total Expenditures 41,751             28,517             169,285           12,956             37,236             -                       450                  6,194,294        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 

  EXPENDITURES 42,944             1,936               36,671             862,044           (31,221)            -                       (64)                   1,130,717        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds Issuance -                       -                       -                       2,605,000 -                       -                       -                       2,605,000        

Premiums -                       -                       -                       695,458           -                       -                       -                       695,458           

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent -                       -                       -                       (2,867,881)       -                       -                       -                       (2,867,881)       

Transfers In -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Transfers Out (4,155)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (4,155)              

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,155)              -                       -                       432,577           -                       -                       -                       428,422           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 38,789             1,936               36,671             1,294,621        (31,221)            -                       (64)                   1,559,139        

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year, as restated 84,694             16,103             195,977           2,135,658        63,235             25,813             68,931             3,806,477        

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR 123,483$         18,039$           232,648$         3,430,279$      32,014$           25,813$           68,867$           5,365,616$      
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EXHIBIT C 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED, COLLECTED, AND OUTSTANDING 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
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Lawful Corrections Collections

Grand List Uncollected Transfers Adjusted Interest Uncollected

of Taxes Current to Tax Liens and Taxes

October 1, July 01, 2021 Levy Additions Deletions Suspense Levy Taxes Other Fees Total June 30, 2022

2005 193$                  -$                       -$                       193$                  -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

2006 572                    -                         -                         -                         -                         572                    -                         -                         -                         572                     

2007 589                    -                         -                         -                         -                         589                    -                         -                         -                         589                     

2008 1,680                 -                         -                         -                         -                         1,680                 -                         595                    595                    1,680                  

2009 2,409                 -                         -                         -                         -                         2,409                 -                         -                         -                         2,409                  

2010 3,386                 -                         -                         -                         -                         3,386                 739                    398                    1,137                 2,647                  

2011 3,386                 -                         -                         -                         -                         3,386                 739                    1,232                 1,971                 2,647                  

2012 3,711                 -                         -                         -                         -                         3,711                 746                    1,110                 1,856                 2,965                  

2013 4,442                 -                         -                         -                         -                         4,442                 1,300                 1,543                 2,843                 3,142                  

2014 4,518                 -                         -                         66                      -                         4,452                 1,290                 2,066                 3,356                 3,162                  

2015 5,019                 -                         -                         61                      -                         4,958                 1,165                 1,689                 2,854                 3,793                  

2016 7,744                 -                         -                         62                      -                         7,682                 1,299                 1,204                 2,503                 6,383                  

2017 74,817               -                         -                         785                    -                         74,032               13,457               8,019                 21,476               60,575                

2018 145,032             -                         268                    5,796                 -                         139,504             37,008               14,430               51,438               102,496              

2019 401,971             -                         3,761                 16,848               -                         388,884             212,524             44,400               256,924             176,360              

Suspense -                         -                         13,126               -                         -                         13,126               13,126               16,968               30,094               -                         

Total Prior Years 659,469             -                         17,155               23,811               -                         652,813             283,393             93,654               377,047             369,420              

2020 -                         41,104,759        65,437               217,550             -                         40,952,646        40,467,661        145,836             40,613,497        484,985              

Total All Years 659,469$           41,104,759$      82,592$             241,361$           -$                       41,605,459$      40,751,054$      239,490$           40,990,544$      854,405$            
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TABLE 1 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 
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2022 2021* 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Governmental Activities:

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 63,467,397$  64,912,397$  73,616,004$  72,488,686$  59,139,003$  36,887,375$  32,446,476$  30,699,193$  30,121,941$  43,235,275$  

  Restricted 2,250,084     1,509,012     71,388          114,322        98,025          89,688          86,024          82,880          81,737          273,482        

  Unrestricted 3,199,312     (530,422)       (10,878,190)  (10,428,507)  (16,830,836)  (4,053,889)    1,841,913     4,930,683     6,129,655     3,780,534     

Total Governmental Activities Net Position 68,916,793$  65,890,987$  62,809,202$  62,174,501$  42,406,192$  32,923,174$  34,374,413$  35,712,756$  36,333,333$  47,289,291$  

Business-Type Activities:

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 19,260,238$  19,304,065$  19,376,229$  19,355,101$  19,307,017$  19,026,596$  17,756,275$  17,456,043$  20,710,643$  17,645,971$  

  Restricted 

  Unrestricted 2,306,400     2,624,599     2,695,743     2,971,057     3,176,314     3,663,267     4,571,446     5,094,584     4,207,920     3,119,905     

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position 21,566,638$  21,928,664$  22,071,972$  22,326,158$  22,483,331$  22,689,863$  22,327,721$  22,550,627$  24,918,563$  20,765,876$  

Primary Government:

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 82,727,635$  84,216,462$  92,992,233$  91,843,787$  78,446,020$  55,913,971$  50,202,751$  48,155,236$  50,832,584$  60,881,246$  

  Restricted 2,250,084     1,509,012     71,388          114,322        98,025          89,688          86,024          82,880          81,737          273,482        

  Unrestricted 5,505,712     2,094,177     (8,182,447)    (7,457,450)    (13,654,522)  (390,622)       6,413,359     10,025,267    10,337,575    6,900,439     

Total Primary Government Net Position 90,483,431$  87,819,651$  84,881,174$  84,500,659$  64,889,523$  55,613,037$  56,702,134$  58,263,383$  61,251,896$  68,055,167$  

Note: Schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting

* GASB No 84 Fiduciary Activities  was implemented in FY2021

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 2 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

 

(99) 

 

2022 2021* 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

EXPENSES

Governmental Activities:  

General Government   12,769,431$  11,207,407$  4,621,025$    4,139,867$    4,624,570$    3,122,791$    3,081,618$    2,936,177$    3,170,329$    2,923,002$    
Public Safety   4,969,198     4,689,253     5,530,934     5,695,733     5,510,755     4,949,467     4,522,182     4,334,829     4,625,707      4,594,102     
Public Works  4,381,495     3,809,749     5,231,313     4,746,149     4,999,027     4,861,303     3,807,900     3,677,081     5,471,587      4,380,592     
Health and Welfare   1,288,537     1,254,436     1,591,962     1,659,027     1,687,769     1,687,350     1,695,703     1,683,992     1,670,310      1,851,934     
Library 558,913        548,815        758,924        803,364        906,984        757,668        729,312        698,213        726,647         796,715        
Parks and Recreation 707,451        540,700        711,346        747,888        781,324        760,986        744,048        675,248        761,364         716,999        
Education 45,505,397    49,728,084    51,526,083    42,487,065    47,423,080    49,021,396    45,260,236    45,683,588    44,840,710    40,823,987    
Interest and Fiscal Charges   1,119,207     1,179,715     1,252,820     1,313,381     1,426,681     243,817        660,664        890,802        272,448         541,918        

Total Governmental Activities Expenses   71,299,629    72,958,159    71,224,407    61,592,474    67,360,190    65,404,778    60,501,663    60,579,930    61,539,102    56,629,249    
  Business-Type Activities:  

Water Department 1,550,362     1,356,610     1,351,842     1,305,576     1,190,116     1,453,638     1,407,032     1,080,214     1,794,011      1,263,218     
Sewer Department 708,209        639,656        674,686        710,371        700,326        573,881        916,605        598,865        781,015         635,010        

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses  2,258,571     1,996,266     2,026,528     2,015,947     1,890,442     2,027,519     2,323,637     1,679,079     2,575,026      1,898,228     
 

Total Primary Government Expenses   73,558,200    74,954,425    73,250,935    63,608,421    69,250,632    67,432,297    62,825,300    62,259,009    64,114,128    58,527,477    

PROGRAM REVENUES

Governmental Activities:  

Charges for Services:   

General Government   2,093,329     1,566,483     1,281,218     1,070,175     691,744        576,366        550,280        533,628        472,663         371,719        
Public Safety   188,899        159,766        162,223        114,368        134,132        263,104        107,698        125,591        150,880         595,741        
Public Works  137,012        159,256        128,979        173,837        73,928          1,039,560     1,090,729     1,032,470     900,189         753,692        
Health and Welfare   676,504        891,434        962,411        855,802        960,254        92,146          603,191        475,416        551,365         196,529        
Library 5,623            6,769            6,731            13,926          33,960          39,029          15,178          14,300          16,404           16,088          
Parks and Recreation 332,649        229,943        186,164        291,033        163,572        217,812        213,244        173,969        178,380         215,320        
Education 1,480,865     1,397,399     1,481,414     1,654,133     1,605,456     1,769,239     1,721,473     1,721,606     1,805,418      2,144,392     
Operating Grants and Contributions   23,589,976    28,983,573    24,907,913    18,704,867    22,409,800    23,698,273    21,479,401    21,730,457    21,194,474    18,976,481    
Capital Grants and Contributions   1,153,532     494,782        1,261,195     18,915,861    20,304,000    1,218,892     1,441,748     948,414        1,772,678      738,645        

Total Governmental Activities Program   

  Revenues   29,658,389    33,889,405    30,378,248    41,794,002    46,376,846    28,914,421    27,222,942    26,755,851    27,042,451    24,008,607    
Business-Type Activities:   

Water Department 1,145,827     1,171,007     1,090,737     1,059,321     1,105,823     1,143,249     1,003,787     1,030,139     920,860         882,606        
Sewer Department 483,825        469,857        426,943        493,517        448,041        460,784        463,464        529,882        1,845,186      504,363        

Total Business-Type Activities Program     

  Revenues   1,629,652     1,640,864     1,517,680     1,552,838     1,553,864     1,604,033     1,467,251     1,560,021     2,766,046      1,386,969     

Total Governmental Activities Program 

  Revenues 31,288,041    35,530,269    31,895,928    43,346,840    47,930,710    30,518,454    28,690,193    28,315,872    29,808,497    25,395,576    

NET REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Governmental Activities   (41,641,240)  (39,068,754)  (40,846,159)  (19,798,472)  (20,983,344)  (36,490,357)  (33,278,721)  (33,824,079)  (34,496,651)   (32,620,642)  
Business-Type Activities  (628,919)       (355,402)       (508,848)       (463,109)       (336,578)       (423,486)       (856,386)       (119,058)       191,020         (511,259)       

Total Governmental Net Expense  (42,270,159)  (39,424,156)  (41,355,007)  (20,261,581)  (21,319,922)  (36,913,843)  (34,135,107)  (33,943,137)  (34,305,631)   (33,131,901)  

* Note - Starting with Fiscal Year 2021, fixed charges are reported with General Government function

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 2 
(CONTINUED) 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

 

(100) 

 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER 

  CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities:  

Property Taxes  41,308,872$  39,220,278$  39,205,406$  37,932,843$  36,483,155$  34,710,047$  34,148,082$  33,445,806$  31,429,139$  30,538,621$  
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to   

  Specific Programs  2,588,103     1,781,932     1,784,591     1,291,689     2,002,079     1,189,178     936,306        949,184        1,122,693      1,766,584     
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 59,607          406,861        (5,328,717)     
Unrestricted Investment Earnings  44,038          25,011          296,310        525,804        177,048        55,535          39,923          36,723          34,772           21,849          
Miscellaneous  928,065        52,275          38,842          118,512        36,640          57,471          143,447        166,004        241,553         100,628        
Transfers  (261,639)       (209,088)       (251,150)       (302,067)       (326,308)       (785,737)       (627,593)       2,160,575     (3,958,747)     (625,249)       

Total Governmental Activities  44,667,046    40,870,408    41,480,860    39,566,781    38,372,614    35,226,494    34,640,165    36,758,292    23,540,693    31,802,433    
Business-Type Activities:  

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to   

  Specific Programs  2,235            
Unrestricted Investment Earnings  3,019            3,006            3,512            3,869            3,945            2,891            2,887            2,888            2,920             2,458            
Transfers  261,639        209,088        251,150        302,067        326,308        785,737        627,593        (2,160,575)    3,958,747      625,249        

Total Business-Type Activities 266,893        212,094        254,662        305,936        330,253        788,628        630,480        (2,157,687)    3,961,667      627,707        

Total Governmental Activities 44,933,939$  41,082,502$  41,735,522$  39,872,717$  38,702,867$  36,015,122$  35,270,645$  34,600,605$  27,502,360$  32,430,140$  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities  3,025,806$    1,801,654$    634,701$      19,768,309$  17,389,270$  (1,263,863)$  1,361,444$    2,934,213$    (10,955,958)$ (818,209)$     
Business-Type Activities  (362,026)       (143,308)       (254,186)       (157,173)       (6,325)           365,142        (225,906)       (2,276,745)    4,152,687      116,448        

TOTAL CHANGES IN NET POSITION 2,663,780$    1,658,346$    380,515$      19,611,136$  17,382,945$  (898,721)$     1,135,538$    657,468$      (6,803,271)$   (701,761)$     

Note: Schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 3 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

 

(101) 

 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

REVENUES

Property Taxes, Interest, and Lien Fees     41,109,833$  39,445,437$  38,936,179$  37,774,706$  36,825,006$   34,668,601$  34,123,182$  33,216,692$  31,529,198$  30,453,940$  

Intergovernmental Revenues     28,684,488    24,355,465    25,402,208    28,969,440    44,091,052     25,650,281    23,962,577    23,638,791    23,887,204    21,193,642    

Charges for Services 4,243,039     4,411,050     4,209,140     4,173,274     3,663,046       3,975,973     4,301,793     4,076,981     4,177,538     4,223,724     

Investment Income 44,038          25,011          296,310        525,804        177,048          55,555          39,923          36,723          34,772          18,594          

Contributions 126,390        117,677        45,940          130,944        624,827          463,312        33,931          11,154          11,708          54,788          

Other 938,317        52,275          38,842          118,512        406,290          64,354          109,516        154,850        200,180        100,628        

Total Revenues  75,146,105    68,406,915    68,928,619    71,692,680    85,787,269     64,878,076    62,570,922    61,135,191    59,840,600    56,045,316    

EXPENDITURES

Current:  

General Government   12,267,331    11,740,743    11,701,957    11,428,963    10,781,382     11,065,212    11,421,735    11,395,341    9,317,858     8,541,872     

Public Safety   4,305,814     4,142,334     4,065,690     3,981,471     3,811,908       3,767,615     3,365,429     3,324,497     3,247,858     3,266,158     

Public Works  2,825,753     2,691,287     2,666,871     2,629,205     2,595,235       2,588,262     2,825,680     2,831,386     3,545,751     2,517,318     

Health and Welfare   1,261,669     1,236,386     1,300,428     1,320,407     1,388,976       1,394,104     1,362,039     1,355,217     1,368,248     1,228,034     

Library 558,479        527,746        506,589        523,632        628,029          621,017        576,683        558,933        570,839        551,501        

Parks and Recreation 628,610        465,675        572,454        658,100        599,313          612,973        597,542        541,185        563,662        521,497        

Education 44,511,607    41,065,792    40,925,725    35,637,527    41,129,668     40,765,307    37,382,151    37,491,688    36,868,837    34,667,630    

Capital Outlay 3,172,664     3,106,345     8,374,088     22,917,260    33,434,801     9,013,561     7,893,925     3,301,764     2,872,806     8,020,332     

Debit Service 4,189,044     4,172,901     4,033,075     4,175,013     2,887,736       1,845,342     1,690,143     1,771,719     1,700,532     1,628,076     

Total Expenditures  73,720,971    69,149,209    74,146,877    83,271,578    97,257,048     71,673,393    67,115,327    62,571,730    60,056,391    60,942,418    

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

  OVER EXPENDITURES 1,425,134     (742,294)       (5,218,258)    (11,578,898)  (11,469,779)    (6,795,317)    (4,544,405)    (1,436,539)    (215,791)       (4,897,102)    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds and Loans  3,000,000     4,000,000     -                    6,000,000     -                      15,000,000    -                    -                    -                    4,705,000     

Issuance of Refunding Bonds 2,605,000     -                    -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Issuance of Capital Lease 204,820        -                    -                    126,560        -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Premium on Issuance of Debt 695,458        596,173        243,978        1,002,234     53,750            1,480,334     -                    -                    -                    -                    

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent     (2,867,881)    -                    -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Sale of Assets 59,607          -                    500,000        182,750        -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Transfers in from Other Funds 2,736,352     2,673,606     5,190,773     2,636,771     1,825,343       1,790,559     1,742,665     4,887,592     1,370,883     1,339,551     

Transfers Out to Other Funds (2,797,991)    (2,857,694)    (5,141,923)    (2,938,838)    (2,151,651)      (2,264,513)    (2,370,258)    (1,705,906)    (1,821,874)    (1,964,800)    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)  3,635,365     4,412,085     792,828        7,009,477     (272,558)         16,006,380    (627,593)       3,181,686     (450,991)       4,079,751     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5,060,499$    3,669,791$    (4,425,430)$  (4,569,421)$  (11,742,337)$  9,211,063$    (5,171,998)$  1,745,147$    (666,782)$     (817,351)$     

Debit Service as a Percentage to Noncapital

   Expenditures  5.94% 6.32% 6.13% 6.92% 4.52% 2.95% 2.85% 2.99% 2.97% 3.08%

Note: Schedule prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting

FISCAL YEAR
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TABLE 4 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
PROPERTY TAX RATES, LEVIES, AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

(102) 

 
Percentage

Fiscal General Current Net Total of Total Taxes Percentage of

Year Fund Net Tax Percentage Delinquent Net Taxes Collected Outstanding Delinquent

Ended Mill Rate Adjusted Collections at of Levy Tax Collected- to Levy Delinquent Taxes to 

June 30, Property Tax Levy (1) June 30, Collected Collections (1) All Years All Years Taxes Levy

2013 27.93                30,378,451$     29,935,084$     98.54 % 231,801$          30,166,885$     99.30 % 628,615$          2.07 %

2014 28.20                30,941,463       30,563,639       98.78 639,389            31,203,028       100.85 564,648            1.82

2015 29.90                33,333,859       32,784,407       98.35 263,359            33,047,766       99.14 564,648            1.69

2016 30.40                34,998,574       33,617,700       96.05 309,416            33,927,116       96.94 701,758            2.01

2017 31.90                34,614,907       34,190,219       98.77 283,453            34,473,672       99.59 746,620            2.16

2018 32.54                36,544,091       36,166,533       98.97 364,758            36,531,291       99.96 551,302            1.51

2019 34.29                37,725,417       37,219,477       98.66 269,471            37,488,948       99.37 710,293            1.88

2020 35.06                38,919,035       38,183,225       98.11 421,892            38,605,117       99.19 1,014,705         2.61

2021 34.97                39,021,528       38,619,557       98.97 618,048            39,237,605       100.55 659,469            1.69

2022 33.60                40,952,646       40,467,661       98.82 283,393            40,751,054       99.51 854,405            2.09

(1) Include over collection of taxes and suspense collections

Source:  Town audit reports
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TABLE 5 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION 

JUNE 30, 2022 
(UNAUDITED) 

 

(103) 

 
Total Tax Collections, (including Interest, Penalties, and Late Payment of Taxes)

Year Ended June 30, 2021:

Town of Ledyard 38,769,151$     

Gales Ferry District 19,125              

Base for Establishing Debt 

  Limit 38,788,276$     

General Urban Pension

Purposes Schools Sewers Renewal Deficit Total

Debt Limitation: 

2.25 Times Base 87,273,621$    -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      87,273,621$     

4.50 Times Base -                      174,547,242     -                        -                        -                        174,547,242     

3.75 Times Base -                      -                        145,456,035     -                        -                        145,456,035     

3.25 Times Base -                      -                        -                        126,061,897     -                        126,061,897     

3 Times Base -                      -                        -                        -                        116,364,828     116,364,828     

Total Debt Limitation 87,273,621      174,547,242     145,456,035     126,061,897     116,364,828     649,703,623     

Indebtedness: 

Bonds and Notes 7,658,538        24,933,000       1,140,999         -                        -                        33,732,537       

Bond Anticipation Notes -                      9,700,000         -                        -                        -                        9,700,000         

Authorized But Unissued Debt -                      8,177,948         -                        -                        -                        8,177,948         

Less: Anticipated Grant Proceeds -                      -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Indebtedness 7,658,538        42,810,948       1,140,999         -         -         51,610,485       

Debt Limitation in Excess 

 of Outstanding and  

 Authorized Debt 79,615,083$    131,736,294$   144,315,036$   126,061,897$   116,364,828$   598,093,138$   

Notes:

1.  In no case shall total indebtedness exceed seven times annual receipts from taxation, or 271,517,932     

2.  There is no overlapping debt for the Town of Ledyard

3.  Authorized but unissued debt is reduced by the total anticipated amount of the State of Connecticut School Construction 

     Grants of $27,000,000

4.  Water related debt of $1,832,463 has been excluded from the calculation.
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TABLE 6 

TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

 

(104) 

 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Debt limit 271,517,932$  268,304,771$  263,864,832$  257,462,373$  242,831,722$  242,831,722$  239,114,337$  232,901,389$  221,191,985$  212,581,523$  

Total net debt applicable to limit 51,610,485      47,132,262      49,476,988      50,608,959      82,167,321      82,167,321      21,855,250      17,992,400      14,442,500      11,793,224      

Legal Debt Margin 219,907,447$  221,172,509$  214,387,844$  206,853,414$  160,664,401$  160,664,401$  217,259,087$  214,908,989$  206,749,485$  200,788,299$  

Total Net Debt Applicable

to the Limit  as a Percentage 19.01% 17.57% 18.75% 19.66% 33.84% 33.84% 9.14% 7.73% 6.53% 5.55%

  of Debt Limit

Note: The State of Connecticut General Statutes require that in no event shall the total debt of the Town exceed 

           seven (7) times the annual receipts from taxation.  The calculation of the 2021 debt limit can be found on 

           Table 5 of this report.

FISCAL YEAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE,  

AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF  
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. The Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under 
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance with the requirements of 
each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 
 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 

 obtain an understanding of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated December 27, 2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
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The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Federal

Assistance Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing Pass-Through Entity Through to
 Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Subrecipients Expenditures

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster: 
National School Lunch Program 10.555 12060-SDE64370-20560 77,623$       
National School Lunch Program 10.555 12060-SDE64370-20560 1,048,050    
National School Lunch Program 10.555 12060-SDE64370-23085-2022 4,193           
School Breakfast Program 10.553 12060-SDE64370-20508 380,962       

1,510,828$   

State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition 10.560 12060-SDE64370-23126-2022 47,873          

P-EBT Local Admin 10.649 12060-SDE64370-29802-2022 -$                 3,070             

Total United States Department of Agriculture 1,561,771     

United States Department of Transportation
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation: 

Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 12062-DOT57513-22091 544                

United States Department of Education 
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Department of Education:

Special Education Cluster (IDEA): 
Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 12060-SDE64370-20977-2022 472,678       
Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 12060-SDE64370-20977-2021 210,209       
Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 12060-SDE64370-20977-2020 20,000         
Special Education_Preschool Grants 84.173 12060-SDE64370-20983-2022 20,243         
Special Education_Preschool Grants 84.173 12060-SDE64370-20983-2021 -                   

723,130        
Education Stabilization Fund: 

COVID-19 ARP Special Education Grants 84.425U 12060-SDE64370-23083-2022 14,898         
COVID-19 American Rescue Plan - Emergen 84.425U 12060-SDE64370-29636-2022 669,210       
COVID-19 Preschool Grants (ARPA) 84.425U 12060-SDE64370-29684-2022 10,050         
COVID-19 ESSERF K-12 Fund 84.425D 12060-SDE64370-29571-2022 584,729       
COVID-19 ESSERF K-12 Fund 84.425D 12060-SDE64370-29571-2022 65,000         
COVID-19 Elementary & Secondary School 84.425W 12060-SDE64370-29650-2022 8,016           

1,351,903     

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 12060-SDE64370-20679-2022 230,729       
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 12060-SDE64370-20679-2021 34,822         

265,551        

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 12060-SDE64370-20858-2022 12,203         
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 12060-SDE64370-20858-2021 15,000         

27,203          

Title IV - Student Support 84.424 12060-SDE64370-22854-2022 1,500           
Title IV - Student Support 84.424 12060-SDE64370-22854-2021 10,089         

11,589          

Direct:

Impact Aid 84.041 1,261,512     

Total United States Department of Education -                   3,640,888     

Total Federal
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Federal
Assistance Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing Pass-Through Entity Through to
 Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Subrecipients Expenditures

Total Federal

United States Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Department of Rehabilitation Services: 

Aging Cluster: 
Special Programs for the Aging_Title III, Part B_Grants for Support 93.044 12060-SDR63901-29556 -$          2,300$          

United States Department of Homeland Security 
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection: 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disaster 97.036 12060-DPS32990-21891 -  61,808      

United States National Endowment for the Humanities 
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Connecticut State Library: 

45.312 12060-CSL66011-29642 -  17,836      National Leadership Grants

United States Department of the Treasury
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management:

COVID-19 ARPA Local Fiscal Recovery EXP 21.027 12060-OPM20600-29669 -  58,126      

United States Election Assistance Commission
Passed Through the State of Connecticut Office of the Secretary of State: 

Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 12060-SOS12500-21465 -  9,223   

Total Federal Expenditures -$          5,352,496$   
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(7) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal award activity of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The information in the Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Town of 
Ledyard, Connecticut, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, 
changes in fund balance, changes in net position or cash flows of the Town of Ledyard, 
Connecticut. 
 
Basis of Accounting 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the 
Uniform Guidance for all awards. Under these principles certain types of expenditures are 
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
 

NOTE 2 INDIRECT COST RECOVERY 

The Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost 
rate provided under Section 200.414 of the Uniform Guidance. 
 
 

NOTE 3 NONCASH AWARDS 

Donated commodities in the amount of $77,623 are included in the Department of 
Agriculture’s National School Lunch Program, Assistance Listing #10.555. The amount 
represents the market value of commodities received. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Ledyard, 
Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town 
of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We identified a certain 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
as item 2022-001 that we consider to be significant deficiency. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s Response to Finding 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town of 
Ledyard, Connecticut’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s response 
was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

 
Financial Statements 
 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 
 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

 Material weakness(es) identified?   yes         x  no 
 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?         x yes           none reported 
 

3. Noncompliance material to financial  
statements noted?   yes         x  no 

 
Federal Awards  
 

1. Internal control over major federal programs: 
 

 Material weakness(es) identified?   yes         x  no 
 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?   yes         x  none reported 
 

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on  
compliance for federal programs: Unmodified 

 
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are 

required to be reported in accordance 
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?   yes         x  no 

 
Identification of Major Federal Programs 
 
 Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
 
 10.553/10.555 Child Nutrition Cluster 
 
 84.425D/84.425U/84.425W Education Stabilization Fund 
  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between  
Type A and Type B programs: $      750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?           x  yes             no 
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 
Finding: 2022-001 
 
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 
Condition and Context 
The Ledyard Board of Education does not have adequate controls in place to ensure that all cash 
disbursement expenditures are being captured in the correct period. There were invoices that were 
paid, during fiscal year 2022, that related to services to be provided to the Board of Education in a 
future fiscal year. This resulted in the understatement of prepaid items and overstatement to 
expenditures at June 30, 2022 totaling $345,204 and $93,222 within the general fund and aggregate 
remaining funds, respectively. 
 
Cause 
Internal controls were not in place to ensure prepaid items and expenditures were properly supported 
and reported in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  
 
Effect 
The identified errors required an adjusting journal entry to be posted to the general fund, BOE grant 
fund, and school food service fund to increase prepaid items and decrease expenditures.  
 
Repeat Finding 
No 
 
Recommendation 
We recommend management evaluate the current financial reporting processes and controls to ensure 
that controls are in place to present the external financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials  
Management agrees with this finding. 
 
 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 

 
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a). 
 

 

146



147



Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 
Page 2 

x Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on the estimated useful lives of
governmental activities and business-type activities capital assets, which are based on history
and industry standards. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to determine the
useful lives in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken
as a whole.

x Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical taxes, water
and sewer revenues, historical loss levels, and an analysis of the collectability of individual
accounts. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

x Management’s estimate of the lease liability is based on assumptions related to the Town’s
incremental borrowing rate. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial statement disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Significant unusual transactions 

We identified no significant unusual transactions. 

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Uncorrected misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The 
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has 
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. If uncorrected misstatements exist, include the following paragraph:  

Uncorrected misstatements or the matters underlying uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause 
future-period financial statements to be materially misstated, even if management has concluded that the 
uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements under audit. 

Corrected misstatements  

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were 
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

The attached schedule summarizes all misstatements (immaterial) detected as a result of audit 
procedures that were corrected by management.  
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Disagreements with management 

For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our 
audit.  

Management representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 27, 2022. 

Management consultations with other independent accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants.  

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our engagement. 

Required supplementary information 

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, we 
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether the 
RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods 
of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons for any such 
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s 
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during 
the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide sufficient 
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

Supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole 

With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) and schedule of expenditures of 
state financial assistance (SESFA) accompanying the financial statements, on which we were engaged 
to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of management and 
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the SEFA and the SESFA to determine that the 
SEFA and the SESFA comply with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit, 
respectively, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such 
changes, and the SEFA and the SESFA are appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the SEFA and the SESFA to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
We have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2022.
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With respect to the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules 
(collectively, the supplementary information) accompanying the financial statements, on which we were 
engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine 
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such 
changes, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial 
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have 
issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2022. 

The introduction and statistical section accompanying the financial statements, which is the responsibility 
of management, was prepared for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
it.  

Other information included in annual reports  

Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should only 
be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare, such 
as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document. You are 
responsible to provide us the opportunity to review such documents before issuance. 

* * *

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council and management 
of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties.  

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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3:07 PM

Client: A155041 - Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

Engagement: AUD 2022 - Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

Period Ending: 6/30/2022

Trial Balance: 0900.00 - BSC Gov Fund TB

Workpaper: 0114.21 - Corrected Misstatements

Fund Level: All

Index: All

Account Description Debit Credit

0101-00-0000-00000-18150 - INTERFUND-BOE GENERAL FUND 58,006.00

0101-00-0000-00000-21260 - TRB - BOE W/H ACCOUNT 114,440.00

0150-70-0001-01000-51040 - TEACHER SALARY 58,006.00

0101-00-0000-00000-24405 - SCHOOL RETIREMENT W/H 172,446.00

0150-00-0000-00000-18101 - INTERFUND-GENERAL FUND 58,006.00

Total 230,452.00 230,452.00

0150-00-0000-00000-13530 - PREPAID EXPENSES 345,204.00

0150-70-0008-02500-57350 - BUSINESS OFFICE SOFTWARE 13,203.00

0150-70-0008-02500-57350 - BUSINESS OFFICE SOFTWARE 14,169.00

0150-70-0008-02500-57350 - BUSINESS OFFICE SOFTWARE 9,115.00

0150-70-0008-02500-57350 - BUSINESS OFFICE SOFTWARE 5,465.00

0150-70-0008-02500-58100 - DUES & FEES-DIST COMM 4,594.00

0150-70-0008-02500-58100 - DUES & FEES-DIST COMM 3,968.00

0150-70-0009-06110-55600 - SPED TUITION PUBLIC 294,690.00

Total 345,204.00 345,204.00

0160-00-0000-00000-13530 - Prepaid Expenses 78,222.00

0250-00-0000-00000-13530 - Prepaid expenses 15,000.00

0160-70-0014-03100-57300 - NEW EQUIPMENT 78,222.00

0250-70-0035-01200-53400 - OTHER PROF/TECH SERVICES-SPED 15,000.00

Total 93,222.00 93,222.00

0160-00-0000-00000-12000 - A/R 169,751.00

0160-70-0014-03100-44004 - FOOD SERVICE CASH SALES 123,118.00

0160-70-0014-03100-44002 - FOOD SERVICE NSLP 292,869.00

Total 292,869.00 292,869.00

0250-00-0000-00000-12000 - A/R 190,178.00

0250-70-0008-00000-42004 - ESSER DYSLEXIA 11,700.00

0250-70-0009-01200-42004 - American Rescue Plan Revenue 22,228.00

0250-70-0030-01200-42004 - TITLE I REVENUE 1,676.00

0250-70-0034-01200-42004 - TITLE II REVENUE 7,797.00

0250-70-0035-01000-42004 - ESSERII 140,271.00

0250-70-0035-01200-42004 - TITLE II C/O REVENUE 6,786.00

0250-70-0041-01000-42004 - T4 Revenue 6,989.00

0250-70-0057-00000-42004 - PUBLIC SCHOOL GRANTS 30,105.00

0250-70-0075-01013-42004 - LEAF REVENUE AFTER 7/1/14 12,829.00

0250-00-0000-00000-20000 -CLA Deferred Inflow 123,291.00

0250-00-0000-00000-25000 - DEFERRED INCOME 188,213.00

0250-70-0009-01200-42004 - American Rescue Plan Revenue 41,437.00

0250-70-0031-01200-42004 - TITLE I C/O REVENUE 20,423.00

0250-70-0038-01000-42004 - PUBLIC SCHOOL GRANTS 89.00

0250-70-0055-01200-42004 - IDEA 611 REVENUE 47,678.00

0250-70-0056-01200-42004 - IDEA 611 C/O REVENUE 9,428.00

Total 430,559.00 430,559.00

Total Adjusting Journal Entries 1,392,306.00 1,392,306.00

Total All Journal Entries 1,392,306.00 1,392,306.00

AJE: To recorded unearned revenues

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 103

AJE: To record prepaid expenses for BOE expenses

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 104

AJE: To record prepaid expenses for BOE Educational Grants and Food Services expenses

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 105

Adjusting Journal Entries

AJE: To remove old balances from the balance sheet

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 101

AJE: To fix school lunch accounts

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 106

1 of 1
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UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS

Description

Assets and 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Liabilities and 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources Net Position

Change in Net 

Position

Understatement of deferred outflows, net position and 

expenses related to OPEB 301,286$             -$  (203,664)$            (97,622)$  

Understatement of rehab loans receivable and net position (677,728)              677,728 

Allocation of net pension liability to Business Type Activity 36,812 (76,170) 39,358 

Overstatement of BOE expenditures during the current year 

that were not classified as a prepaid item. 383,504 (383,504) 

Net current year misstatements (Iron Curtain Method) 721,602 (76,170) (881,392)              235,960 

Net prior year misstatements - - - - 
Combined current and prior year misstatements (Rollover 

Method) 721,602$             (76,170)$              (881,392)$            235,960$  

Financial statement totals 150,973,506$      (82,056,713)$       (65,890,987)$       (3,025,806)$  

Current year misstatement as a % of financial statement 

totals (Iron Curtain Method) 0% 0% 1% -8%

Current and prior year misstatement as a % of financial 

statement totals (Rollover Method) 0% 0% 1% -8%

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS - AUDIT

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

Governmental Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Effect of misstatements on:
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UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS

Description Assets Liabilities

Fund Balance / 

Net Assets

Net 

Expense/Revenue 

and Change in 

Net Assets / 

Fund Balance

Allocation of net pension liability to Business Type Activity 36,812$  (91,420)$              54,608$  

Expenses posted during 2022 that related to 2021 63,861 (63,861) 

Net current year misstatements (Iron Curtain Method) 36,812 (91,420) 63,861 (9,253) 

Net prior year misstatements - - - 
Combined current and prior year misstatements (Rollover 

Method) 36,812$  (91,420)$              63,861$  (9,253)$  

Financial statement totals 26,421,757$        (4,855,119)$         (21,928,664)$       362,026$  

Current year misstatement as a % of financial statement 

totals (Iron Curtain Method) 0% 2% 0% -3%

Current and prior year misstatement as a % of financial 

statement totals (Rollover Method) 0% 2% 0% -3%

Effect of misstatements on:

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS - AUDIT

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business Type Activies
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UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS

Description

Assets and 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Liabilities and 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources Net Position

Change in Net 

Position

Overstatement of BOE expenditures during the current year 

that were not classified as a prepaid item.

339,668$             -$                     -$                     (339,668)$                  

-                             

Net current year misstatements (Iron Curtain Method) 339,668               -                       -                       (339,668)                    

Net prior year misstatements -                       -                       -                             
Combined current and prior year misstatements (Rollover 

Method) 339,668$             -$                     -$                     (339,668)$                  

Financial statement totals 21,629,877$        (16,658,670)$       (5,014,582)$         43,375$                     

Current year misstatement as a % of financial statement 

totals (Iron Curtain Method) 2% -783%

Current and prior year misstatement as a % of financial 

statement totals (Rollover Method) 2% -783%

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS - AUDIT

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Effect of misstatements on:
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UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS

Description

Assets and 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Liabilities and 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources Net Position

Change in Net 

Position

Overstatement of BOE expenditures during the current year 

that were not classified as a prepaid item.

43,836$  -$  -$  (43,836)$  

- 

Net current year misstatements (Iron Curtain Method) 43,836 - - (43,836) 

Net prior year misstatements - - - 
Combined current and prior year misstatements (Rollover 

Method) 43,836$  -$  -$  (43,836)$  

Financial statement totals 9,529,528$          (4,163,912)$         (3,806,477)$         (1,559,139)$  

Current year misstatement as a % of financial statement 

totals (Iron Curtain Method) 0% 3%

Current and prior year misstatement as a % of financial 

statement totals (Rollover Method) 0% 3%

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS - AUDIT

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

Aggregate Remaining Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Effect of misstatements on:
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UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS

Description Assets Liabilities

Fund Balance / 

Net Assets

Net 

Expense/Revenue 

and Change in 

Net Assets / 

Fund Balance

Allocation of net pension liability to Water fund 10,635$  (22,004)$              11,369$  

Expenses posted during 2022 that related to 2021 63,861 (63,861) 

Net current year misstatements (Iron Curtain Method) 10,635 (22,004) 63,861 (52,492) 

Net prior year misstatements - - - 
Combined current and prior year misstatements (Rollover 

Method) 10,635$  (22,004)$              63,861$  (52,492)$  

Financial statement totals 20,926,900$        (3,638,712)$         (17,537,143)$       248,955$  

Current year misstatement as a % of financial statement 

totals (Iron Curtain Method) 0% 1% 0% -21%

Current and prior year misstatement as a % of financial 

statement totals (Rollover Method) 0% 1% 0% -21%

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS - AUDIT

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

Water Fund (Enterprise Fund)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Effect of misstatements on:
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UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS

Description Assets Liabilities

Fund Balance / 

Net Assets

Net 

Expense/Revenue 

and Change in 

Net Assets / 

Fund Balance

Allocation of net pension liability to Sewer fund 7,562$  (54,074)$              46,512$  

Net current year misstatements (Iron Curtain Method) 7,562 (54,074) - 46,512 

Net prior year misstatements - - - 
Combined current and prior year misstatements (Rollover 

Method) 7,562$  (54,074)$              -$  46,512$  

Financial statement totals 5,518,188$          (1,239,738)$         (4,391,521)$         113,071$  

Current year misstatement as a % of financial statement 

totals (Iron Curtain Method) 0% 4% 41%

Current and prior year misstatement as a % of financial 

statement totals (Rollover Method) 0% 4% 41%

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS - AUDIT

Town of Ledyard, Connecticut

Sewer Fund (BTA)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Effect of misstatements on:

157



158



TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
STATE PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE, AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF 
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE SINGLE 
AUDIT ACT 1�

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 4�

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE 6�

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 7�

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 9�

 
 

159



160



161



Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

(2) 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the State Single Audit will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance with the requirements of 
each major state program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the State Single 
Audit Act, we: 
 

x exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

x identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 
x obtain an understanding of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control over compliance 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
State Single Audit Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
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Town Council 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut 

(3) 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the State Single Audit Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by the State Single 
Audit Act 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated December 27, 2022, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial 
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures 
of state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State 
Single Audit Act and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state financial 
assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 

 
 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance. 

(4) 

 
State Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ State Grant Program   
 Program Title Core-CT Number

  

Department of Education

Talent Development 11000-SDE64370-12552 $ 3,718           

Child Nutrition State Match 11000-SDE64370-16211 7,899           

Health Foods Initiative 11000-SDE64370-16212 12,431         

Vocational Agriculture 11000-SDE64370-17017 997,429       

Adult Education 11000-SDE64370-17030 24,672         

School Breakfast Program 11000-SDE64370-17046 13,245         

Magnet Schools 11000-SDE64370-17057 119,600       

Total Department of Education 1,178,994    

Department of Social Services

Medicaid 11000-DSS60000-16020 46,971         

Connecticut State Library

Connecticard Payments 11000-CSL66051-17010 1,243           

Historic Document Preservation 12060-CSL66094-35150 5,500           

Total Connecticut State Library 6,743           

Department of Children and Families

Youth Service Bureaus 11000-DCF91141-17052 17,697         

Youth Service Bureau Enhancement 11000-DCF91141-17107 5,693           

Total Department of Children and Families 23,390         

Department of Transportation

Town Aid Road-STO 13033-DOT57131-43459 129,400       

Town Aid Road Grants-Municipal 12052-DOT57131-43455 129,400       

Total Department of Transportation 258,800       

Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection

Enhanced 911 Telecommunications Fund 12060-DPS32741-35190 93,016         

School Security Infrastructure 12052-DPS32161-43546 15,050         

Total Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection 108,066       

Expenditures
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance. 

(5) 

 

 

State Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ State Grant Program   
 Program Title Core-CT Number

Office of Early Childhood

Child Care Quality Enhancement 11000-OEC64845-16158 $ 3,881           

Early Care and Education 11000-OEC64845-16274 226,800       

Total Office of Early Childhood 230,681       

Office of Policy and Management

Reimbursement Property Tax-Disability Exemption 11000-OPM20600-17011 979              

Property Tax Relief For Veterans 11000-OPM20600-17024 3,562           

Tiered Pilot 11000-OPM20600-17111 873,669       

Local Capital Improvement 12050-OPM20600-40254 108,038       

Municipal Purposes & Projects 12052-OPM20600-43587 756,626       

MRSA- Tiered Pilot 12052-OPM20600-35691 310,471       

Total Office of Policy and Management 2,053,345    

Total State Financial Assistance Before Exempt Programs 3,906,990    

Exempt Programs 

Department of Education

Education Cost Sharing 11000-SDE64370-17041-82010 11,438,366  

Excess Cost - Student Based 11000-SDE64370-17047 $ 447,250  

Excess Cost - Student Based 11000-SDE64370-17047 248,156  
695,406       

Total Department of Education 12,133,772  

Office of Policy and Management

Grants To Towns 12009-OPM20600-17005 1,391,000    

Total Exempt Programs 13,524,772  

Total State Financial Assistance $ 17,431,762  

Expenditures
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 
 

(6) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance (the Schedule) 
includes the state grant activity of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, under programs of the 
State of Connecticut for the year ended June 30, 2022. Various departments and agencies 
of the State of Connecticut have provided financial assistance through grants and other 
authorizations in accordance with the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut. Because 
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Town of Ledyard, 
Connecticut, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in 
fund balance, changes in net position or cash flows of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut. 
 
Basis of Accounting 

The accounting policies of the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut, conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental 
organizations. The information in the Schedule is presented based upon regulations 
established by the State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and Management. 
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. In accordance with Section 4-236-22 of the Regulations to the State Single 
Audit Act, certain grants are not dependent on expenditure activity and, accordingly, are 
considered to be expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These grant program receipts are 
reflected in the expenditures column of the Schedule. 
 
 

NOTE 2 LOAN PROGRAMS 

In accordance with Section 4-236-23(a)(4)(F) of the Regulations to the State Single Audit 
Act, the notes to the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance shall include 
loans and loan activities. The following is a summary of the various loan program activity for 
the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection 
 

Clean Water Funds: 

Issue Date
Interest 

Rate

Original 

Amount

Balance 

Beginning
Issued Retired

Balance 

Ending

9/30/2006 2.05% $      926,007 $ 280,882 $              - $     (51,184) $ 229,698

12/27/2010 2.00%   1,629,000 806,318              -     (89,499) 716,819

3/31/2015 2.00%   3,781,622 2,665,088              -   (189,574) 2,475,514
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s Response to Finding 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town of 
Ledyard, Connecticut’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s response 
was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town of Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of 
Ledyard, Connecticut’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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TOWN OF LEDYARD, CONNECTICUT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(9) 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

x Material weakness(es) identified?  yes         x  no 

x Significant deficiency(ies) identified?         x  yes  none reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?  yes         x  no 

State Financial Assistance 

1. Internal control over major programs:

x Material weakness(es) identified?  yes         x  no 

x Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  yes         x  none reported 

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 4-236-24 of the Regulations
to the State Single Audit Act?  yes         x  no 

The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit: 

State Grantor and Program State Core-CT Number Expenditures 
Office of Policy and Management: 
  Tiered Pilot  11000-OPM20600-17024 $ 873,669 
  MRSA- Tiered Pilot 12052-OPM20600-35691 310,471 
Department of Education: 
  Vocational Agriculture 11000-SDE64370-17017 997,429 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between  
Type A and Type B programs: $      200,000 
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(10) 

 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 
Finding: 2022-001 
 
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 
Condition and Context 
The Ledyard Board of Education does not have adequate controls in place to ensure that all cash 
disbursement expenditures are being captured in the correct period. There were invoices that were 
paid, during fiscal year 2022, that related to services to be provided to the Board of Education in a 
future fiscal year. This resulted in the understatement of prepaid items and overstatement to 
expenditures at June 30, 2022 totaling $345,204 and $93,222 within the general fund and aggregate 
remaining funds, respectively. 
 
Cause 
Internal controls were not in place to ensure prepaid items and expenditures were properly supported 
and reported in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  
 
Effect 
The identified errors required an adjusting journal entry to be posted to the general fund, BOE grant 
fund, and school food service fund to increase prepaid retainage payable and decrease expenditures.  
 
Repeat Finding 
No 
 
Recommendation 
We recommend management evaluate the current financial reporting processes and controls to ensure 
that controls are in place to present the external financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials  
Management agrees with this finding 
 
 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – State Financial Assistance 

 
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with the State Single Audit 
Act. 
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Matters Noted in the Previous Year 

The following matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation were noted 
in the previous year but have not been fully remediated. Again, we offer our recommendations as 
constructive suggestions for your consideration as part of the ongoing process of modifying and 
improving accounting controls and administrative practices. 

Special Revenue Fund Accounting – Board of Education 

The trial balances presented to us for audit for the Education Grant fund and the School Lunch fund 
contained numerous account balances that were not properly recorded in accordance with grant 
accounting (accounts receivable, grant revenues, grant expenditures, etc.). As a result, adjusting 
journal entries were required for these accounts. We also noted that the Board of Education has made 
improvements from the prior year. We noted that all cash accounts were reconciled as of year-end. 

Recommendation - We recommend that all Board of Education fund trial balances be properly 
reconciled to the underlying, supporting data in a timely manner at year-end. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already 
discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various entity personnel, and we will be 
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these 
matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the 
Board of Finance, others within the organization, state awarding agencies and pass-through entities 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 27, 2022 
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Submitted to T. Clerk’s Office on:01/19/2023/rm

DRAFT
I. CALL TO ORDER - The Meeting was called to order by Councilor Saums at 5:00 p.m. at

the Council Chambers Town Hall Annex Building.

Councilor Saums welcomed all to the Hybrid Meeting. He stated for the Town Council
Finance Committee and members of the Public who were participating via video conference
that the remote meeting information was available on the Agenda that was posted on the
Town’s Website – Granicus-Legistar Meeting Portal.

II. ROLL CALL

III. RESIDENTS' COMMENTS

Mrs. Betsy Graham, 72A Long Pond Road, South, Ledyard, stated that she was present
this evening to answer any questions the Finance Committee may have regarding their
proposal to lease 0.8 +/- acres of land on Bush Pond to the Town for passive recreation.
She provided some background explaining that she and her husband Robert Graham
purchased the property last year, which due to some older depilated structures on the
property, was not accessible. She stated since the structures have been removed the
property was now opened up making Bush Pond accessible. She stated that she and her
husband thought that it would make a great waterfront park for residents to enjoy
picnicking, or canoeing; and therefore, they have offered the town an opportunity to
lease a portion of the property to be used for passive recreation.

Attendee Name Title Status Location Arrived Departed
Andra Ingalls Town Councilor Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Tim Ryan Town Councilor Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Bill Saums Town Councilor Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
S. Naomi Rodriguez Town Councilor Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Fred Allyn, III Mayor Present In-Person 5:02 pm 5:58 pm
Matthew Bonin Finance Director Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Steve Masalin Public Works Director Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Scott Johnson, Jr. Parks & Recreation Director Present Remote 5:02 pm 5:58 pm
Robert Graham Resident Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Betsy Graham Resident Present In-Person 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
Roxanne Maher Administrative Assistant Present Remote 5:00 pm 5:58 pm
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IV. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Board of Education Year-to-Date Report dated December 5, 2022

V. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES –

MOTION to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of December 7, 2022
Moved by Councilor Ingalls, seconded by Councilor Ryan

VOTE: 3 – 0 Approved and so declared

VIII. OLD BUSINESS

1. No action on the
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital Non-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the
American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects and
expend ARPA Funding.

RESULT: NO ACTION Next Meeting: 01/18/2023 5:00 p.m.

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

1. Consider a one-time waiver of the Housing Authoring’s PILOT payment due this year to
allow the Ledyard Housing Authority to use the funds to contract for snow removal
services.

Background: On March 11, 2020 the Town Council approved a Resolution authorizing
the Town to apply for a Connecticut Small Cities Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) in the amount of 1,500,000 to provide major improvements at the Kings Corner
Manor Senior Housing Facility, which was built in the 1980’s. If the Grant Application
was approved, the construction work would have begun in March/April 2021. However,
due to the Covid-19 Pandemic, funding approvals and projects were significantly
delayed. During the past two years the State asked the Town Council to restate the
Resolution twice (June 9, 2021 and November 9, 2022). In addition, the State increased
the grant amount awarded to Ledyard from $1,500,000 to $1,608,827.

Councilor Saums stated the Kings Corner Manor Senior Housing Facility was currently
in the process of a major improvement project that was being paid for by a Connecticut
Small Cities Community Development Block Grant, which was being funded by the
Federal Government. He went on to state that the Construction Company has asked that
three units remain vacant to allow for temporary moves of tenants into the unleased
spaces while the rehabilitation work was being done in their units. He stated keeping
three units vacant would leave the Kings Corner Senior Housing Facility with a potential
shortfall of about $1,800/month, during the duration of the construction project. He
stated some of this money would have been used to pay for snow removal expenses.
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Therefore, he stated Housing Authority Director Colleen Lauer was looking for some
assistance from either the Public Works Department by providing some additional
support regarding snow removal, or from the Town by granting relief of the Housing
Authority’s PILOT Payment ($7,700) to have the cashflow to pay for snow removal
services.

Councilor Saums continued by explaining that currently the Public Works Department
has been making one pass around the Kings Corner Manor Senior Housing Facility
during substantial storms to assure emergency service access. However, he stated
because the Public Works Department was understaffed that providing any additional
assistance to the Kings Corner Manor was not possible. He went on to address granting
relief of the PILOT Payment noting that the Town Council needed to be cautious with
granting relief for PILOT Properties, stating that they did not want to set a precedent,
stating that if they granted relief to one PILOT Property then others may also seek relief
from their PILOT Payment. However, he stated that they understand that this was a
special situation, given the Senior Housing Facility’s loss of revenue during the
improvement construction project.

Mayor Allyn, III, stated getting the improvement project going at the Kings Corner
Manor Senior Housing Facility has been a slow process. He stated in addition to the
1,608,827 CDBG Grant that the town also received a Connecticut Housing Finance
Authority (CHFA) Grant in the amount of $1 million, which has provided a total of $2.5
million in grant funding to make the much-needed improvements to the Kings Corner
Manor Senior Housing Facility. He stated not only was the approval of the grant funding
delayed because of the Covid-19 Pandemic that the process relative the soliciting bids,
negotiating contracts, and getting the Contractors on-site have been slow. He stated
during this process that the Contractors have asked that as units became vacant that they
not be filled to allow for temporary moves of tenants while work was being done in the
occupied units. He stated the plan to use vacant units to house current tenants while the
rehabilitation/improvement work was being done initially seemed to be a good plan,
until they realized how long the entire construction project was going to take and the
amount of lost rental revenue.

Councilor Ryan questioned: (1) Whether holding some units vacant during the
construction project were factored into the original plan; and (2) The Contract
Completion Date.

Ledyard Housing Authority Director Colleen Lauer addressed Councilor Ryan’s
questions as follows:

(1) The Construction/Rehabilitation Plan did not include keeping three units vacant. She
explained that it was more of an understanding that if they had a vacant unit that they
wanted to keep it vacant to house tenants during the time the construction work was
being done in the occupied units. She stated one apartment became vacant last March,
2022, and she noted that it was now January 2023; and other than taking the cabinets
out, because the former tenant was a smoker, that no work has been done. She also noted
that they had one tenant that passed away and one tenant moved out of the Facility,
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which has left them with three vacant units. She stated the Contractor has requested
the three units remain vacant, with the plan to do the improvement/rehabilitation
work to the three vacant units first; and then temporally move tenants into those
units as necessary to perform the work on the occupied units. She stated in speaking
with the Architect today she told him that she had to rent one of the three vacant
units, noting the financial hardship of keeping three units vacant. She stated in
addition to the loss of the rent revenue that they had to pay expenses for the three
vacant units which included $400.00 a month in electrical costs to keep the heat on
at 60 degrees to keep the pipes from freezing; and

(2) Per the Contract the construction contractor had two-years to complete the project.
Initially the project was supposed to be completed in mid-February, 2023. Ms. Lauer
explained the process involved from soliciting bids, negotiating with contractors and
the state to obtaining a waiver from the State Building Official to accommodate
some of the handicap accessible equipment in the 420 square foot units, such as the
grab bars in the bathrooms. She stated that they were now hoping the project would
be completed by the end of the calendar year (2023), noting that they were still
waiting for the cabinets and windows to be ordered.

Ms. Lauer continued by providing an overview of the rehabilitation/improvement project
noting that because Kings Corner Manor was an older development, the heat was
electric baseboard, the original windows and doors were not energy efficient, and the
tubs were a safety hazard for older and disabled people. She stated the scope of the
improvement work would include the replacement of windows, outside doors and
installing storm doors with energy star rated products. It would also include the
installation of new split heat pump systems for improved and efficient heating and air
conditioning in each unit, the tubs would be removed and replaced with roll-in showers
and grab bars, the toilets, sinks and flooring materials would also be replaced removing
architectural barriers.

Ms. Lauer stated in accordance with “Ordinance Establishing a Housing Authority for
the Town of Ledyard” and its Appendix A “Agreement Between The Town of Ledyard And
Ledyard Housing Authority Regarding Payment in Lieu of Taxes” the Housing Authority
has been putting money into their Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) for capital
improvements, noting that the funds were growing. She stated if they decided to handle
the snow removal in-house that their maintenance man could use the lawn tractor which
had a small plow on it, noting that they do not have a truck that could be used to plow
snow. She stated should there be a large snowstorm that they would try to hire a private
contractor for the snow removal and pay per storm. She stated last year the Seasonal
Snow Removal Contract was $5,000; and then they paid an additional $1,250 bringing
the total snow removal cost to $6,250 for the year. However, she stated this year the
same contractor has come back with Seasonal Snow Removal Contract price of $10,000
which would include clearing the sidewalks, parking lot, and the road. She stated in
working to negotiate with the snow removal contractor that they could bring the
Seasonal Contract cost down to $6,750 if the contractor did not clear the sidewalks. Ms.
Lauer went on to state if we have a mild winter, and they do not have to use a private
contractor for the snow removal that the Housing Authority would pay the PILOT
payment.
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Councilor Ingalls questioned whether the Kings Corner Senior Housing Facility was
planning to pay for Seasonal Snow Removal Contract; or pay per storm this year. Ms.
Lauer stated for this winter that they planned to pay per storm this year.

Public Works Director/Town Engineer Steve Masalin explained that the Kings Corner
Manor Senior Housing Facility was a quasi-town agency, noting that the town does have
some oversight at some level. He stated the understanding with regard to snowstorms
has been that the Public Works Department would make a pass thru the Facility to keep
things open for emergency vehicles. He stated over the years the Public Works
Department has wandered at times, noting as an example that they were involved in a
summertime project at the Senior Housing Facility. He stated there has been a loose
understanding, and he stated that all parties would benefit long-term to have a tight
understanding of what the town’s (Public Works Department) direct role was at the
Kings Corner Senior Housing Facility. He stated he did not think that the town’s (Public
Works Department) role was as extensive to the extent of what they have already
extended their services to the Senior Housing Facility. He suggested this subject be
taken up more thoroughly at a later time, noting that it would help both the Kings Corner
Manor Senior Housing Facility and the Town (Public Works Department).

Councilor Ingalls suggested in working with Housing Authority Director Colleen Lauer
that perhaps the Town Council could waive a portion of the Kings Corner Manor Senior
Housing Facility’s PILOT payment, using an “up-to” approach based on the actual costs
of the snow removal costs this winter.

Councilor Ingalls stated her introduction to the Finance Committee was before Ms.
Lauer was the Housing Authority Director. She stated at her first Finance Committee
meeting the Committee was asked to consider the Housing Authority’s request to waive
their PILOT payment. However, she stated the Finance Committee’s questions regarding
fiscal responsibility were met with distain by the Housing Authority. She stated at that
time here was no demonstration of sound management. She stated since Ms. Lauer has
been managing the Kings Corner Manor Senior Housing Facility that she has gotten
their finances in order and has been able to answer financial questions and has provided
information as requested. However, she stated that she still had a reluctance to waive a
PILOT payment, based on Councilor Saums’ comments earlier this evening about others
seeking PILOT payment waivers. She stated the Town Council has a responsibility to
the taxpayers, noting the importance for them to consider everyone’s interests. She
concluded by stating that her reluctance was not a reflection of Ms. Lauer’s
management; and that she thought that they could perhaps meet in the middle.

Councilor Saums suggested a Motion be drafted for the Finance Committee’s next
meeting.

The Finance Committee agreed with Councilor Saums’ suggestion, not to act on this
request this evening in an effort to draft a formal motion.
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**POST MEETING NOTE**: 1/5/2023: In a conversation with Housing Authority
Director Colleen Lauer, waiting until the end of the winter season (end of
March/beginning of April) was discussed to see what the Housing Authority expenses
would be for snow removal; and to draft a Motion at that time regarding the relief of
some of the PILOT Payment. Ms. Lauer would contact the Mayor’s Office should funds
run low before the end of the winter.

RESULT: DISCUSSED

2. MOTION to recommend the Town Council grant a Bid Waiver to Goliath Structural
Steel Maintenance, LLC of Carver Massachusetts, in the amount of $32,500 for the
Roof Cleaning and Recoating of the Ledyard Center Water Storage Tank, due to the lack
of receiving the required three bids in accordance with Ordinance #200-001 (rev 1) “An
Ordinance for Purchasing”.
Moved by Councilor Ingalls, seconded by Councilor Ryan
Discussion: Councilor Saums provided some background explaining at the May 4,
2005 Referendum the townspeople approved $5,950,000 for the design and installation
of a watermain along Route 117 and various related improvements. He stated this
project included the installation of a 1.25 million gallon steel tank, with concrete
foundation on Town owned property at Ledyard Center behind Ledyard Center
Elementary school. He stated the construction of the Ledyard Center Water Storage
Tank was completed in 2009.

Councilor Saums went on to explain that the Water Pollution Control Authority
(WPCA) has been annually setting funds aside in their Capital Account for the
maintenance of the Water Storage Tank, because they knew in about fifteen years the
Tank would need to be repainted. He stated the Ledyard Center Storage Tank was now
14-years old and that both the inside and outside of the tank were inspected, noting they
found that the roof needed to be cleaned and resurfaced; but that the rest of the Tank was
still in good condition, and did not need to be repainted at this time.

Councilor Saums continued by noting that on behalf of the Water Pollution Control
Authority that Groton Utilities solicited bids to clean and recoat the Ledyard Center
Water Tank. He stated because they did not receive a good response that over the past
year Groton Utilities solicited bids multiple times, however, he explained that they still
only received one bid. Therefore, he stated the WPCA has requested a Bid Waiver to
Goliath Structural Steel Maintenance, LLC of Carver Massachusetts, in the amount of
$32,500. He noted in accordance with Ordinance #200-001 (rev 1) “An Ordinance for
Purchasing”, for goods and services over the amount of $15,000 that three bids were
required. If three bids were not received a bid waiver may be granted by the Town
Council.

Councilor Saums concluded by noting the contractor provided two estimates, one to only
resurface the top of the tank in the amount of $32,500, which they were acting on this
evening; and one cost estimate to recoat the entire exterior of the Tank which was in the
amount of $285,000. He stated thankfully, the rest of the Tank was in good condition,
and therefore, they would only be cleaning and resurfacing the top of the Water Storage
Tank.

178



WS/rm Finance Committee – January 4, 2023
Page 7 of 16

Councilor Ingalls stated without receiving more than one bid that they had nothing to
compare to this contractor’s proposal to, noting that she did not like to vote “Yes”
because her hands were tied. However, she stated because she felt that her hands were
tied that she would vote “Yes”.

Councilor Saums noted Councilor Ingalls made a good point. However, he stated by
only having to clean and recoat the top of the Water Storage Tank that it would provide
the Water Pollution Control Authority more time to seek more bidders for when it comes
time to recoat/paint the entire Tank. He stated this was currently a tough time to try to
get contractors, noting that part of the WPCA’s discussion to wait on painting the entire
Tank was to try to get better pricing with more completive bidders.

Councilor Ryan questioned the budget account that the cleaning and recoating the Tank
would be paid from. Councilor Saums explained that explain that the Water Pollution
Control Authority has been annually setting funds aside in their Capital Account for the
maintenance of the Water Storage Tank.

VOTE: 3– 0 Approved and so declared

RESULT: RECOMMEND TO APPROVE 3 – 0
MOVER: Andra Ingalls, Town Councilor
SECONDER: Tim Ryan, Town Councilor
AYES: Ingalls, Ryan, Saums

3. Future of curbside collection and contracting.

Public Works Director/Town Engineer Steve Masalin provided some background
regarding curbside collection services. He reviewed the proposals that were
received in response to Bid #2019-016 as noted below. He explained that the Town
was 3.5 years into a 6-year contract with Willimantic Wastepaper, noting that it has
taken nearly 3-years to get adjusted and aligned with the 11,000+ carts and
50+container assignments, data and the management of them, etc. He stated in
2019 the Town only received two bids for the curbside collection services: (1)
Willimantic Wastepaper, has since been bought out by Casella Waste Management;
and (2) F.E. Crandall, who was recently bought out by Connecticut Wase Removal
and Recycling Management (CWPM). He stated CWPM recently snapped up the
following trash removal/waste management companies: Sawchuck Waste Removal
of New London, Perkins & Sons Rubbish Removal of North Stonington, Sterling
Superior Services, and F.W. Crandall along with a few others, noting that the area
was winding up with only a few large waste management companies. He stated
CWPM has been a large waste management company in the region for quite some
time, noting that they have been doing commercial waste collection in Ledyard for
a number of years; and that they were the Town’s Bulky Waste provider. However,
he stated CWPM has never submitted a bid for curbside collection services for the
Town.
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Mr. Masalin continued by noting that the town had 2-years remaining on their
current curbside collection contract with Casella Waste Management (formerly
Willimantic Waste). He addressed the time involved to solicit bids in advance of
the end of the current contract and to deal with the logistics of changing
contractors, noting that curbside collection services were now automated with the
11,000+ carts and 50+container assignments, and he stated that they trend was
heading in a direction that curbside collection would never go back to manual. He
suggested in light of the context and in-light of the nature of the services that the
town consider negotiating with Casella Waste Management to come to an
agreement that would be favorable beyond the terns of the current contract. He
stated he heard Councilor Ingalls’ concerns earlier this evening (Item #2) regarding
bid waivers, noting that this would require some form of a bid waiver to extend
their Curbside Collection Contract. However, he stated curbside collection and the
logistics of 11,000+ carts and 50+container assignments were a complex scenario.
He explained that if they were to change curbside collection contractors that he
would need at least a temporary Assistant to help him manage the
process/transition of collecting the existing carts/containers and
distributing/assigning the new carts/containers along with the data to track all that
was involved with the project. He stated by starting this process early enough that
it would provide them with some certainty about things, not just from a service
standpoint, but also from a budget standpoint.

Town of Ledyard
RFP #2019-06: Trash & Recycling
Services

Bid Opening March 21, 2019

BASE BID

Option Option Option Option Cart Extra Cart

Company Name Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Replace Svc Chg

Willimantic Waste 574,070.63 589,857.58 606,078.66 622,745.82 639,871.33 657,467.79 100.00 10.00

FE Crandall 891,000.00 891,000.00 891,000.00 891,000.00 891,000.00 891,000.00 75.00 4.50

316,929.37 301,142.42 284,921.34 268,254.18 251,128.67 233,532.21

BID ALTERNATIVE 1: WEEKLY RECYCLING

Option Option Option Option Cart Extra Cart

Year 1 Year 2 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Replace Svc Chg

Willimantic Waste 640,000.00 657,600.00 675,684.00 694,265.31 713,357.61 732,974.94 100.00 10.00

FE Crandall 973,500.00 973,500.00 973,500.00 973,500.00 973,500.00 973,500.00 75.00 4.50

333,500.00 315,900.00 297,816.00 279,234.69 260,142.39 240,525.06
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ADDITIONAL BID ALTERNATIVES

Cart Extra Cart

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Replace Svc Chg

Willimantic Waste
(Bid Alt #2) 568,212.77 583,838.62 599,894.18 616,391.27 633,342.03 650,758.94 100.00 10.00

FE Crandall 692,340.00 692,340.00 692,340.00 692,340.00 692,340.00 692,340.00 75.00 4.50

124,127.23 108,501.38 92,445.82 75,948.73 58,997.97 41,581.06

* Willimantic had a third bid alt -- Pay as You Throw. The prices are the same as Bid Alt #2.

** FE Crandall's alt bid is for Zero Waste

Present:

CJ Crisostomo Town of Ledyard YEAR 1 July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Mary-Beth Hubbard Town of Ledyard YEAR 2 July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Fred Allyn III Town of Ledyard
OPTION YR 1
(actual year 3) July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Marcia Hancock Town of Ledyard
OPTION YR 2
(actual year 4) July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Sarah Crandall FE Crandall
OPTION YR 3
(actual year 5) July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024

Victoria Lindsey Willimantic Waste Paper
OPTION YR 4
(actual year 6) July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025

The Finance Committee and Mr. Masalin discussed the following:

 Pros and cons between: (1) Negotiating “Extension Years” after the sixth year (June
30, 2025) of the Curbside Collection Contract that was awarded in response to Bid
#2019-16; and (2) Solicit bids at the end of Option Year #2 (June 30, 2023) in
preparation for implementation after Option Year #4 (June 30, 2025 - which was the
sixth year of the current contract).

 Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resource Recycling Authority (SCRRRA) has
again increased the Tipping Fees by $2.00 per ton; which was a total increase of
$3.25 per ton over the last two budget years. Household trash was being disposed at
the Lisbon Incinerator Plant instead of the Preston Incinerator Plant.

 The Recycling Market has turned favorable, and was once again beginning to make
money. But because SCRRRA had borne the recycling costs for a number of years
SCRRRA was not distributing the revenues to Member Towns.

 Because waste management (tipping fees for bulky waste) cost per ton to dispose of
waste was constantly fluctuating that the ability to control at least 50% of the cost
thru the curbside collection contract would be helpful for budgetary purposes.
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 Single Stream Recycling found that the paper was being contaminated by the glass
breaking during the collection process. SCRRRA credits Member Towns for the
recyclables, however, the Towns were also penalized for the contaminations that
occurred.

o The cost to change from collecting recyclables from every other week to every
week would cost about $60,000 - $80,000. Would the town be able to recover the
$80,000 by once again separating the recyclables (paper/cardboard from the
glass) and picking up recyclables every week alternating between picking up
paper/cardboard one week and glass the other week. This would improve the
quality of the recyclables, and therefore, reduce the penalties and increase the
credits, if everyone recycled correctly.

o Cardboard, paper, certain plastics and aluminum were the most valued recyclable
commodities. Additional containers would be required to separate the recyclables
to provide for every week pick-up alternating between the paper and glass
collection.

 For a variety of reasons, there was a limited number of Waste Management
Contractors in the area that would be interested in submitting a proposal for curbside
collection service, of which one was the cost to provide carts.

Mayor Allyn, III, addressed the two options being discussed this evening: (1) Negotiate
“Extension Years” after year 6 of the Curbside Collection Contract that was awarded in
response to Bid #2019-16, noting that there was $1.1 million invested in carts that were
owned by the current contractor, Casella Waste, but were managed by the town; and (2)
Solicit bids at the end of Option Year #2 (June 30, 2023). He stated if the town was not
able to successfully negotiate an extension with the current contract that they would then
move forward with going out to bid for curbside collection services.

The Finance Committee asked Public Works Director/Town Engineer Steve Masalin to
start a conversation to extend the contract with the current Curbside Collection
Contractor – Casella Waste Management.

RESULT: DISCUSSED

4. MOTION to recommend the Town Council approve a revised Appendix A- Qualifying
Income Schedule in accordance with Ordinance #200-005 (rev. 1) “An Ordinance to
Provide Property Tax Relief for Certain Homeowners Age Sixty-Five or Over or
Permanently and Totally Disabled (rev.1)” for the filing period of February 1, 2023 –
May 15, 2023.

Ordinance # 200-005 (rev.1)
DRAFT: 12/19/2022

Appendix A

Qualifying Income Schedule

Qualifying Income Tax Reduction
As Percentage

Of Property Tax

Tax Reduction
For Any Year

Over Not Exceeding

Married Homeowners Maximum Minimum
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Qualifying Income Tax Reduction
As Percentage

Of Property Tax

Tax Reduction
For Any Year

Over Not Exceeding

Married Homeowners Maximum Minimum

$ 0 $19,100
$20,200

50% $1,250 $400

$19,100
$20,200 -

$25,600
$27,100

40 % $1,000 $350

$25,600
$27,100

$31,900
$33,800

30 % $750 $250

$31,900
$33,800

$38,100
$40,300

20% $500 $150

$37,600
$40,300

$45,800
$49,100

10% $250 $150

$49,100 None

Unmarried Homeowners

$ 0 $19,100
$20,200

40% $1,000 $350

$19,100
$20,200 -

$25,600
$27,100

30% $750 $250

$25,600
$27,100

$31,900
$33,800

20% $500 $150

$31,900
$33,800

$38,100
$40,300

10% $250 $150

$37,600
$40,300

$45,800
$49,100

None -0- -0-

$49,100 None

Adopted by the Ledyard Town Council on: ___________________

_______________________
Kevin J. Dombrowski, Chairman

Moved by Councilor Ryan, seconded by Councilor Ingalls
Discussion: Councilor Saums provided some background, stating that in addition to the
State, that the town provided tax relief to qualifying homeowners thru the adoption of
Ordinance #200-005 (rev. 1) “An Ordinance to Provide Property Tax Relief for Certain
Homeowners Age Sixty-Five or Over or Permanently and Totally Disabled (rev.1).

Councilor Saums went on to state that the provisions of the Ordinance required the town
to annually update the “Qualifying Income Schedule” to be consistent with the State’s
Qualifying Income, which was based on the United States Social Security Administration
Program.
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Councilor Saums noted in accordance with Ordinance #200-005 (rev.1) Paragraph 3
“Qualifications”; paragraph (e) "Persons qualified for tax credit or deferment benefits
under this Ordinance are those whose maximum income during the calendar year
preceding the year in which application is made for the tax credit does not exceed the
Qualifying Income Schedule, as hereby incorporated in the ordinance as though fully set
forth herein. A copy of the approved Qualifying Income Schedule shall be filed with the
Town Clerk when established and when amended. The income guidelines provided in
the Qualifying Income Schedule (Appendix A) shall be adjusted to reflect a cost of
living increase issued by the United States Social Security Administration, pending the
approval of the Town Council prior to the first of January of the year of application.”

Councilor Saums noted that the State also offered relief for renters. Mayor Allyn, III,
stated that Municipal Agent Karen Goetchuis administers a Renters Rebate Program.

It was noted that because the “Qualifying Income Schedule” was an Appendix to the
Ordinance, and because they were not changing the Ordinance itself, a public hearing
was not required. Annually updating the “Qualifying Income Schedule” for the town’s
Tax Relief program was an administrative action.

VOTE: 3– 0 Approved and so declared

RESULT: RECOMMEND TO APPROVE 3 – 0
MOVER: Tim Ryan, Town Councilor
SECONDER: Andra Ingalls, Town Councilor
AYES: Ingalls, Ryan, Saums

5. MOTION to recommend the Town Council adopt proposed revisions to the “Resolution
Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits” as contained in the draft dated
December 6, 2022.
Moved by Councilor Ingalls, seconded by Councilor Ryan
Discussion: Mayor Allyn, III, explained that proposed revisions to the “Resolution
Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits” were drafted to update the language
to include the addition of a new “Wages and Compensation” Section and other editorials
as noted below.

“WAGES AND COMPENSATION

Employees shall be paid at the rate as designated by the Mayor or contractually negotiated.
Increases in wages shall be effective on the first day of July and may not be less than the
percentage of the highest union contracted increase for that fiscal year.

Employees required to be available via cell phone outside of regular work hours who
are not issued a Town cell phone, shall receive a monthly stipend for usage of their
personal cell phone at a rate equivalent to the highest stipend paid to any of the Town’s
bargaining units.
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With the implementation of this Resolutions, retroactive reimbursement for personal cell
phone use shall be paid to employees who were on-staff during the period beginning
with the Covid 19 pandemic of March, 2020; as outlined in the above paragraph.”

Mayor Allyn continued to explain that the highest union contracted increase for this fiscal
year was 3%. He presented a spreadsheet that was prepared by Administrator of Human
Resources Don Steinhoff which showed the difference in the hourly rate of the Department
Heads covered under this Resolution, noting the difference in the hourly rate ranged from
0.07 to 0.29 per hour; for a total cost of $4,813.02 for Fiscal Year 2022/2023.

Mayor Allyn went on to note the other change in the Resolution was to provide a stipend to
the Department Heads who use of their personal cell phones to conduct town business. He
stated it was more cost effective for the town to provide a stipend to these Department
Heads for using their personal cell phones for town business than it would be for the town to
purchase additional cell phones and additional monthly contracts for phone. He stated the
cost of the cell phone stipend was $4,320 per year. He stated the wage adjustment and cell
phone stipends would be retroactive to July 1, 2022.

Councilor Saums addressed the language in the new Wage and Compensation Section as
follows: “Employees shall be paid at the rate as designated by the Mayor or contractually
negotiated. Increases in wages shall be effective on the first day of July and may not be less
than the percentage of the highest union contracted increase for that fiscal year.” He
stated the town has been very careful with raises for Department Heads; noting that the
Department Heads have not received many raises; and the raises they received have not been
much. Therefore, he stated that he was in-favor with keeping the Department Head’s wage
increases at par or upping them a little based on the past cycle. However, he stated if this
clause was included in the Resolution; and for some reason one union asked for a 5% wage
increase, and the town said “No”; but the union then won their case through Arbitration; that
the fourteen Department Heads covered by the Resolution would also receive a 5% wage
increase. Therefore, he stated he had concerns, because the town did not have total control
over what they give their union employees. He stated he did not have a solution this evening
with regard to what they could replace this language with.

Mayor Allyn, III, stated historically the town has been aggressive with keeping the wage
increases for bargaining units low. Councilor Saums agreed with Mayor Allyn’s comment,
and he added that the town has actually fallen behind in some areas, noting in some cases
Ledyard’s wages were lower than other towns. Mayor Allyn stated keeping wages lower
than other towns has been an issue for Ledyard with respect to trying to keep staff and in
trying to fill vacancies for certain roles/positions. He stated that this has become a problem
for the Town.

Councilor Saums stated in certain instances some union employees did receive a 5% wage
increase because they were correcting past inequalities. He stated that he believed he
believed Ledyard would be negotiating differently, noting that employees read our labor
contracts/agreements and the contracts/agreements of neighboring communities He
concluded by expressing concern that with the proposed wage language, as written, in the
“Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits” that they could end up
giving some big raises unintentionally. He questioned whether they could write the wage
language in a way that would prevent them from unintentionally giving big raises to
Department Heads.
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Councilor Ryan suggested basing the Department Head wage increases on an average of
wage increases of the bargaining units.

The Finance Committee agreed to withdraw the motion to obtain additional information.

RESULT: WITHDRAWN Remove from Agenda

6. MOTION to recommend the Town Council approve a proposed “Lease Agreement
between Robert and Mary Graham and the Town of Ledyard” for the lease of
approximately 0.8-acre +/ parcel on Bush Pond.
Moved by Councilor Ryan, seconded by Councilor Ingalls
Discussion: Councilor Saums provided some background stating that Mr. and Mrs.
Graham purchased a piece of land on the twenty-three-acre Bush Pond which was
parallel to Long Pond. He explained that initially Mr. and Mrs. Graham wanted to
give/gift about 550 linear feet of the pond frontage to the Town, which was the middle
section of the pond. However, he stated Ledge Light Health District required a certain
amount of reserve area for the remaining cottages on the parcel (one cottage on the south
side and three cottages on the north side) that the property could not be divided to give a
portion of the parcel to the Town. Therefore; he stated that Mr. and Mrs. Graham have
decided to offer the Town an opportunity to enter into a 99-year Lease to provide a
waterfront park for the Town.

Mayor Allyn, III, stated that Mr. and Mrs. Graham removed a number of the dilapidated
cottages and cleaned up the property taking on a lot of the expense to open up the
property making it accessible. He stated at the Town Council’s July 27, 2022 he was
authorized to have a survey conducted and to draft a legal description of the three-
quarter acre parcel. He also noted that the Town Attorney and the Graham’s Attorney
worked together to draft the proposed lease presented this evening. He thanked Mr. and
Mrs. Graham for their generous offer, noting that it was an incredible gift to the town
and he thanked them for attending tonight’s meeting.

Mayor Allyn went on to note the terms of the proposed 99-year lease would allow the
town to use the 0.8 +/- acre piece of the property as a waterfront park for passive (non-
motorized) recreation such as canoeing, kayaking, fishing, etc., for a leased amount of
$10.00 per year. He explained that the Town could not construct a building on the parcel
but that they could put in a gazebo for picnicking, and that the Graham’s would allow
the town to put a port-a-john on the property seasonally. He noted that the parcel would
be under the Administrative Control of the Parks & Recreation Department, and he
stated that he worked with Parks & Recreation Director Scott Johnson, Jr. to provide
some cost estimates this evening that would make the property ready for use by town
residents and for the annual maintenance.
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Parks and Recreation Director Scott Johnson, Jr. addressed the costs to make the
property ready for use by town residents and for the annual maintenance. He noted that
he expected to receive a cost estimate tomorrow for the grass cutting. He reviewed the
cost estimates as follows:

Lantern Hill Valley Park (Bush Pond)
Quantity Unit Price Total Recurring Notes

Rectangular picnic table 1 $1,300 $1,300 N 8’ Vinyl coated HD rectangular picnic table

ADA picnic table 1 $1,500 $1,500 N 8' Vinyl coated HD ADA rect. picnic table

Seasonal Port-a-John 1 $62 $558 Contract price for P&R- Full Year cost

Picnic Pavilion 1 $18,400 $18,400 14x20 hip roof, Carefree Small Bldgs.

Concrete floor 1 $5,300 $5,300 N 16x22 poured floor

Protective bollards
Mow/maintain

2 $295.00 $590.00 N Protect front pavilion posts, plus install/
concrete

trash removal 1 $41.67 $500 Annual cost

TOTAL Up-Start (Estimated) $28,148

TOTAL ANNUAL MAINTENANCE (Estimated) $1,648

Councilor Saums explained the reason these cost estimates were provided this evening
was because the Finance Committee needed to ask what the long-term costs to the town
would be by leasing the waterfront property. He stated there would be some one-time
capital improvement costs estimated to cost $28,148; and an annual maintenance cost of
about $1,648.

Councilor Ryan questioned the funding source to support the Lantern Hill Valley Park
(Bush Pond). Director Mr. Johnson explained that Parks and Recreation would use
funding from their Capital Account for the initial capital expenses such as the Picnic
Pavilion, Concrete Floor, Picnic Tables, etc. He explained that under Ordinance #200-
009 “An Ordinance Providing For The Transfer of Certain Revenue From the Real
Estate Conveyance Tax To Specific Town of Ledyard Funds” a percentage of the
conveyance tax that the town received was allocated the Parks and Recreation Capital
Account to be used for park improvements and capital other expenses. He also noted that
the Parks and Recreation had some boat docks that were previously used at the
Highlands Lake which he thought could be installed at Bush Pond to be used for a boat
launch, explaining that the Capital Account could be used for the ramps and pylons to
secure the boat docks/launch. He stated the annual maintenance, such as mowing, trash
pick-up and port-a-john would be paid from the Department’s maintenance operating
accounts.

Mr. Johnson noted that he was preparing his budget submittal for next year and he stated
that he would be including the one-time start-up costs for Bush Pond in the Parks and
Recreation’s Fiscal Year 2023/2023 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).
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Councilor Rodriguez questioned when the waterfront park would be available for public
use. Mayor Allyn replied stating that although they may not have the picnic pavilion
and concrete floor poured, that the property could be ready for public use by Spring,
2023, noting that Mr. and Mrs. Graham have already done a tremendous amount of work
on property.

Also discussed was installing some safety barriers along Lantern Hill Road to prevent
vehicles from going off the road into the water.

The Finance Committee thanked Mr. and Mrs. Graham for their very generous offer to
lease a portion of Bush Pond to the Town for $10.00 per year for 99-years to be used for
a waterfront park for residents to enjoy.

VOTE: 3– 0 Approved and so declared

RESULT: RECOMMEND TO APPROVE 3 – 0
MOVER: Tim Ryan, Town Councilor
SECONDER: Andra Ingalls, Town Councilor
AYES: Ingalls, Ryan, Saums

7. Any Old Business proper to come before the Committee.- None.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

Councilor Ingalls moved the meeting be adjourned, seconded by Councilor Ryan.
VOTE: 3 - 0 Approved and so declared, the meeting was adjourned at 5:58 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

William D. Saums
Committee Chairman
Finance Committee
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       ORIGINAL ESTIM REV      ESTIM REV ADJ  REVISED ESTIM REV ACTUAL YTD REVENUE                     REMAINING REVENUE    % COLL

1011401 GENERAL GOVT-CHARGE / SERVICE      

1011401 42046            ACO FEES
                -1,500.00               0.00          -1,500.00            -420.00                             -1,080.00      28.0%
1011401 47009            MISCELLANEOUS
               -80,000.00               0.00         -80,000.00         -52,527.91                            -27,472.09      65.7%
1011401 47019            RED WOLFANTENNAE LEASE
               -55,000.00               0.00         -55,000.00         -54,894.83                               -105.17      99.8%
1011401 47022            TOWN CLERK FEES
              -115,000.00               0.00        -115,000.00         -51,330.99                            -63,669.01      44.6%
1011401 47023            ZONING/WETLANDS/ZBA FEES
               -10,000.00               0.00         -10,000.00          -4,152.50                             -5,847.50      41.5%
1011401 47024            ASSESSOR'S FEES
                  -300.00               0.00            -300.00            -156.00                               -144.00      52.0%
1011401 47025            PLANNING
                -5,000.00               0.00          -5,000.00         -12,149.75                              7,149.75     243.0%
1011401 47036            OTHER LICENSE/PERMIT FEE
                  -350.00               0.00            -350.00          -1,251.99                                901.99     357.7%
1011401 47037            TOWN CLERK DOG LICENSE FEES
                -8,700.00               0.00          -8,700.00          -3,125.00                             -5,575.00      35.9%
1011401 47040            BUILDING PERMIT FEES
              -132,000.00               0.00        -132,000.00         -80,304.87                            -51,695.13      60.8%
1011401 47041            EMPLOYEE HEALTH CO-PREMIUMS
              -604,000.00               0.00        -604,000.00        -192,492.20                           -411,507.80      31.9%
1011401 47045            ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE
              -250,000.00               0.00        -250,000.00               0.00                           -250,000.00        .0%
1011401 47051            LVES CONTR TO EMS BLDG
              -100,000.00               0.00        -100,000.00               0.00                           -100,000.00        .0%
1011401 47053            LVES CONTR TO MED EQUIPMENT
               -20,000.00               0.00         -20,000.00               0.00                            -20,000.00        .0%
1011401 49006            WPCA CONTR TO FINANCE OFC
               -40,000.00               0.00         -40,000.00               0.00                            -40,000.00        .0%
1011401 49051            LESTER HOUSE RENT
               -11,000.00               0.00         -11,000.00          -1,291.67                             -9,708.33      11.7%

     TOTAL GENERAL GOVT-CHARGE / SERVICE 
            -1,432,850.00               0.00      -1,432,850.00        -454,097.71                           -978,752.29      31.7%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
            -1,432,850.00               0.00      -1,432,850.00        -454,097.71                           -978,752.29

1011402 GENERAL GOVT-GRANTS/CONTR          

1011402 41005            TELEPHONE LINE GRANTS
               -22,000.00               0.00         -22,000.00               0.00                            -22,000.00        .0%
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       ORIGINAL ESTIM REV      ESTIM REV ADJ  REVISED ESTIM REV ACTUAL YTD REVENUE                     REMAINING REVENUE    % COLL

1011402 42001            PILOT: STATE PROPERTY
              -925,100.00               0.00        -925,100.00        -925,099.97                                 -0.03     100.0%
1011402 42006            PROPERTY TAX RELIEF-ELDERLY
               -85,000.00               0.00         -85,000.00               0.00                            -85,000.00        .0%
1011402 42007            DISABLED REIMBURSEMENT
                -1,200.00               0.00          -1,200.00               0.00                             -1,200.00        .0%
1011402 42010            CIVIL PREPAREDNESS REIMB
                     0.00               0.00               0.00          -3,900.00                              3,900.00     100.0%
1011402 42011            ADDITIONAL VETERANS GRANT
                -3,500.00               0.00          -3,500.00               0.00                             -3,500.00        .0%
1011402 42014            PEQUOT FUND
            -1,391,000.00               0.00      -1,391,000.00               0.00                         -1,391,000.00        .0%
1011402 42044            MUNIC REV SHARING-SALES TAX
                     0.00               0.00               0.00        -291,321.65                            291,321.65     100.0%

     TOTAL GENERAL GOVT-GRANTS/CONTR     
            -2,427,800.00               0.00      -2,427,800.00      -1,220,321.62                         -1,207,478.38      50.3%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
            -2,427,800.00               0.00      -2,427,800.00      -1,220,321.62                         -1,207,478.38

1012001 PUBLIC SAFETY-CHARGE / SERVICE     

1012001 47005            LEDYARD FIRE POLICE CHARGES
                -5,000.00               0.00          -5,000.00               0.00                             -5,000.00        .0%
1012001 47007            DISPATCH REGIONALIZATION
               -56,000.00               0.00         -56,000.00         -23,441.76                            -32,558.24      41.9%
1012001 47017            GALES FERRY FIRE POLICE CHARGE
                -3,000.00               0.00          -3,000.00               0.00                             -3,000.00        .0%
1012001 47018            POLICE OT
               -50,000.00               0.00         -50,000.00         -75,112.80                             25,112.80     150.2%
1012001 47038            PERMIT FEE
                -7,000.00               0.00          -7,000.00          -2,870.00                             -4,130.00      41.0%
1012001 47039            RECORDS FEE
                -1,800.00               0.00          -1,800.00            -814.00                               -986.00      45.2%
1012001 47055            SHARED SERVICES - ASSESSOR
                     0.00               0.00               0.00          -3,071.34                              3,071.34     100.0%

     TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY-CHARGE / SERVICE
              -122,800.00               0.00        -122,800.00        -105,309.90                            -17,490.10      85.8%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
              -122,800.00               0.00        -122,800.00        -105,309.90                            -17,490.10

1012002 PUBLIC SAFETY-GRANTS/CONTR         

1012002 42034            DUI GRANT REIMBURSEMENT
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=EeblHrWe20aWIIusDWyeHabtzaL%2BY7HM4E6Vi%2F3vhlk3F7oHbiEf3EKaEyexRM3u
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=EN9fARwfWIyx7KWwrrNE%2FMFHNwdyikpqxeQuOQl%2FSHIRaUlDrnj6mlZlew4eJ6EX
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FLu8gKzJ956dr5srPt5dJetE090zfolkmWIsXI09rZOFk9MyRyR1wyoeG5BJz2Qu
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5i27ifvpqnLBTLZDEiOWyezmHHGILMOzM8%2F7mOZFvDAq5BIbliu9g3vHsoIpOdZa
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pnkGntQqYOAz%2F4IYT37mIbMXTStOtfMVSVpEk9AZpk4qfFlpJxUHYzH6IHX82lv%2B
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       ORIGINAL ESTIM REV      ESTIM REV ADJ  REVISED ESTIM REV ACTUAL YTD REVENUE                     REMAINING REVENUE    % COLL

                -6,000.00               0.00          -6,000.00               0.00                             -6,000.00        .0%
1012002 47049            DISPATCH--PRESTON
               -25,000.00               0.00         -25,000.00               0.00                            -25,000.00        .0%

     TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY-GRANTS/CONTR    
               -31,000.00               0.00         -31,000.00               0.00                            -31,000.00        .0%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
               -31,000.00               0.00         -31,000.00               0.00                            -31,000.00

1013001 HEALTH/WELFARE-CHARGE/ SERVICE     

1013001 47021            SENIOR CENTER FEES
                -9,600.00               0.00          -9,600.00          -3,068.00                             -6,532.00      32.0%
1013001 47034            PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING FEES
              -800,000.00               0.00        -800,000.00        -235,744.78                           -564,255.22      29.5%

     TOTAL HEALTH/WELFARE-CHARGE/ SERVICE
              -809,600.00               0.00        -809,600.00        -238,812.78                           -570,787.22      29.5%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
              -809,600.00               0.00        -809,600.00        -238,812.78                           -570,787.22

1013002 HEALTH/WELFARE-GRANTS/CONTR        

1013002 42003            LYS GRANT DEP OF EDUCATION
               -26,167.00               0.00         -26,167.00         -16,647.00                             -9,520.00      63.6%
1013002 42032            PILOT: SR HOUSING AUTHORITY
                -8,200.00               0.00          -8,200.00          -9,672.63                              1,472.63     118.0%
1013002 42041            LYS GRANT ENRICHMENT
                -2,000.00               0.00          -2,000.00               0.00                             -2,000.00        .0%

     TOTAL HEALTH/WELFARE-GRANTS/CONTR   
               -36,367.00               0.00         -36,367.00         -26,319.63                            -10,047.37      72.4%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
               -36,367.00               0.00         -36,367.00         -26,319.63                            -10,047.37

1014001 PUBLIC WORKS-CHARGE / SERVICE      

1014001 47020            TIPPING FEES
               -52,000.00               0.00         -52,000.00         -21,499.95                            -30,500.05      41.3%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KiZ4bW3rxtEG%2Fz6tmAUWrAXLk2qUYHzx7xo%2BfppXO46FkjkB36mdbxNfMfuboRlJ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=LYpyXyjrGJDgBzcvlV3oMkBlcd4G2diwezD%2BC3wd8xku6OHjC9NIt1jr9t%2F0Me%2Bq
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jUdBfvTTrTlHAXNmlDazwIXJX4PMu5RcwdF0c7PUkAYQ2LF6rb0STP8JGKI1C9g7
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Nvu%2BXGQQXTyK%2Fi%2BeY918cF3zbCu8yFMy4bu7w4bW%2B2WUqXM5Myu%2FibmOIuryXSbG
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6RH3HIShaArRKt%2FyiAHSnXjdRI4MNx0z3L9Mon94O%2B6fvCGnODcy8%2FehTXKrbFUk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sy7f%2BP9LnKsFfJyfHOYrURkWHAKD6Av6eCWKggTvrBPgPzXcPCP3mmotsIzlaBhh
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2UP8gz31f1yA7hMRIczXXC8nEEZH%2B0LoxlHz9pD2wR3UkY41SyatYu3BgodED4sZ
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     TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS-CHARGE / SERVICE 
               -52,000.00               0.00         -52,000.00         -21,499.95                            -30,500.05      41.3%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
               -52,000.00               0.00         -52,000.00         -21,499.95                            -30,500.05

1015001 LIBRARY CHARGE / SERVICE           

1015001 47032            LIBRARY FEES
                  -375.00               0.00            -375.00            -406.91                                 31.91     108.5%

     TOTAL LIBRARY CHARGE / SERVICE      
                  -375.00               0.00            -375.00            -406.91                                 31.91     108.5%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
                  -375.00               0.00            -375.00            -406.91                                 31.91

1016001 PARKS & REC-CHARGE / SERVICE       

1016001 47033            PROGRAM REGISTRATION FEES
                -3,000.00               0.00          -3,000.00          -1,138.00                             -1,862.00      37.9%

     TOTAL PARKS & REC-CHARGE / SERVICE  
                -3,000.00               0.00          -3,000.00          -1,138.00                             -1,862.00      37.9%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
                -3,000.00               0.00          -3,000.00          -1,138.00                             -1,862.00

1017001 EDUCATION-CHARGE / SERVICE         

1017001 47010            VO AG TUITION
              -736,832.00               0.00        -736,832.00               0.00                           -736,832.00        .0%
1017001 47011            SPECIAL EDUCATION TUITION
               -97,013.00               0.00         -97,013.00               0.00                            -97,013.00        .0%
1017001 47012            NON RESIDENT TUITION
              -138,590.00               0.00        -138,590.00               0.00                           -138,590.00        .0%

     TOTAL EDUCATION-CHARGE / SERVICE    
              -972,435.00               0.00        -972,435.00               0.00                           -972,435.00        .0%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
              -972,435.00               0.00        -972,435.00               0.00                           -972,435.00
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2B61Jc8WyLjlNa9O413HrHUlKDvRqhOJRRL8gxslxS5Zl1c0k7hiHlCWglsSDWgxC
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ev0iGa0QqdTSFamAxb7aF7WcNITMc4dmkehKM4yvT2SXh3xeHenW2wQ80pq8ll0l
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Em%2BpZEbcTlQmGOKjm%2F5wAN7yohMQ3iRlJlykZgMdvAlSbzL3p67KJEUUd33kLtFD
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=s9K07QATfYqICl%2FHAB4n3LRwW2YMNxppw9BRtPf55U3M%2BNdVEVt6hhDB4zp7x5Mo
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TexVszau%2BKDtpQvXTseWLAwiEj%2FMTMQ354%2FMP0btiiYFAjtg%2F7huut36n0U03EFY
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1017002 EDUCATION-GRANTS/CONTR             

1017002 42016            FEDERAL PUBLIC LAW 874
            -1,500,000.00               0.00      -1,500,000.00         -61,822.69                         -1,438,177.31       4.1%
1017002 42018            VO-AG STABLIZATION FUNDING
              -850,000.00               0.00        -850,000.00        -525,620.00                           -324,380.00      61.8%
1017002 42020            EDUCATION COST SHARING
           -11,492,516.00               0.00     -11,492,516.00      -2,837,129.00                         -8,655,387.00      24.7%

     TOTAL EDUCATION-GRANTS/CONTR        
           -13,842,516.00               0.00     -13,842,516.00      -3,424,571.69                        -10,417,944.31      24.7%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
           -13,842,516.00               0.00     -13,842,516.00      -3,424,571.69                        -10,417,944.31

1019501 GENERAL-GENERAL - TAXES            

1019501 41000            PROPERTY TAXES, CURRENT
           -41,980,249.00               0.00     -41,980,249.00     -23,942,822.30                        -18,037,426.70      57.0%
1019501 41001            ARREARS
              -308,024.00               0.00        -308,024.00        -232,027.09                            -75,996.91      75.3%
1019501 41002            INTEREST
              -171,965.00               0.00        -171,965.00        -107,401.14                            -64,563.86      62.5%
1019501 41003            SUSPENSE TAX COLLECTIONS
               -35,495.00               0.00         -35,495.00          -3,834.52                            -31,660.48      10.8%
1019501 41004            LIENS
                -3,745.00               0.00          -3,745.00         -13,499.92                              9,754.92     360.5%
1019501 41008            MV Property Tax Grant
                     0.00               0.00               0.00        -143,385.00                            143,385.00     100.0%

     TOTAL GENERAL-GENERAL - TAXES       
           -42,499,478.00               0.00     -42,499,478.00     -24,442,969.97                        -18,056,508.03      57.5%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
           -42,499,478.00               0.00     -42,499,478.00     -24,442,969.97                        -18,056,508.03

1019502 GENERAL-GEN - MISC                 

1019502 49002            TRANSERS IN:
            -1,200,000.00               0.00      -1,200,000.00         -10,517.00                         -1,189,483.00        .9%

194

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mFcLUz%2FY8ZbgQI5OOuaKVes%2FysbZAR8CVxpKkN7uE12sX0MTaDyI3gQX1et7Lcyk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=73ralHQTuGki%2Buh0mTI04tTWOtR6WymH%2BXQnZV9ASP%2BCBWU2IG8fJvNtH6OakfZC
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CNcyFhEKpJ%2FIOXOKxlH88zvw1cKwjSCu9pdpTyPS1xI%2FXRQJkGDaFB0GjYGEzS%2Fk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=LlyQlPJwmJT4oKEZ%2FM8l3Wg5ixrS7Kf8gPuq8Reri3tO8zBPbucvaJ9DlmbltIFH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6tJ8%2B%2FFaSLL%2B4Sgb83dpcXNNMp2qFT8QVbhX2EjapPnd1Kj37HKNMuHtr2%2Bw3i38
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=PxqJ1%2Bp9vag5%2FE0xUOtNnHgCzcgE4AVD8sQAZ9SakMQ7MNH09BOzsWb%2BsLaFfsRE
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NY7qUOtOIPb2OYq4dcjIdP%2FDi1nbqbFiMlLHi1E3qU%2Fsr2%2BFZ5mMJ5V8x7nt8zxH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YpTeb%2Fh8e0wJKGGJRSOOU7zqXT1o8R%2BSU6QuW5GjB13UOFaYSGEoDNwpfovFthaN
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZeFuHhaWzBPNPGRyEs4no7nTcZEtH%2BoBsFXdsseKrJM2J9dOL55%2BwZQWL6FFWvKE
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QnuSttC%2F62lVHshym7kU1zKyfn3pwPa86%2FzOWm4NrR%2B6BXZq%2Bu8mDy%2BWSXnqOKjW
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     TOTAL GENERAL-GEN - MISC            
            -1,200,000.00               0.00      -1,200,000.00         -10,517.00                         -1,189,483.00        .9%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
            -1,200,000.00               0.00      -1,200,000.00         -10,517.00                         -1,189,483.00

1019503 GENERAL-GEN - INV                  

1019503 48001            INTEREST ON DEPOSITS
               -80,000.00               0.00         -80,000.00        -167,260.57                             87,260.57     209.1%

     TOTAL GENERAL-GEN - INV             
               -80,000.00               0.00         -80,000.00        -167,260.57                             87,260.57     209.1%

                     TOTAL REVENUES
               -80,000.00               0.00         -80,000.00        -167,260.57                             87,260.57

                        GRAND TOTAL
           -63,510,221.00               0.00     -63,510,221.00     -30,113,225.73                        -33,396,995.27      47.4%

                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Matthew Bonin **                                          
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               Field #     Total  Page Break
  Sequence 1       9         Y        N
  Sequence 2       0         N        N
  Sequence 3       0         N        N
  Sequence 4       0         N        N

  Report title: 
   YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT              

  Includes accounts exceeding   0% of budget.
  Print totals only: N                          Year/Period: 2023/ 6
  Print Full or Short description: F            Print MTD Version: N
  Print full GL account: N
  Format type: 1                                Roll projects to object: N
  Double space: N                               Carry forward code: 1
  Suppress zero bal accts: Y
  Include requisition amount: N
  Print Revenues-Version headings: Y
  Print revenue as credit: Y
  Print revenue budgets as zero: N
  Include Fund Balance: N
  Print journal detail: N
      From Yr/Per: 2022/ 1
         To Yr/Per: 2022/ 6
  Include budget entries: Y
  Incl encumb/liq entries: Y
  Sort by JE # or PO #: J
  Detail format option: 1
  Include additional JE comments: N
  Multiyear view: D
  Amounts/totals exceed 999 million dollars: N

         Find Criteria
Field Name         Field Value

Fund               0101
TWN FUNCTION       
DEPT / LOCAT       
SDEP/BOEFUNC       
Character Code     
Org                
Object             
Project            
Account type       Revenue
Account status     
Rollup Code        
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10110101 TOWN COUNCIL                       

10110101 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
               117,038.00        -117,038.00               0.00               0.00               0.00               0.00        .0%
10110101 51601           TREASURER
                18,296.00               0.00          18,296.00           9,070.27               0.00           9,225.73      49.6%
10110101 51602           ADMIN TOWN COUNCIL
                65,860.00               0.00          65,860.00          30,678.54               0.00          35,181.46      46.6%
10110101 53600           ACCOUNTING SERVICES/AUDIT
                35,500.00               0.00          35,500.00          13,500.00          22,000.00               0.00     100.0%
10110101 53610           LEGAL SERVICES
                50,000.00               0.00          50,000.00          10,357.00          25,643.00          14,000.00      72.0%
10110101 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 2,560.00               0.00           2,560.00              59.52             440.48           2,060.00      19.5%
10110101 58790           CONTINGENCY
                15,600.00               0.00          15,600.00               0.00               0.00          15,600.00        .0%

     TOTAL TOWN COUNCIL                  
               304,854.00        -117,038.00         187,816.00          63,665.33          48,083.48          76,067.19      59.5%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               304,854.00        -117,038.00         187,816.00          63,665.33          48,083.48          76,067.19

10110103 HISTORIC DISTRICTS                 

10110103 52205           CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES
                12,000.00               0.00          12,000.00           1,291.67           9,708.33           1,000.00      91.7%
10110103 54500           HISTORIC BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE
                 6,000.00               0.00           6,000.00           3,198.75              11.25           2,790.00      53.5%
10110103 54501           SAW MILL MAINTENANCE
                 4,700.00               0.00           4,700.00           2,193.50           1,174.04           1,332.46      71.6%
10110103 56100           LESTER/RESEARCH OPERATING
                 2,875.00               0.00           2,875.00             791.10           1,054.96           1,028.94      64.2%
10110103 56101           SAW MILL OPERATING
                 1,975.00               0.00           1,975.00             177.29              72.71           1,725.00      12.7%
10110103 58790           MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
                   900.00               0.00             900.00               0.00               0.00             900.00        .0%

     TOTAL HISTORIC DISTRICTS            
                28,450.00               0.00          28,450.00           7,652.31          12,021.29           8,776.40      69.2%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                28,450.00               0.00          28,450.00           7,652.31          12,021.29           8,776.40
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TNzNE%2FcLX5wLfin6292TXsjKlDazor0RC2IZ%2B1LRkGfNPaAEGdUPc0XagtlhCdB2
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=XI%2Fkb8bJmUgL%2FCsst9aPCdTHRicflxyXBI9Pop81LICu2fF8LGUVqMXAa0O7dQ1m
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=auIaikkgEwVQonhg%2B08O%2F%2BLgz8xQ3CKzSV1tzdcDIu8UfYonH%2BpmJGCwgBM3KB3L
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JY0t6vGwoOs%2FfWnLaE6o%2BqKd0fhptMERKs8Lb0sPCtf3%2BRM0mElLDd0QLg5O4wp3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QyzGjN6w%2BMc2WMjDr5ZUzKqfWIkw%2Bjy1%2FUjIwBvB2g8TYsvRhEmnQYYPeB7GkX4G
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=86D5JHN%2FTTPH6pWDL6djI5qzfx2yHjbM4niK4mLYKnXk6A13L7l0sfK5%2B4S4mpPw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=M5N0XK9RR9US836VYZccMIricMRSQPjuVfiRlgHJl%2FNw6zxv1B0kioqskm%2BIhVn%2B
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2Bbt7AYctVUI%2BbdTgaIqP0MnvUaFVJV1%2FxcIZpYEsY3pGoU8L7rD5gTcj0ysuLc6a
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=p6%2BZQbPEFz%2FIAPrR6%2FjXkparRLMUaMUr%2BvmiHT9MsfL0%2FIT61O1pAYLavr5r3GRx
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=MyLbfZD3v98AIFlr%2BDpd7id5r2%2BIq05H1%2FonwHL88JBHyh6Q58F80NGEN5Cd0x%2BT
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=z859w85NvsxE%2BmXkGHtIICsSUAvF5RVrD7Q%2BPrWIxHa5U8rsKJ4%2Fi3KqE%2BLzlvqW
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2PBDV6sSTfKVHqs1u1z84ZVCFWoXVP%2B0w9elZGOOOyiSFwDmiUBBfQpn9%2BLf6n7I
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ClaQ46mOdHGRpMDtgdKY%2B51zAj1b%2FECgwukrYwzymzTM7EXm1GTJKZZKaTxRiypa
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  FOR 2023 06

10110107 CEMETERY COMMITTEE
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10110107 CEMETERY COMMITTEE                 

10110107 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00               0.00               0.00           2,000.00        .0%

     TOTAL CEMETERY COMMITTEE            
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00               0.00               0.00           2,000.00        .0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00               0.00               0.00           2,000.00

10110201 MAYOR'S OFFICE                     

10110201 51160           CUSTODIAN SALARIES
                41,475.00         -41,475.00               0.00               0.00               0.00               0.00        .0%
10110201 51305           TOWN HALL FLOATER
                17,732.00               0.00          17,732.00           8,295.61               0.00           9,436.39      46.8%
10110201 51604           MAYOR
                95,000.00               0.00          95,000.00          44,211.59               0.00          50,788.41      46.5%
10110201 51607           MAYORAL ASST
                45,000.00               0.00          45,000.00          20,874.74               0.00          24,125.26      46.4%
10110201 51700           ADMINISTRATIVE WAGES
                10,500.00               0.00          10,500.00               0.00               0.00          10,500.00        .0%
10110201 55301           TOWN NEWSLETTER
                 6,000.00               0.00           6,000.00           2,179.70           3,820.30               0.00     100.0%
10110201 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 2,600.00               0.00           2,600.00             125.13           1,074.87           1,400.00      46.2%
10110201 58790           CONTINGENCY
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00           3,108.22           2,258.43           4,633.35      53.7%

     TOTAL MAYOR'S OFFICE                
               228,307.00         -41,475.00         186,832.00          78,794.99           7,153.60         100,883.41      46.0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               228,307.00         -41,475.00         186,832.00          78,794.99           7,153.60         100,883.41

10110203 ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT             

10110203 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                18,000.00          41,475.00          59,475.00          26,631.05          30,662.83           2,181.12      96.3%

198

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1ALzkpvVzXBfRmVDdVnIXUu9UTRpW7EXXcrhfr7sO4mqEt9nycc70bxdUlLro%2FMU
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BoWgOTU186RX7HszXMfZeUd8ZS8QB3kkwKYmEiEdWXuVOCNVCoY7mxwuSrvgfn%2FY
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2MftJYW%2Fi0eALJCvQMyBIbFOacq2HhwNUSMRPGdQJaGFqkKnEw3%2FymcgVNZ7OoLN
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=OOEZJGhMhWMrXbqw4ISmponhDyiw2OkFy93EBNqGoHc2cRw7j%2FK6hYnVpF7uQm%2Bc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qNMQ6b6FpMNFgjobhaB8uJOR72kYNi1psd5tAvx4e1A7G%2FAhxatLZ857qJVYv1O6
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nA%2FJlDDJBpMkmnz5yz6tgjLjsfCWxp9bEmljCx9e4fztKoVixlwA9l0vdNH9nHqe
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=og917mjr%2BhdqwrNua%2FNdlUiEPOoDbjwtwy47GWaya9LeFgM0OfiyfE8IZ5AVFnfy
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7BwG%2BmRlORoH9T%2FkpzARbtCFlL0wR8naaPhwLB7dX3vels2tGwsU341lIMHQ3SxS
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Qo9MvvtZooEDRGQBxuNAGHoA9KbehY%2FY72xpC4IBQSgAFLHoFUKsBynT6Mzi%2FR%2Bf
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=W3DWVweq1XabMkPagNCkbJimUi08Ziw5vnXZM2Yfls65whdcdQnxbfKW6%2F%2BvD1QD
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  FOR 2023 06

10110203 ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10110203 54311           FIRE HYDRANT MAINTENANCE
                10,900.00               0.00          10,900.00               0.00               0.00          10,900.00        .0%
10110203 55247           ADA COMPLIANCE
                 1,000.00               0.00           1,000.00             110.00             390.00             500.00      50.0%
10110203 55410           ADVERTISING/LEGAL NOTICES
                15,000.00               0.00          15,000.00           6,265.50           3,734.50           5,000.00      66.7%
10110203 56205           WATER
                 3,600.00               0.00           3,600.00           1,516.17           1,983.83             100.00      97.2%
10110203 56900           OTHER SUPPLIES
                 6,500.00               0.00           6,500.00           2,612.76           3,637.24             250.00      96.2%
10110203 56910           POSTAGE
                18,000.00               0.00          18,000.00          10,320.09           6,979.91             700.00      96.1%
10110203 58100           DUES & FEES
                 8,477.00               0.00           8,477.00           8,477.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%
10110203 58105           MISC DUES&FEES
                11,200.00               0.00          11,200.00          10,218.00               0.00             982.00      91.2%

     TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT        
                92,677.00          41,475.00         134,152.00          66,150.57          47,388.31          20,613.12      84.6%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                92,677.00          41,475.00         134,152.00          66,150.57          47,388.31          20,613.12

10110205 LEGAL SERVICES                     

10110205 53610           SPECIALLY APPROVED COUNSEL
                30,000.00               0.00          30,000.00          17,715.13          13,084.87            -800.00     102.7%
10110205 53615           TOWN ATTORNEY
                20,000.00               0.00          20,000.00           2,687.00          12,511.00           4,802.00      76.0%

     TOTAL LEGAL SERVICES                
                50,000.00               0.00          50,000.00          20,402.13          25,595.87           4,002.00      92.0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                50,000.00               0.00          50,000.00          20,402.13          25,595.87           4,002.00

10110207 PROBATE                            

10110207 54900           PURCHASED SERVICES
                10,575.00               0.00          10,575.00           8,287.00               0.00           2,288.00      78.4%

     TOTAL PROBATE                       
                10,575.00               0.00          10,575.00           8,287.00               0.00           2,288.00      78.4%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                10,575.00               0.00          10,575.00           8,287.00               0.00           2,288.00
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=kPFl%2FK3N1Vd5LshenyVcrK5%2FRgSOpN8Nx6ftmv%2FnsJnVTvf55TR0HKMzk4bHzGbK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=MEXQyn2QnQ5%2FF3%2F%2FiCXhR9OFjF%2BJvoyyrLRuR4YvoDF29Bw8VBYEoNCCJrHr7hgN
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jwhuhikcL%2Ba9lATt%2BXlivERG25f5gYaIbRe3KjIEtkhIOlruRzXkSZFrtbzS5kA9
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZV%2BgUkvUsbhCt9wE1TwTeLxeOYpfjHjEg7dLK%2FS134bINCWYQ8EVq%2BHwThaIKGs0
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HfUU8sEr64CkJYyZhAN65sTZhLeRUr5S4Igs4a1w9D%2FNZiBw0%2BjDeGHAm%2BdqUuHF
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=fkyIEy2jgwA55YCs0U18OHwY%2BFLRDTL9kY9J2eng0qy9qTylzdl7D2eWI46n80KZ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=y2LbMEe0bpqmVxzs8ikqSzHxMpc%2BxDuw9S9WLHsRxgpFF7XMQi%2F%2BgxFLATRULgiK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=y8Fws%2FuOuWKgFLMx0uInYqQyNP%2BTr3FRHlFaOy7YmWWuiI2wvKSNKCOISOuCUnj0
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hTUqHl7jRd%2FVdlWNXXNfpotVWAOV1AhPm%2B7QGZzVoaZINBDjxB4LR7VYq3PECU6W
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7pI36%2F7yM%2F59NKTPkXLpZjZ%2BcPw4GQpgjZ582zJeCyHEdGjcoJqxP%2BKoCTi58iKg
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2%2B%2BgZ9YjXu4LpyE3%2FvdilsFMq7BOM4mClmWw7sbdHpOPkCOz%2FNziQF1%2FOiYCQmFa
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  FOR 2023 06

10110209 PROPERTY INSURANCE
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10110209 PROPERTY INSURANCE                 

10110209 55210           AUTO INSURANCE
                71,417.00               0.00          71,417.00          53,738.20          17,603.24              75.56      99.9%
10110209 55220           BOILER & MACHINERY INSURANCE
                 7,458.00               0.00           7,458.00           5,512.50           1,837.58             107.92      98.6%
10110209 55231           POLICE PROFESS LIABILITY
                16,411.00               0.00          16,411.00          12,135.00           4,045.17             230.83      98.6%
10110209 55232           GEN LIAB / EXCESS LIAB
               153,633.00               0.00         153,633.00         114,690.00          36,841.56           2,101.44      98.6%
10110209 55233           PUBLIC OFFICIALS LIAB
                38,821.00               0.00          38,821.00          28,710.00           9,570.40             540.60      98.6%
10110209 55234           SCHOOL OFFICIALS LIAB
                14,302.00               0.00          14,302.00          10,575.00           3,525.15             201.85      98.6%
10110209 55235           VNA LIABILITY
                 7,203.00               0.00           7,203.00           5,457.50           1,652.57              92.93      98.7%
10110209 55241           PROPERTY INSURANCE--BOE
                79,688.00               0.00          79,688.00          58,927.80          19,643.33           1,116.87      98.6%
10110209 55242           AMBULANCE & FIRE
                52,530.00               0.00          52,530.00          56,011.00               0.00          -3,481.00     106.6%
10110209 55245           INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00           5,508.95             106.00           4,385.05      56.1%
10110209 55246           RISK MANAGEMENT
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00               0.00               0.00          10,000.00        .0%
10110209 55249           CYBER COVERAGE
                20,400.00               0.00          20,400.00               0.00               0.00          20,400.00        .0%

     TOTAL PROPERTY INSURANCE            
               481,863.00               0.00         481,863.00         351,265.95          94,825.00          35,772.05      92.6%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               481,863.00               0.00         481,863.00         351,265.95          94,825.00          35,772.05

10110211 HEALTH DISTRICT                    

10110211 58790           HEALTH DISTRICT
                     0.00         117,038.00         117,038.00         117,037.80               0.00               0.20     100.0%

     TOTAL HEALTH DISTRICT               
                     0.00         117,038.00         117,038.00         117,037.80               0.00               0.20     100.0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                     0.00         117,038.00         117,038.00         117,037.80               0.00               0.20

200

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=J7x0xkqV69nEMgDEqoY8VF2nE28seIm%2Bhk%2F6N%2FxpDqk%2FFLMAEIvSFfk1mKABPnao
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=b%2FMkWSxTGBkA2tTFxuYHb1bwwDjFHvY9OulsLppsOHv%2ForlpjYOtzlc1nenClcE9
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Jmd8%2BVJTCg4LWGXG0xh8SG3tHkwjrbOGErHvc3VX%2BMC4vkAoo1YHTl%2FjoCIsWfZc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=StiVMEpURu05NQefyBFIsG28i0oiOHKJcdSTpI4foplMvDVVOCaQ6Wls89q%2BB1pJ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YTBbtyVJqd7OnEckXoaM%2BB4jLiXx%2BOn%2F%2FFo0onM5rYbEGa%2BQBHscSY%2FvsZmsvzly
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=us9QcVNmN1f8bNf8uZqu4A5nYsQEVL90BuOiP6R5HGRt5pdpy3TgblwFAQL9b6%2Bn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xuJ4fn62UClCO8RvvZ5iQ5OgQi%2F%2FybpVc6ZfBQ0rRssSS5J8mnFfCsJb4rZzQX4%2B
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NY5%2FErBRRAxOkN3%2FY1fFXYYNDKeJTcE4zRUiL11znBHsAGaF94ZKpAxnr2%2F%2BX6wH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ugf278JC5NbCav4VdUhk169w%2Bcd3oJew7FO27H4h2OG4w7LeBQkfTYcxyzI4yDzt
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mIZGBaXUh%2FajI33H3Oqu6eozhxPcSgay46wYUySOvaw3hzoFjFtZ4wLw15qyoa76
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=OXtyyHdhP9GyGwW6VeAVPjuoOVmJcGHsZrAePrIm7qeRuv6nbNE3fh5wDx3ThHo%2B
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=VUg0oQn1ZmQHb2ksT5KLI6cQXDozlDkaYAi0GVEYn7iISjW1tsoFLCr1%2FAa1GJFs
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=o14yf63ju8IiEdWa2EQyBAXYLG5zNIOHOH2FV%2BqfE%2BVN3x%2BSuupATxelspdN7hn0
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  FOR 2023 06

10110213 CONSERVATION COMMISSION
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10110213 CONSERVATION COMMISSION            

10110213 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 1,150.00               0.00           1,150.00               0.00               0.00           1,150.00        .0%
10110213 57300           NEW EQUIPMENT
                 1,500.00               0.00           1,500.00               0.00               0.00           1,500.00        .0%
10110213 58790           MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
                   925.00               0.00             925.00               0.00               0.00             925.00        .0%

     TOTAL CONSERVATION COMMISSION       
                 3,575.00               0.00           3,575.00               0.00               0.00           3,575.00        .0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                 3,575.00               0.00           3,575.00               0.00               0.00           3,575.00

10110251 HUMAN RESOURCES STAFF              

10110251 51606           HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR
               120,405.00               0.00         120,405.00          56,034.61               0.00          64,370.39      46.5%
10110251 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 1,950.00               0.00           1,950.00             810.00               0.00           1,140.00      41.5%

     TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES STAFF         
               122,355.00               0.00         122,355.00          56,844.61               0.00          65,510.39      46.5%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               122,355.00               0.00         122,355.00          56,844.61               0.00          65,510.39

10110253 EMPLOYEE EXPENSES                  

10110253 52000           HEALTH CARE GEN GOV
             1,052,000.00               0.00       1,052,000.00         474,244.90               0.00         577,755.10      45.1%
10110253 52100           HEALTH CARE BOE
             5,304,000.00               0.00       5,304,000.00       2,183,176.80               0.00       3,120,823.20      41.2%
10110253 52101           HEALTHCARE WAIVERS
               259,750.00               0.00         259,750.00         104,713.85               0.00         155,036.15      40.3%
10110253 52102           BENEFITS CONSULTANT
                20,000.00               0.00          20,000.00           2,500.00           7,500.00          10,000.00      50.0%
10110253 52105           HEALTHCARE-FIREFIGHTERS
               109,566.00               0.00         109,566.00          53,415.83          44,997.25          11,152.92      89.8%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FT7q%2FvyXkuHZ4LCQKa2VYlAsf4DzX9vO1zs9WiWUDMSenbDXa9ZGj4XyqhyzO8BD
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3NYbkCAEsD7F23FwmzbvfOWFHzZVjJHgj57%2BLUV61HXZ8o5s6eTro%2F%2FzJ6FVvL%2F7
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5c3Qzay%2FfIrAMXkUGLCSHAk%2BYvGnaXpjs%2FQDmmjy0Tvl6tdMsLedX%2B87NcXbmj%2F6
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=iMgW4nKc2NhdsPLBPPrqVcxPVpDeyZfSriT3o56ITCMIlD2CTQ3k0nLwLIj6gvQn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2I5NQMRw6pEHDQsPT4KyvRV9x3t%2FoHgNz5KGtqHSMOj1U3udbpaORKIK%2FKDMX1PF
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tpfubyAe2RtBP6unUI%2BScqCEKwqu542zpF2shxm%2BBIogKw9vELLXwhU8j7EZh8iT
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=aTwi%2FKHBBL8AB1TXPi7pk0Gd2Twi65xH4YOgdQ5Z0DgbRkxbVp1E00oyt1jo9tdS
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1UZ0behwm0qHCb6xOVpxlBSQYU6MDIp0YptKAlX2z9NpcJxNZjCYDdAMj9pHy7Fi
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3BtE16%2BR7cEwnCYxp1%2BIy1xskNpgued%2BG06Kl%2FAr5XY6KZQhQhgkjKYteStAiV2C
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=js%2FmUFWXd5Mz76y71MfqrZXz%2F5IVG2Zua%2BoDYXWoUETQ59ePF0jRE0IVFEdlQOOG
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10110253 EMPLOYEE EXPENSES
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10110253 52106           BOE RETIREE HEALTHCARE
               604,000.00               0.00         604,000.00               0.00               0.00         604,000.00        .0%
10110253 52201           HEALTH CARE TEAMSTERS
               352,000.00               0.00         352,000.00         150,080.80         201,919.20               0.00     100.0%
10110253 52203           MISC EMPLOYEE EXPENSES
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           1,401.12             589.90           3,008.98      39.8%
10110253 52204           PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING
                 4,780.00               0.00           4,780.00           1,548.85             751.15           2,480.00      48.1%
10110253 52205           CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES
                52,500.00               0.00          52,500.00          39,055.64               0.00          13,444.36      74.4%
10110253 52206           RETIREMENT CASHOUT
                75,000.00               0.00          75,000.00               0.00               0.00          75,000.00        .0%
10110253 52207           PAYROLL EXPENSES
                10,200.00               0.00          10,200.00           5,964.42           4,235.58               0.00     100.0%
10110253 52300           RETIREMENT
             1,163,197.00               0.00       1,163,197.00               0.00               0.00       1,163,197.00        .0%
10110253 52310           DEFINED CONTR PLAN
               315,000.00               0.00         315,000.00         170,678.10           1,576.62         142,745.28      54.7%
10110253 52400           SALARY BENEFIT ADJUSTMENT
                75,000.00               0.00          75,000.00          37,770.09             510.11          36,719.80      51.0%
10110253 52500           SOCIAL SECURITY
               627,544.00               0.00         627,544.00         325,591.38               0.00         301,952.62      51.9%
10110253 52600           UNEMPLOYMENT COMP
                 7,500.00               0.00           7,500.00               0.00               0.00           7,500.00        .0%
10110253 52900           WORKER'S COMP GEN GOV
               136,941.00               0.00         136,941.00          75,813.75          25,273.25          35,854.00      73.8%
10110253 52910           WORKERS COMP BOE
               324,438.00               0.00         324,438.00         227,441.25          75,819.75          21,177.00      93.5%
10110253 52915           LIFE/AD&D/DISABILITY INSURANCE
                18,831.00               0.00          18,831.00           7,566.05           6,838.47           4,426.48      76.5%

     TOTAL EMPLOYEE EXPENSES             
            10,517,247.00               0.00      10,517,247.00       3,860,962.83         370,011.28       6,286,272.89      40.2%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
            10,517,247.00               0.00      10,517,247.00       3,860,962.83         370,011.28       6,286,272.89

10110301 REGISTRARS                         

10110301 51700           ADMINISTRATIVE WAGES
                39,614.00               0.00          39,614.00          19,644.28               0.00          19,969.72      49.6%
10110301 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 1,200.00               0.00           1,200.00               0.00               0.00           1,200.00        .0%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6zn8s6p97%2BwlRl7Z4oqTtApn7SFKmsqxNnVD%2BYUJsNluSgCgh%2BIRRCXU7Gbc5Dyu
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=dR9bzDfcO4AQljl6zJyHFoBiMXMDmbtCcT6j9TnKFOCzHhTuu27%2FDpAjqYRIO3Cq
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TYTFsWSrZq4Hi%2B%2BTwpJLN%2B9776OcWY%2B8ZHT4cp6Ak2KQi%2BgAikbAtpx3gfM8biLB
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ITROKKTvxrySf79If4XZVfb7HoK6h7eesJqpQVbNjf1ZRa7ZUu1JbJ6XOF8tST5L
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Z1zuvO9GDPF7iRPGjMtdf84%2FyHDqrzrREA0oPjeuRcMSgC9L8SZJCl%2BhQ9MIaCSn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=J%2B8EV8RiqhA6eslt0TIGlK8Gw2H7%2B9x5K3Q%2Bb1nQR2Bp0Ks0d8ZNZTN6ZdunrUEi
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9XOx6H4r%2Fg0JSNM4EDBb0g48T96RNsZGWR5%2FWIR46YnNaGIHWXzOo1LCcbth7VU7
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nznti0uJtyP%2FIrk1tyz%2BCzfSUrXq%2BKNZMxN1U%2FBrwAxvmDSkUafs0E7sXNcM6yxe
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QmhAa4x1KxsB7t1aV30Em%2BHl%2BkecwFFcRVieaWrbOLN5nOy8IPXbe855VqW2g8E%2B
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=aTpDzfpAjzZa3DqzTeXCujoASSyp7ZeoUGYwvxkJE5VR6nCf6xNhYoE2ppFs%2F8ie
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=IqLFjh0vz2xUmBXjd1pVY0DAd2vi4Nq%2FR6cOTiWQ8eTFXmGAT72SySUvs14Hsphp
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=D2ZFv1U7NhY9mG%2F2K%2BoefIGhIxrMEG3tem58uxUTsIbpqTVGyf0y2fv%2BA%2F6l2if%2F
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HAgI9llCnxi5iv3ZSqb7Bj5K7HwJSNaqe5IGVMSyFDWpemNFR3ZkQ7I4WehYtgiv
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=K539CGiVqXWdTsUcOxgprRKAKCc0se%2FVptGBnSFBo4vFsL7fuBT2AWwem7n25aqc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=af2z8xvIt1QBgbtlOTBvicXzARQxK6RaGjVmbJ5UxbHCqliLG8kQKcPt2hzPkvWj
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rWQZFBk6%2FeZ9UIWajl1JebEBMJFoog1wd7SFeWnGX1Zq1cPBvRazQxNNhl5mcI6H
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=O9SbOz%2FhEsOiQiqEfaVTmQP18sn8n4W8Pcca74m31JruAM1YCXXHNr4oMmnZqhPl
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  FOR 2023 06

10110301 REGISTRARS
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

     TOTAL REGISTRARS                    
                40,814.00               0.00          40,814.00          19,644.28               0.00          21,169.72      48.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                40,814.00               0.00          40,814.00          19,644.28               0.00          21,169.72

10110303 ELECTIONS                          

10110303 51720           STIPENDS
                12,500.00             250.00          12,750.00          12,615.00               0.00             135.00      98.9%
10110303 54310           EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
                 2,050.00             200.00           2,250.00           2,250.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%
10110303 55300           COMMUNICATIONS
                 1,400.00               0.00           1,400.00               0.00               0.00           1,400.00        .0%
10110303 56900           OTHER SUPPLIES
                 9,500.00            -450.00           9,050.00           7,044.50              79.95           1,925.55      78.7%

     TOTAL ELECTIONS                     
                25,450.00               0.00          25,450.00          21,909.50              79.95           3,460.55      86.4%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                25,450.00               0.00          25,450.00          21,909.50              79.95           3,460.55

10110311 TOWN CLERK                         

10110311 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
                62,913.00               0.00          62,913.00          29,278.74               0.00          33,634.26      46.5%
10110311 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                44,062.00               0.00          44,062.00          21,085.66               0.00          22,976.34      47.9%
10110311 53600           ACCOUNTING SERVICES/AUDIT
                 4,000.00               0.00           4,000.00           2,000.00           2,000.00               0.00     100.0%
10110311 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                29,810.00               0.00          29,810.00          11,298.07          11,765.16           6,746.77      77.4%
10110311 56135           RECORDINGS/LICENSING SUPPLIES
                 4,275.00           4,477.79           8,752.79           2,754.15              35.43           5,963.21      31.9%
10110311 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 1,275.00               0.00           1,275.00             475.00             160.76             639.24      49.9%

     TOTAL TOWN CLERK                    
               146,335.00           4,477.79         150,812.79          66,891.62          13,961.35          69,959.82      53.6%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               146,335.00           4,477.79         150,812.79          66,891.62          13,961.35          69,959.82
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=kNG7k5nUB%2FNRM9MRp79jehw9PPpf2c5mpdDdH1OYyOX6sdU5BBTxaFBSxp29K9Xo
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=h%2FKhtGlBXFMgtuYW7vBinsspO4jdPskNkqSAajtjI7%2FxIkobwn42ssmqKC%2Fxnqq3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9j94tC9Ab8Tv63A9w3Yl0%2BM8eHbZJiZc%2BJ3yqdw4zjab6dbmS9ySZ0fm5NyXFSWR
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3rfpCEuXgHqodKSsIH9wEstBWsTeiargUusrKKsfgU4JI%2BEwa%2FFbgpFHw%2B4wcdz1
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KofHdQA3j9bVgU1KFh9SWXVmUqw9NrCqIWhIY1AOS%2FV8kxioDRjS7oirlFynj%2Bfi
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=fEqvmoL9CsExqJ6vCzAsbLrlxo2ee553jUmxU7UpX8U0s80Pc%2BC3olRCxBhbl92p
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=IvtxEe9kbw%2FnTyPVi49Ml5YzKrCvSKpDYQhH5H8vvCqRpHm7x9HV9U3gGH5trK%2Ba
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DmAH%2FNtm8pEkV0SLfVilYzQdJtrkc5m2%2FXdf3oam9el%2Fw2GlcYdhK2fX3k7inqAh
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WniVbvQQzud%2BtyZuP9aZj50gKS5LEpMceuFZarNOtIW1iEI%2BG0SkiYxeL%2BJP4AP%2F
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HLfj6GTHE33p39OdQrbtgqGunJjbLw4kSolHCmNoy5s8zrXD48QY87E9liG8lhoB
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10112101 FINANCE
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10112101 FINANCE                            

10112101 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
               104,923.00               0.00         104,923.00          48,829.61               0.00          56,093.39      46.5%
10112101 51603           ASST FINANCE DIR
                65,185.00               0.00          65,185.00          34,651.17               0.00          30,533.83      53.2%
10112101 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                86,413.00               0.00          86,413.00          38,284.46               0.00          48,128.54      44.3%
10112101 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 2,400.00               0.00           2,400.00           1,216.75             618.89             564.36      76.5%
10112101 56200           HEATING OIL/PROPANE
                58,685.00               0.00          58,685.00          23,252.02          37,747.98          -2,315.00     103.9%
10112101 56220           ELECTRICITY
               130,000.00               0.00         130,000.00          51,065.55          39,934.45          39,000.00      70.0%
10112101 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 4,500.00               0.00           4,500.00              65.00             780.00           3,655.00      18.8%

     TOTAL FINANCE                       
               452,106.00               0.00         452,106.00         197,364.56          79,081.32         175,660.12      61.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               452,106.00               0.00         452,106.00         197,364.56          79,081.32         175,660.12

10112111 ASSESSOR                           

10112111 51610           SUPERVISORS
                78,090.00               0.00          78,090.00          52,520.46               0.00          25,569.54      67.3%
10112111 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                39,858.00               0.00          39,858.00          18,394.22               0.00          21,463.78      46.1%
10112111 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                14,500.00               0.00          14,500.00          14,461.00               0.00              39.00      99.7%
10112111 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00             159.59               0.00           1,840.41       8.0%
10112111 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00             634.37               0.00           2,365.63      21.1%

     TOTAL ASSESSOR                      
               137,448.00               0.00         137,448.00          86,169.64               0.00          51,278.36      62.7%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               137,448.00               0.00         137,448.00          86,169.64               0.00          51,278.36

10112131 TAX COLLECTOR                      

10112131 51300           SEASONAL HELP
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BhoqzPlMBQtOTxQ56XGmZgvb9p8ed3TM8CytE3ioyKmOLuAH0IJ%2FnqgoEgF5Hw9s
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=S6QR0XWo7lgeP5j3l8SkQUTcxafDhCHubyKdGWQT4pjM72xtLqEarfWNn%2Bepz4Kt
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2VEAP3%2FBm%2FTZT3jmtmeRURB%2BO2MgHb70y%2FcD%2BFk03skjIFi%2BG1wa7gWCB8OXsngK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rdLHgRGwNlXx6ue05eV3CmrIL7CE%2FYEsdKfZAuZj2lNKuSqCAPpc0iOkRFv4uLn%2F
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cxNgW30epCioEbszcoxpc%2BQOW%2BTzg1MK%2FSjUErcWbBFQ1t03gqxSF%2BgM%2Ba7zd1s3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=q7yoZxmAeolYNLuntFQtgkhfAqDuw2o3kTQp4VPUthP7ncrKOKtypg4WBDP1B2Ku
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YOmxIFbstMeUAf%2BMh%2B1U1q7SxSKHqm3ieHBJRrDGj6WWFBv4TGtw4cPjWBCWgy8y
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=gIjEWzYMwzbKMe1lGBqA7extx6YHB9egWOaWTFAV9uVKJk3PsFFgLpuCECgaS3T0
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=387wAfjoOdmSJsAsfcAGjBxIUUmgXiyh89h4kMKYUGWG4pgisQ17UT7qwoNqSGnm
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=k7hIx2%2FlcuZtaRLA6us8B16%2FwDMgpRNP8EeVS3ITpjEtl4urh0PuURxhi7Jij1kM
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=92w1MIRidiWt3lD2F89YZXA5lhfqfy8lhWHiP72rbE%2Bpq5P7ISZGPAE3JmhVDyia
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sv4%2Bqq5OJA0pRObaY%2BcA2RVK%2Bnh404l7H6qLjZQh8osdgem8zU%2BSriOpXapa67nh
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Woj7T1M0Jh1P%2BL3gua9bRoduAlm1eZHxX%2BMQ1RS94c0T0fS1sCFnAj%2FzlGh4xY5H
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  FOR 2023 06

10112131 TAX COLLECTOR
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

                 1,600.00               0.00           1,600.00           2,459.63               0.00            -859.63     153.7%
10112131 51610           SUPERVISORS
                63,576.00               0.00          63,576.00          30,280.28               0.00          33,295.72      47.6%
10112131 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                40,069.00               0.00          40,069.00          18,837.27               0.00          21,231.73      47.0%
10112131 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                 2,400.00               0.00           2,400.00             505.00           1,500.00             395.00      83.5%
10112131 54421           TAX REFUNDS
                     0.00               0.00               0.00          66,303.49               0.00         -66,303.49     100.0%
10112131 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                22,000.00               0.00          22,000.00           3,979.95          14,177.99           3,842.06      82.5%
10112131 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 2,980.00               0.00           2,980.00             110.00           1,120.00           1,750.00      41.3%
10112131 58506           TAX UNDERPAYMENT
                   150.00               0.00             150.00               0.00             150.00               0.00     100.0%

     TOTAL TAX COLLECTOR                 
               132,775.00               0.00         132,775.00         122,475.62          16,947.99          -6,648.61     105.0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               132,775.00               0.00         132,775.00         122,475.62          16,947.99          -6,648.61

10112151 MIS                                

10112151 51610           SUPERVISORS
                78,014.00               0.00          78,014.00          37,321.41               0.00          40,692.59      47.8%
10112151 51700           ADMINISTRATIVE WAGES
                44,062.00               0.00          44,062.00          21,152.88               0.00          22,909.12      48.0%
10112151 53655           VIDEO STREAMING
                16,228.00               0.00          16,228.00          15,952.00               0.00             276.00      98.3%
10112151 53657           WEBSITE UPGRADE/SUPPORT
                 6,853.00               0.00           6,853.00           6,853.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%
10112151 53690           SOFTWARE SUPPORT & MAINT
               113,621.00               0.00         113,621.00          96,739.42               8.58          16,873.00      85.1%
10112151 53695           FINANCIAL SOFTWARE HOSTING
                22,000.00               0.00          22,000.00          21,525.00               0.00             475.00      97.8%
10112151 53696           LAND USE SOFTWARE LICENSING
                10,500.00               0.00          10,500.00          10,500.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%
10112151 54300           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00             600.00               0.00           4,400.00      12.0%
10112151 55330           TELEPHONE  & FAX SERVICE
                12,834.00               0.00          12,834.00           4,323.18           6,958.82           1,552.00      87.9%
10112151 55340           INTERNET SERVICE
                 7,500.00               0.00           7,500.00           2,058.00           4,842.00             600.00      92.0%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6kIxBLqA53LKA6YIbVGh0PbqySCQhaXFTn0nQwR8NFqea9WObnLyHk1cpZwJPEWg
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WnS2wMGGnBJ82BV72Fbx3Zgb4IgpRWNWy6dYmMP4tLJ%2BmOhlGBaXaamUwiR8H3Zk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TEmAfQFQDTSGU%2BATBrWj1VOSayd%2Fbffcdh1U6JUwpI4a%2Br1zGInVOTrkVsRa%2B3iH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=eL%2BBzXuQTWh%2FQrbi5DogpkXs%2BUYf400Zv9uySkdKjLLGzaldUKPATVB6JHjCTRzx
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=r4CHrWuqMGAw5%2BG0sE9SmlwwuXwCdn6oYzoQ8xBKsfs89Dc2suue4MC8mTM402Bn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HnvXn86LxVNl6GArPBtIHTG0WZFT0GoCi53QezKoZOiT0TA5NnhCOEShW03C%2BJcO
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BU%2F%2BILyFK7GUS%2FBqCWq8Yc%2B7Me14pr4SfwanysCh65gJwMoTcLJB57U59E6En%2FdV
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YiER5JKbDTyX2LCbCT7VFmuxa%2Fwr%2B9Ez%2FqZgizt8F%2BKhRsqLxI5xjhJ0h51vsHSP
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ehocSMqFlI8K%2Fwd1EhiOb%2BwvYXG7MMxv8JbrPfr5P18j3ObGEB3juC9qczGD8OSs
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mM30DrjUwtYZL0jHPZgJShS0jrrVTCmnofQGjzSiZAQIPRlB6K40JMWX2qbJXbv%2B
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=92HKvp7D8vr%2FkAwQc9UKqZjk1m7v7bdXpfqu3oRlYucwgmzsY8j84WH672v8FDGw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2HWYeNFRluc1%2Be3fkHif%2B8kSx31MzRc1gmqD4cvax1oCKP0TUonOi4e5ZpbIQVIb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=j2HqzWaV%2FRQvKzP76YYsRqwpbDixVlfa%2FMZf0EnJ%2FenLI3MF34LUJAuo%2BIjJdTOV
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BrFb51FKvy5TUxmlSDR1AuaxJJAMZKqobpkSfwlmKZXuL9gRYcPiEyK5t9%2FpFoGr
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CaVOisBbfVQHU8%2FTdlMgKpqargsuH0oBcqpwKwDagdyBiR%2BtjjMHbCK9%2Fy8ZUMdD
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ozjwl3nmhd0vtomE97cyqGvrKu3LjnLCCZO%2BEhVe3nGyRHhAuS0%2Flrm%2B0ad7VeLp
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sN0tOJ2KS1V%2FUbWrJO2TxwHCluVPvewvZqtFS2GeRurq%2FeXsPjKiKg1GJrMvrMtC
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  FOR 2023 06

10112151 MIS
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10112151 56900           OTHER SUPPLIES
                 6,000.00               0.00           6,000.00           4,531.06               0.07           1,468.87      75.5%
10112151 57400           COMPUTER EQUIPMENT
                 4,000.00               0.00           4,000.00           2,677.19              25.98           1,296.83      67.6%
10112151 57410           COMPUTER SOFTWARE
                10,091.00               0.00          10,091.00           6,792.55           2,079.20           1,219.25      87.9%
10112151 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 1,010.00               0.00           1,010.00               0.00               0.00           1,010.00        .0%

     TOTAL MIS                           
               337,713.00               0.00         337,713.00         231,025.69          13,914.65          92,772.66      72.5%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               337,713.00               0.00         337,713.00         231,025.69          13,914.65          92,772.66

10114301 LAND USE                           

10114301 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
                92,052.00               0.00          92,052.00          44,523.95               0.00          47,528.05      48.4%
10114301 51610           SUPERVISORS
               122,921.00               0.00         122,921.00          49,560.93          66,608.31           6,751.76      94.5%
10114301 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                82,737.00               0.00          82,737.00          28,231.17               0.00          54,505.83      34.1%
10114301 51800           PART-TIME WAGES
                   400.00               0.00             400.00             307.50               0.00              92.50      76.9%
10114301 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 6,600.00               0.00           6,600.00           1,568.59           2,220.55           2,810.86      57.4%
10114301 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00             243.05              41.95           2,715.00       9.5%

     TOTAL LAND USE                      
               307,710.00               0.00         307,710.00         124,435.19          68,870.81         114,404.00      62.8%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               307,710.00               0.00         307,710.00         124,435.19          68,870.81         114,404.00

10114303 PLANNNING COMMISSION               

10114303 53400           OTHER PROFESS/TECH SERVICES
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00               0.00               0.00           2,000.00        .0%
10114303 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 1,000.00               0.00           1,000.00               0.00               0.00           1,000.00        .0%

206

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=epqKz%2FiAxCaNJIf4qxHQHUx2yhuN7mBu%2BTTtAiy6DCKmb%2FuNfIaYZoj4LZbo03%2FP
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DghuP8GdvMLkF%2BAyiFDZ92OXxDbCtayuPVoBfWPq3PZk7BPV%2B%2BVIm5jpDTwbuXg3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZKL%2BF2f6y0Lai796ZQ%2FLbElYeNMDSDEA5XPeJ2op0XIdbhORtGgrv6tAQ3UfYuRw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sfKbARSKc3gbzToNIsECGKPGrOuRLmCixg7edzAX2%2B%2B5o6OWngNpRs6PBcIWSqTe
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=eCey1grpnhFKj4eRtpXveq8v%2Bjd6CSMAQdnwJ6g7zY8JBZ4WLIU8wOYrVC6aCwTg
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uGA7fBMTNmjOsZ7W26eG%2FhbyUskgpp9KMXkGqg8w6whk3Fa9huOlTVabCHthp3Be
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6EqMezH8B58%2FZ%2B14RcGgVXe0yOv7YQUUkIGYTCf%2FcyBWMqvF3gqbrJf9ZFGsOx9%2F
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tQnjsxRa8iJzvrUbHp2zYVX%2B4xD%2BqcEskyN7FrHgB0EBysjKmYFxnZGVft9RRSVV
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=IuIFNECLUh8OFJTijgJ49gwMbf%2FneQc5NbujI5%2F%2FlYTjn5kqSH%2BoEAZ4VuU6zP5b
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uOar%2BTNpYrC%2FsYcczQJO%2BCMtGqSp8Y6G%2F72VYU8YI9fTxFKCFMGyMeeGeEVQ%2B2l3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=B9Ua7dZ%2F7fvMDuzq1r2fdPF%2B%2FPssrfiFe485YqVKatpJCFldP%2FvW0qBatLhHeLkn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xL2MMQ1KhYiD5p1qGG4XIHuGpSSIPEz%2FgHqSPy5dyXUDXt98U6ZLRswdaY3LiOIe
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  FOR 2023 06

10114303 PLANNNING COMMISSION
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

     TOTAL PLANNNING COMMISSION          
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00               0.00               0.00           3,000.00        .0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00               0.00               0.00           3,000.00

10114305 EDC                                

10114305 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 1,000.00               0.00           1,000.00               0.00               0.00           1,000.00        .0%
10114305 58100           DUES & FEES
                 5,850.00               0.00           5,850.00           5,694.55               0.00             155.45      97.3%

     TOTAL EDC                           
                 6,850.00               0.00           6,850.00           5,694.55               0.00           1,155.45      83.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                 6,850.00               0.00           6,850.00           5,694.55               0.00           1,155.45

10114501 IWWC                               

10114501 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                   500.00               0.00             500.00              65.00               0.00             435.00      13.0%

     TOTAL IWWC                          
                   500.00               0.00             500.00              65.00               0.00             435.00      13.0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                   500.00               0.00             500.00              65.00               0.00             435.00

10114507 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS            

10114507 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                   500.00               0.00             500.00               0.00               0.00             500.00        .0%

     TOTAL ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS       
                   500.00               0.00             500.00               0.00               0.00             500.00        .0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                   500.00               0.00             500.00               0.00               0.00             500.00

10120101 POLICE                             

10120101 51130           OVERTIME

207

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ncRukGJ9IGCgF4qRyfUvPYrq7acz0O%2FA0r%2BJ7rQueakyl87eian2clnRRhu9OwWf
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RTHpOL15rkJYL2%2B9Gc5hgh1gR7pXVhp5JcbTAgw8nzua2JVfyTyP0ph5%2BWf7IiZn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0msXJgt%2FbTVEJD4OM%2BDC%2F756%2F7ozS2zo9YKE8VWPaVrq2XOnBaQRpUsMN6H%2F9Hfu
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FFNf46ILnMI%2BIu0XE3NhzilnLa2bDwJF3lPtipMGAKm45nlaN4TYEq2Xb11%2FSeL2
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=15Zi4f4VdJpruHdrthhsYejZTWJP4dPOkZkIni91rhxtFhM1fNGsPX30z2EnarFz
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  FOR 2023 06

10120101 POLICE
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

               362,250.00               0.00         362,250.00         208,814.78               0.00         153,435.22      57.6%
10120101 51608           DEPARTMENT HEAD - CHIEF
               131,087.00               0.00         131,087.00          61,518.28               0.00          69,568.72      46.9%
10120101 51609           CAPTAIN
                97,375.00          10,517.00         107,892.00          82,810.54               0.00          25,081.46      76.8%
10120101 51630           PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES
             1,596,502.00               0.00       1,596,502.00         753,600.57               0.00         842,901.43      47.2%
10120101 51700           ADMINISTRATIVE WAGES
                47,403.00               0.00          47,403.00          22,129.76               0.00          25,273.24      46.7%
10120101 51715           HOLIDAY PAY
                60,000.00               0.00          60,000.00          29,842.66               0.00          30,157.34      49.7%
10120101 51716           DUI GRANT PAYROLL
                 6,000.00               0.00           6,000.00             201.94               0.00           5,798.06       3.4%
10120101 51717           OT OUTSIDE ASSIGNMENTS
                50,000.00               0.00          50,000.00          86,736.55               0.00         -36,736.55     173.5%
10120101 51720           STIPEND-MEALS AND UNIFORMS
                10,800.00               0.00          10,800.00           4,389.00               0.00           6,411.00      40.6%
10120101 51730           DEGREE INCENTIVE
                 9,800.00               0.00           9,800.00           1,250.00               0.00           8,550.00      12.8%
10120101 51900           COMP-TIME LIABILITY
                11,500.00               0.00          11,500.00           6,828.27               0.00           4,671.73      59.4%
10120101 53645           TRAINING SALARY
                48,000.00               0.00          48,000.00          25,233.46               0.00          22,766.54      52.6%
10120101 53646           TRAINING SUPPORT
                24,908.00               0.00          24,908.00          21,060.26             960.65           2,887.09      88.4%
10120101 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                29,283.00               0.00          29,283.00          14,109.00           9,835.78           5,338.22      81.8%
10120101 54226           PRISONER EXPENSES
                 4,050.00               0.00           4,050.00           2,166.86             101.12           1,782.02      56.0%
10120101 54300           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
                 9,500.00               0.00           9,500.00           3,282.44             601.38           5,616.18      40.9%
10120101 54310           EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
                30,000.00               0.00          30,000.00          13,014.47           3,978.18          13,007.35      56.6%
10120101 55330           TELEPHONE  & FAX SERVICE
                 2,750.00               0.00           2,750.00           1,469.71           1,280.29               0.00     100.0%
10120101 55335           MOBILE DATA SERVICE
                11,972.00               0.00          11,972.00           3,811.80           6,188.20           1,972.00      83.5%
10120101 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                18,000.00               0.00          18,000.00           9,825.53           2,750.75           5,423.72      69.9%
10120101 56205           WATER
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00           1,231.30              68.70           1,700.00      43.3%
10120101 56260           DIESEL/GASOLINE
                66,550.00               0.00          66,550.00          29,509.31               0.00          37,040.69      44.3%
10120101 56730           UNIFORMS
                38,000.00               0.00          38,000.00          20,902.92           5,965.58          11,131.50      70.7%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hbiPyHFp1bksyY0mAhZTwo58lZSCNQo8qX1VuPH3DGZOcvjnkXR1h3hQk1odv4d5
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KCaT0JpY1vtfSsS3rf1NzDQJePl%2FIMbYozOkNqcd%2Fmy1zO0BHCoMcgStpNrqAiIl
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hqgBmw2JP20mWUR%2FJJGZM685Jvh1KabBJXzbjkb1eeX1BHlY2%2BWFD6Q69Cyh9iKw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pemDjep4SH6JfZ7dRaT81Gtw8jqz20n6CZ2evr%2FIm0JZIyc%2BAFWNFjg7WBUVYIEp
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=yuX4UDsh7lujTjc0LljVPtbLRCZI5K5UIxifQjWwifcjIUUvsHotdt4J8UktGGPB
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sBkBkg13%2Bethj%2BoHLmtwkIsN3mFlcyygKYNCkWO4FHrq9xMEljrgBqDyaYIfHVMc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=A5dC0b2oRSJtIwlkRpEJ84LO0VcP%2F2SDXq7dTWNTG8KYjoCAWT0fqctQSHTIorTO
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9p9GhFmsj8nlzFKK4pIRms496CbVlrBZNgrhTxUJEHHDyGQgivEwIgy5LP57hC0S
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=vIwUZ7abFnYDFOLyVucgHkoqCkzChWUDNwH%2BDFziHPuWzS6oMO4%2BELV%2F%2BF5UzCNW
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4KDd3ftpd4XHJXqf0zJ9IPg%2FfTQmpclRA1SGnC602doNd1uFEj4oYyrVyD60TwYn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=MQwGAtB5fXmtsICZw1k1RLAEdkPqZlcFlxZBL38Nhn8wgyVDp2Pc6VKoxAr5si2v
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=brtK%2Fo5occjyHvAf2TlC4Rw0HhXnjKQVqm0WReS6AXdFqC6Kcts%2Fv%2FS9WoPhP3u3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AYC3RM%2FqKWJTS4B%2BrZsCZQP1JaRjos87D%2Bbjjo2q6aByW%2Fzn0LjJgOMAMNF9siib
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FhOWlKAQ2TvinNoJ92mm%2BIZ2qiiGd6Fa80JWUyCbTcael4dlron3i8jqLqaXtpca
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=yszkCTbv733AoKLpVlcX2J%2BhT3Sx%2FpkuruxM7SBvjilA4dO%2BaKUvP9L53LQAidqn
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3hs1V02K6C5T1QSQOuwvNUXdVFIUZZLUdAkkbMW8DVzZQRk%2Fwg7eib2N6gCCz27v
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tlGhR9g97%2BQUV6XNoeavGYk7u8g%2FU10qDU0HgNd7f%2FZuDcwF3ytm%2B4fkBr8pshhb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3peW%2FJFxX7bFGoWB6sTZULmg%2BZ6F6xN2ssk0qeNWEZT6wEfVATgbbe4Y7G15E%2FFD
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tFlmexO5VN7KkRasjI2Tpc%2B9wFBKKlkCIEZuyV2Z3ltQukFU5%2B1MHSoZAzaaqnmQ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=8aP5DzOez6e38onGgfBrLYrLuCt32rNnL%2BCNil54mam%2FAMjzUOsm5lQtYmKA7ygj
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0iIynPRTzSxjJ5UQXkT2GrYbrvrW93Mg1vgIhbWgXuCL1dqoHPfXPVmzAYIe3GHp
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=vbY3%2FgVBsH5Dujvr4yg4OwHwRJdujPAgs9JHT%2FIT7WQq5EXA7j%2BwtxvOVdfc4%2FHc
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  FOR 2023 06

10120101 POLICE
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10120101 56900           OTHER SUPPLIES
                18,700.00               0.00          18,700.00           5,209.74               0.00          13,490.26      27.9%
10120101 57300           NEW EQUIPMENT
                 2,400.00               0.00           2,400.00               0.00               0.00           2,400.00        .0%
10120101 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00             425.00             165.00           2,410.00      19.7%

     TOTAL POLICE                        
             2,692,830.00          10,517.00       2,703,347.00       1,409,374.15          31,895.63       1,262,077.22      53.3%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
             2,692,830.00          10,517.00       2,703,347.00       1,409,374.15          31,895.63       1,262,077.22

10120103 DISPATCH                           

10120103 51130           OVERTIME
                55,000.00               0.00          55,000.00          67,251.36               0.00         -12,251.36     122.3%
10120103 51299           PER DIEM WAGES
                20,000.00               0.00          20,000.00           3,171.24               0.00          16,828.76      15.9%
10120103 51630           PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES
               416,407.00               0.00         416,407.00         220,081.83               0.00         196,325.17      52.9%
10120103 51715           HOLIDAY PAY
                 8,000.00               0.00           8,000.00          11,436.77               0.00          -3,436.77     143.0%
10120103 51720           MEAL STIPENDS
                 1,455.00               0.00           1,455.00             705.00               0.00             750.00      48.5%
10120103 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                39,053.00               0.00          39,053.00          34,795.31           4,079.55             178.14      99.5%
10120103 55330           TELEPHONE  & FAX SERVICE
                12,050.00               0.00          12,050.00           5,500.79           5,499.21           1,050.00      91.3%
10120103 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           1,445.13             354.87           3,200.00      36.0%
10120103 56730           UNIFORMS
                 5,020.00               0.00           5,020.00             977.00           1,160.00           2,883.00      42.6%
10120103 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00           1,267.00             426.00           1,307.00      56.4%

     TOTAL DISPATCH                      
               564,985.00               0.00         564,985.00         346,631.43          11,519.63         206,833.94      63.4%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               564,985.00               0.00         564,985.00         346,631.43          11,519.63         206,833.94

10120105 ANIMAL CONTROL                     

10120105 51130           OVERTIME
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00               0.00               0.00           2,000.00        .0%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ubXWONWK7PNH5ojKupHQhilNpNF7SVT71c4Lnl7XwkKR7tnfeQJifmFyyFoKRfEQ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=VmCAyxP%2FajSoE2hz45jxrQigTgPUU9SrGc%2Bpc8SqD89B%2BXIEVZrQ9nMH1zKiVCHg
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=e5DqmUuOz872PxVgRyzfYElqMty%2Fy%2FeiCmp8L0N5yzOgfT%2FwdvJMAenF6XeP4mgc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ym0F4YNTpvk9LKff2oUvmn9z45Mc8j8Gi6ANe8oAc0davlENSsZReRXLgw15P7au
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=SGxBfxlqllEkDV30ivWvxZsiozKD1yfNx3axEKswmEVcq%2FRzfNcRB1%2Fcw6cpP0Z3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=k6kTTHi6m4LtVq5kfn66I7i0BrifMuHco2h7tl01FDDw2ZsC%2BRqM1krsx9I%2FapyK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AV%2FIt%2B9idTydgp91dRwPRizsJVZWAybBjOAtMVMmaOj%2F4qZ4SN9nw6rVsJLZ1%2FwP
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=SkAccFAyLbzAeWPwdvktxnKx4PvTGV5O0NcSaBAajKN9OygZxElchCofeL3Y51jc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qRrG816bXcTNrlMCaJEP80%2FjKyV4g60DPkgm7AwSRalz0huKOx9fsZjdRpV%2FzF2E
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=D%2F08yJLd7P1XW0s5z4Zg0fpW4kNg0%2BsC%2ByjLzqgOT6CGo5tVtI82zI66WLMdRri9
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=a%2F1aP%2BnwtRcB91boGvF5n3YxUeiGbUVvJrhGlLi7JsgE17VThXu4QH%2F8CQT8Eb%2FQ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=R11OEYLIfgpXgJN1pSxiildRHDBTzTUPD9AVAcORyi1%2FkfeweLTUyOp9wSsPreqb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DUcFYxlTLmyQhykK1%2BsqyxpOevDQbnQOtHqwh98miv6A5S2dSMkyISdpLur2CZsI
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=r6R3PGm2M2woEme0SV7fGuxm6PHhxJsnTWT4BiJVwzlperfH%2F5s7Zfh28b4kCErg
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  FOR 2023 06

10120105 ANIMAL CONTROL
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10120105 51205           ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER
                49,285.00               0.00          49,285.00          11,389.47               0.00          37,895.53      23.1%
10120105 51800           PART-TIME WAGES
                14,950.00               0.00          14,950.00          21,220.00               0.00          -6,270.00     141.9%
10120105 53310           VETERINARIAN
                 2,500.00               0.00           2,500.00             563.74              36.26           1,900.00      24.0%
10120105 53645           TRAINING
                   400.00               0.00             400.00              35.00               0.00             365.00       8.8%
10120105 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 7,200.00             500.00           7,700.00           4,296.29           3,146.47             257.24      96.7%
10120105 57305           ACO EQUIPMENT
                 1,000.00            -500.00             500.00             322.60               0.00             177.40      64.5%
10120105 58000           SPAY/NEUTER PROGRAM
                 1,500.00               0.00           1,500.00               0.00               0.00           1,500.00        .0%
10120105 58790           MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
                     0.00               0.00               0.00           4,831.25               0.00          -4,831.25     100.0%

     TOTAL ANIMAL CONTROL                
                78,835.00               0.00          78,835.00          42,658.35           3,182.73          32,993.92      58.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                78,835.00               0.00          78,835.00          42,658.35           3,182.73          32,993.92

10120301 FIRE MARSHALL                      

10120301 51130           OVERTIME
                   100.00               0.00             100.00               0.00               0.00             100.00        .0%
10120301 51630           PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES
                75,468.00               0.00          75,468.00          35,750.82               0.00          39,717.18      47.4%
10120301 55330           TELEPHONE  & FAX SERVICE
                 3,700.00           1,000.00           4,700.00           1,073.66           1,926.34           1,700.00      63.8%
10120301 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 8,000.00               0.00           8,000.00           1,336.75             448.82           6,214.43      22.3%
10120301 56450           CODE AND REFERENCE BOOKS
                     0.00           3,000.00           3,000.00               0.00               0.00           3,000.00        .0%
10120301 56730           UNIFORMS
                   850.00               0.00             850.00             484.00               0.00             366.00      56.9%
10120301 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 2,400.00               0.00           2,400.00             223.65             251.35           1,925.00      19.8%

     TOTAL FIRE MARSHALL                 
                90,518.00           4,000.00          94,518.00          38,868.88           2,626.51          53,022.61      43.9%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                90,518.00           4,000.00          94,518.00          38,868.88           2,626.51          53,022.61
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1PvovKigFogyQhd%2B%2F8aYYiCRzeHnyPm%2FzSKHBIuqh%2BBEdcIao%2FF%2FfJ9GcT%2Fc%2F9gz
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=W%2Be5rOjEtfmCCSP6xdA5ogPLHrl5d5Iyt9ujobjyEW%2BzEE%2Bzg1sJ5QX9hDsifed8
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KFJRLQaFSSDrbIl6Q3SRbrVk26EHPQn983s1aQdyQ4zID0rg%2FTuE6G7dkQ9FUAMK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CXaOaaSGbjqTqxjIjFKhZFuUMJq41vQ7ii%2BVvX8%2FWgtUlPJTwJp9aCAe9%2BVpXkQd
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FZtzn2QRdsUaHq88A9ndIzY5%2F1IqVappNzf2qEFTrF%2F%2Fa1rUBQspP40plZX5Q8YI
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=s%2FCybEPYRODzg9PbOvvOW%2B9aBScMGPKmhp4bESYdc%2FABfSGYkBSlmFhqf0gxF8g4
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=I4fDmnign%2BvLdDsjghcLIB18eyyUcVOAGf3zHbGXz1rprQ6ePAclEccWFDV1crWu
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1F16yh3Eref3E1nhJgGsgQoXjpTAyogkSMthrVXosTQIyfn4to1D%2Boe%2BUuwIla90
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AQYLJ5j1Woc7gzETZEA9GYxgQfP0wG6k%2FS%2BqTcIVxA3PxIQrL66vhymiYr1cT3OH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=56pYmGIw9ZjEDt4IQWDBGuyUUzIrKjX1ETR8BfvRcLs36VC8Q5bm%2FJs79q7k5MK4
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Yd1doVrJiFKFL6GTxWdyNMAzjUWv8ztEl5asJ41OUGD0uiuqqK2vy3onlxhnFPNY
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=awntqNkYHv6E2%2Bu4mMQEph4wb%2Fvce2acTGlGOt%2FG1Nops373p43cAnyPWKTwNEO8
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mfNJfvoRYPkRkllhf%2FUKsqEOsAjiYTz2hr%2B%2FjPxlB%2BfLqNHXAOiRwd1ItotNLkWy
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jh2DZqGOPWL%2BV754SBVB21hEzy%2BrxA5PvFKvH2sfl9Alk0j5vTw%2BOr5t3kJ4mc5G
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AWqKNfl7dg4x5lpeXlqePyQbZ6Qk5P%2BDAdP20VakdQe5C7CwIqkH%2BK4ajAFydb4G
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  FOR 2023 06

10120401 ADMIN EMERGENCY SERV
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10120401 ADMIN EMERGENCY SERV               

10120401 51130           OVERTIME
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00             169.58               0.00           9,830.42       1.7%
10120401 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
                19,988.00               0.00          19,988.00           9,869.01               0.00          10,118.99      49.4%
10120401 51630           PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES
               300,460.00               0.00         300,460.00         149,592.37               0.00         150,867.63      49.8%
10120401 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                36,400.00               0.00          36,400.00           1,390.82          14,559.18          20,450.00      43.8%
10120401 57307           THIRD PARTY AMBULANCE SERVICE
                75,000.00               0.00          75,000.00          75,000.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%

     TOTAL ADMIN EMERGENCY SERV          
               441,848.00               0.00         441,848.00         236,021.78          14,559.18         191,267.04      56.7%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               441,848.00               0.00         441,848.00         236,021.78          14,559.18         191,267.04

10120501 LEDYARD FIRE COMPANY               

10120501 51720           INCENTIVE
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           2,500.00           2,500.00               0.00     100.0%
10120501 53645           TRAINING
                13,230.00               0.00          13,230.00           5,808.00             775.00           6,647.00      49.8%
10120501 53685           FIRE HOSE TESTING
                 1,400.00               0.00           1,400.00               0.00               0.00           1,400.00        .0%
10120501 54300           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
                34,000.00               0.00          34,000.00          14,353.33           3,080.60          16,566.07      51.3%
10120501 55320           CELL PHONE SERVICE
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00               0.00               0.00           2,000.00        .0%
10120501 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                15,000.00               0.00          15,000.00           4,547.94           2,145.11           8,306.95      44.6%
10120501 56730           UNIFORMS
                12,000.00               0.00          12,000.00           4,351.10             549.02           7,099.88      40.8%
10120501 57017           FIRE POLICE
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00               0.00             220.00           4,780.00       4.4%
10120501 57300           NEW EQUIPMENT
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00             847.04           1,152.03           8,000.93      20.0%
10120501 58790           INCENTIVE
                28,500.00               0.00          28,500.00          28,500.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9TBuFjbzs01HozFnBHME4mE5BfPw%2BbtcHyLZQmZDDq%2BrQwomiRlCnx9YbrO5KPbx
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=k2TqsKEXEpO2nc4hCrLkbjP008LkFrjdewgXPWtHdj1cG6W9kSbihYAnd5vTUswS
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QeSfI5YxmwMlwIzFo6KwdE3rhpkT5rme4kjWYF1kGPpQN1jruBEyupcbiPOFwavx
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CMEE7HNjgRsx8acO3QE3NchNMGqEFmaSL1DNwIhZ8%2BF2asHYbKV1Qp360Cy3WlvA
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=fTGsceqAufqQw%2BXPzom80p1pRpbjx75piymu7j2YBtst%2F5%2FKa60FJvRx4rwgaiPG
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KQGwhPCsAsHfTPWdXVp4x%2BGH6fwWSr%2FhVaC%2F4wjivCvq1Psp76woXhhGZKAsP6Rb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FWDABHTTWwqz9v%2F522d2riuQd8T2GWX36nEDEjfaliyug3Aq3zkOHSLLdAv5NrAb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=O%2F3TdFsMxlPAGcSdB1OuNN2ASL5lOCeS4pDt4osh%2FplhWqqkBfulRfOgR%2FQmQabF
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pWXykt7AjyWL91btLLS%2BKhk%2BDtYThEwPxZiTc7d0hu0xMboqMHdd4MsXXTlPks2Q
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=oB%2B4%2Bd3R5T60StD0Z9kwQC9mmNHqaus7TG9kGSDQzgL94FyfGCWCazg5vuwiQGhG
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mbevKKXiyFtWNrlyG6nNBPveRptuamR807jZrgFU36xfTRGzH18zu6G%2B7W9mnkTK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=GErVBorYP%2BdrXfIkfN2H2rU7R0I%2F3pJaWATXyOrkaAqevYuNoDEJGdcdmOOiP5Z8
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=vomx4Lu7gAi14ot2oQWiv8lM1NW%2F5veqetwBxEvtNgPG0mf2znf925HmhmX3mY5t
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2Fnybj1YNjfTiMYzgfcbDz4PeTF4hCVfBqXJMB0sOhxB4wTIsj5KD4GAmuaGj6J8C
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=gZtSrATWHNro8nhhic7ZMdHI1biUCtogHx%2F5ueUdNXXvLotnAQUSR3HlLR2slFZP
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  FOR 2023 06

10120501 LEDYARD FIRE COMPANY
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

     TOTAL LEDYARD FIRE COMPANY          
               126,130.00               0.00         126,130.00          60,907.41          10,421.76          54,800.83      56.6%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               126,130.00               0.00         126,130.00          60,907.41          10,421.76          54,800.83

10120551 GALES FERRY FIRE COMPANY           

10120551 51720           INCENTIVE
                 4,500.00               0.00           4,500.00           2,250.00           2,250.00               0.00     100.0%
10120551 53645           TRAINING
                16,500.00               0.00          16,500.00           4,132.53           5,867.47           6,500.00      60.6%
10120551 53685           FIRE HOSE APPLIANCE TESTING
                 1,000.00               0.00           1,000.00               0.00               0.00           1,000.00        .0%
10120551 55330           TELEPHONE  & FAX SERVICE
                 2,400.00               0.00           2,400.00             446.40           1,353.60             600.00      75.0%
10120551 55555           COVID19 EXPENSES
                   500.00               0.00             500.00               0.00               0.00             500.00        .0%
10120551 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                31,600.00               0.00          31,600.00          11,083.12           9,366.88          11,150.00      64.7%
10120551 56106           TRUCK GARAGING
                59,874.00               0.00          59,874.00          44,905.50          14,968.50               0.00     100.0%
10120551 56700           VEHICLE EQUIPMENT/PARTS
                37,000.00               0.00          37,000.00          18,931.31           3,868.69          14,200.00      61.6%
10120551 56730           UNIFORMS
                13,000.00               0.00          13,000.00           1,177.00           2,323.00           9,500.00      26.9%
10120551 57017           FIRE POLICE
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00             480.00             320.00           2,200.00      26.7%
10120551 57300           NEW EQUIPMENT
                 6,000.00               0.00           6,000.00               0.00           1,000.00           5,000.00      16.7%
10120551 58790           MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
                28,500.00               0.00          28,500.00               0.00               0.00          28,500.00        .0%

     TOTAL GALES FERRY FIRE COMPANY      
               203,874.00               0.00         203,874.00          83,405.86          41,318.14          79,150.00      61.2%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               203,874.00               0.00         203,874.00          83,405.86          41,318.14          79,150.00

10120701 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT               

10120701 51630           PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES
                15,990.00               0.00          15,990.00           6,630.00               0.00           9,360.00      41.5%

212

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=S4ocEY3Pxrt4nl%2Ff2%2FzxQLS0xIqsalFf4oy5l3JKfLcv8is9QhHG2mycGZ4fYnA1
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wxoM0US6RyZHGbWLfqESxOPnGDIgzhjUknz%2F5fk7e5IbTfq5aQBHCZxDkdIOMGvo
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=zf9r%2FOAijRB0ZZGuaWsNMkg2Z5U4%2FxRkaMAw5XLO4PpjwLyFpWM%2FWHvaHYguMRMH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qVIcfiw64o8ytQpwAT9pjhilbbj7jJMqTF%2FknTxJmzLfRFnulFBeHFk%2FapoGx3px
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BIQI1lprTVQI9xj7EnNx%2BoT3qxCR11kRcLTdqHjvtDIlp7LZDRCC6%2BkpHIZ%2Fj1eM
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=yFv7n70a7iYOeYFOSyOe94MIMgwWELct1wNBPPRBgxZP4BZNtlAMVHKJVVTerb0u
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ATc0HfdU1uLIoQNjW47UwdhEAudoHYVF%2FcpeM6qDmgemPJU2cQuyDkHoyr63%2FKGA
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cx4DfxPGPKxX4HoyvOtR6mFD1Ee2K%2BVqKSrQQ9rxJdmWjJZhTt9xrsBw57TutP%2BH
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uQkaABcyRkyzo0%2Ff0O3A7%2FRGPz5CUsnCejaL6wTG78Lc9Tqe%2FoTww9zmFdR4Exa%2F
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ut186c2JrJ3MmjTn7X8eB1gQFHN0AETZOgaKdArHkFkm9c%2BRNLdO0963TRZHHay6
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3McwEsoguyxikDfeIsrZBnWWkGN7ovqzUPdtlBx%2BsV8dxyTaSRAojKqyQotyBeif
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=zLVWssPc3elfoQuYe36ew6Gir6HXIOWEIqHiMlC%2FUOS8L57gUz2vpGYupCERO7Ug
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=8U0Qk6nTyFfeO1x6SWfPvFWrHFLMir2uf80GqUo6Nef8zE95B8KmRv82Xxj0MRus
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  FOR 2023 06

10120701 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10120701 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 4,850.00               0.00           4,850.00             208.05               3.01           4,638.94       4.4%

     TOTAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT          
                20,840.00               0.00          20,840.00           6,838.05               3.01          13,998.94      32.8%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                20,840.00               0.00          20,840.00           6,838.05               3.01          13,998.94

10130101 PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING              

10130101 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
                94,546.00               0.00          94,546.00          44,000.26               0.00          50,545.74      46.5%
10130101 51610           SUPERVISORS
                70,160.00               0.00          70,160.00          39,049.67               0.00          31,110.33      55.7%
10130101 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                98,720.00               0.00          98,720.00          49,598.55               0.00          49,121.45      50.2%
10130101 51645           NURSES SALARY
               214,903.00               0.00         214,903.00          94,174.51               0.00         120,728.49      43.8%
10130101 51646           NURSE AIDES
                32,000.00               0.00          32,000.00           9,958.60               0.00          22,041.40      31.1%
10130101 51710           PER DIEM NURSES
                63,850.00               0.00          63,850.00           3,389.60               0.00          60,460.40       5.3%
10130101 51720           STIPENDS
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00           4,840.00               0.00           5,160.00      48.4%
10130101 52610           CLOTHING ALLOWANCE
                 1,620.00               0.00           1,620.00             960.00               0.00             660.00      59.3%
10130101 53300           PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICES
               135,000.00               0.00         135,000.00          37,556.63          63,323.37          34,120.00      74.7%
10130101 53400           OTHER PROFESS/TECH SERVICES
                 3,210.00               0.00           3,210.00             500.00               0.00           2,710.00      15.6%
10130101 53600           ACCOUNTING SERVICES/AUDIT
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00           2,375.00               0.00             625.00      79.2%
10130101 53635           PATIENT SATISFACTION SURVEY
                 2,500.00               0.00           2,500.00             900.00             900.00             700.00      72.0%
10130101 53636           ICD CODING
                13,920.00               0.00          13,920.00           4,350.00           4,650.00           4,920.00      64.7%
10130101 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                12,143.00               0.00          12,143.00           4,934.00           6,066.00           1,143.00      90.6%
10130101 54300           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
                34,455.00               0.00          34,455.00          12,630.00          12,630.00           9,195.00      73.3%
10130101 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                11,174.00               0.00          11,174.00           3,057.65           2,482.35           5,634.00      49.6%

213

https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=P842QJk8yHy4KfNT7uSn4cyG4PP9%2Fx%2BTCC2QL3sKHJ1zzAo%2B1WnFFRaXBpXe3skO
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0Y%2FTKWhFWv%2FsNEpcC9nu0d%2FznlhNYoXTG3z6xmfwHoDzOIZ%2BiLpy9mYLWj9MBz7G
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CrR%2BEokw71uxyCXFSsFCfLUFMu88hpMaUscXh5g0h9jKZo8Lqvfhh6Dn8fdqgOGl
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7%2BUR28%2FjYatMvIAiPQGrO2%2FzVDDOm2I%2BJZHERF57UVwnWkYDNqrMi3C4qgCuM4ze
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9BNR2aWCqwy%2B4at7D1We4mvrp5XAuQsODWaR%2B4DlLrTb5ZUFT6BW1zcklYXSbhoZ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tJEUHb6a3SssgXrKrnItbswW1r1dtlSKl%2Fk3VomvDUqQYZcy%2BOyx0NRlEL8OqYes
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZpMKuJmMAd9ljbMqexoryQ8hXXz6EkqMOoQelHdPFn%2FtupP48413tsKjxxsiAeGa
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nseuMrbQCqbXeeV54OpDFVqD%2BU8x2WXj5Z9tv%2F8u7uVeLlDqFy%2B2rEovWcqJZ1dV
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=OirySqNEvN%2BSwBzFmOyhT5nCaES4ebLjGOSm63X8ProziecDwOuKb2yrgeD6dTQT
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6%2B4dwTqmpdJiZIqMADnH3dzZ8feDUUADSMgjUWjKTMdGrWB7JomBwT2XIYKmx%2BVD
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RPjZjt1EZPP5L%2BEGb4et3IfCGiizpqIQvX3XSOeb90wRs1Yss0kEMyPWXYpZ%2FY7d
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RC9x4%2BpgCW23palx5kL5Lnp5s1X9AHBhnFMND4elQfu5aEvAqbMBYSag3hnrDAi4
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CRARJOfzj27Np3qIcxwl5KeKW8qgfX3sX%2FfLfqoIey8B8IZkOUCiXurvUQyb7N3I
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wep8SiNmuE8hRaLYe6FnAxq90zMfRaC3x%2BVY8lbCFv%2F6zLaza6qggiivaw0NLg6f
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=dr2CJvuf1iwrmRlBpYwWYJCwQwd9i7NQ7F0Ng8uZiZGmnt%2FffgKryGyCFAobFwSg
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wZkqXHcv1H17jFmDo7dCsvY2ab1bH0eeacHYdcOTKQgwKVLhGcOCkQ5f%2BKQNkW0g
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NdYY%2BjAHFLVKIbLsWO7vbqGGrNPZoMtmpHk6uvqSA708qASmSehqobjTctXOoieY
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  FOR 2023 06

10130101 PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10130101 56900           OTHER SUPPLIES
                13,000.00               0.00          13,000.00           1,997.42           9,283.58           1,719.00      86.8%
10130101 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 7,040.00               0.00           7,040.00           4,033.82           1,290.00           1,716.18      75.6%
10130101 58300           EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT
                16,000.00               0.00          16,000.00           3,317.56           4,026.82           8,655.62      45.9%
10130101 58775           COMMUNITY HEALTH PROGRAM
                 3,650.00               0.00           3,650.00             295.00           2,625.32             729.68      80.0%
10130101 58790           MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
                 1,750.00               0.00           1,750.00           1,148.29               0.00             601.71      65.6%

     TOTAL PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING         
               842,641.00               0.00         842,641.00         323,066.56         107,277.44         412,297.00      51.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               842,641.00               0.00         842,641.00         323,066.56         107,277.44         412,297.00

10130103 SCHOOL NURSING                     

10130103 51645           NURSES SALARY
               264,645.00               0.00         264,645.00         100,018.86               0.00         164,626.14      37.8%
10130103 51646           NURSE AIDES
                45,356.00               0.00          45,356.00          23,221.90               0.00          22,134.10      51.2%
10130103 51710           OTHER WAGES
                36,100.00               0.00          36,100.00           6,729.95               0.00          29,370.05      18.6%
10130103 52610           CLOTHING ALLOWANCE
                 1,500.00               0.00           1,500.00               0.00               0.00           1,500.00        .0%
10130103 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                   940.00               0.00             940.00               0.00               0.00             940.00        .0%
10130103 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 2,205.00               0.00           2,205.00             178.68              68.00           1,958.32      11.2%

     TOTAL SCHOOL NURSING                
               350,746.00               0.00         350,746.00         130,149.39              68.00         220,528.61      37.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               350,746.00               0.00         350,746.00         130,149.39              68.00         220,528.61

10130301 SOCIAL SERVICES                    

10130301 51610           SUPERVISORS
                87,297.00               0.00          87,297.00          41,734.65               0.00          45,562.35      47.8%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9u4ruv0yXBv%2B7K6%2BpUbpxUiSDSYShIYWLI29x5bnUz8UavWovrFh0Wdh%2BJbYAbx1
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QKY1e%2F9faDoJ9bjbNj9ViqlmsvsIjP5Az33zQWVZ3AYVQ1ygZanKCRa1j6%2FpRbn5
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jUN2OKqqjl19zThGoh1TXJ%2F4bFhxrWWhM3I9HZgT1qGMKEA5g%2FjEqPZ2NIAdkxVO
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Fxl9IEdd4Py5UYHx5f%2FPfpow93yP7MiSpO%2Ba3zuZu7imj8aK8PKh6h6Xt7d937gG
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=PItwVEhZob5WXQ8YUrgoR5trwz3aE6cZfEpGCcRroDyaEnJlqqFoPhtZPfGvoS%2Bh
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CKEwV3uz5hZWtqgkU6B3z08EYRTbdl57UvxbfoWUwb5%2FPHkd18%2BG%2BtuaF16bUSHK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7qcY%2BAXl5%2BdxFhT%2BznS9hG1Lusi%2F6Q4kbwCMTqaAvNF7ORHZVI4Q%2BvycK5IDsyGZ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CmecFFZzcVjjzjcroDuJWbzdrlNNdEfVi2%2FqA2zqR8PTrpb3pgJr7JhVc4MNv7e4
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JF7UJj%2BvbH51YOpZbm8aEvl6lkLYcPpqItuFv94erGJWZP2Ww2qaxBjhmA5RUQSw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4TP6TkSAaXLUeky2ny86Wv5Rb7sB44Z1P99uawfbOItt9gxcGEpE0p9Z4doklO%2F7
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ld8C2t1%2FnMD1V5uFJWjYMcJQ2wE1xhfSWunchhA%2BPpJn120lanIOuREQ29jy55ki
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4CRFq6iAU8jkSj%2Bqw0pS3Vahy2aJhWvon8yw8mWfoo1rr9%2Bwj9F%2Bm2iWWdYcIePP
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10130301 SOCIAL SERVICES
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10130301 51700           COUNSELOR
                 4,400.00               0.00           4,400.00               0.00              77.25           4,322.75       1.8%
10130301 54401           FOOD PANTRY EXPENSES
                 3,500.00               0.00           3,500.00               0.00               0.00           3,500.00        .0%
10130301 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 4,622.00               0.00           4,622.00           2,360.59             992.91           1,268.50      72.6%

     TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES               
                99,819.00               0.00          99,819.00          44,095.24           1,070.16          54,653.60      45.2%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                99,819.00               0.00          99,819.00          44,095.24           1,070.16          54,653.60

10130501 SENIOR CENTER                      

10130501 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                36,291.00               0.00          36,291.00          16,598.89               0.00          19,692.11      45.7%
10130501 51700           ADMINISTRATIVE WAGES
                18,656.00               0.00          18,656.00           4,388.30               0.00          14,267.70      23.5%
10130501 51800           VAN DRIVER WAGES
                20,000.00               0.00          20,000.00          10,722.45               0.00           9,277.55      53.6%
10130501 53658           REGIONAL SENIOR WEBSITE
                 3,600.00               0.00           3,600.00           3,600.00               0.00               0.00     100.0%
10130501 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                 3,765.00               0.00           3,765.00           1,623.78           2,105.22              36.00      99.0%
10130501 54310           EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
                 1,500.00             450.00           1,950.00           1,880.81              47.55              21.64      98.9%
10130501 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 3,370.00            -450.00           2,920.00             479.14           1,872.86             568.00      80.5%
10130501 58775           COMMUNITY HEALTH PROGRAM
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00           6,086.00             411.00           3,503.00      65.0%

     TOTAL SENIOR CENTER                 
                97,182.00               0.00          97,182.00          45,379.37           4,436.63          47,366.00      51.3%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                97,182.00               0.00          97,182.00          45,379.37           4,436.63          47,366.00

10140101 ADMINSTRATION                      

10140101 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
               125,195.00               0.00         125,195.00          58,263.98               0.00          66,931.02      46.5%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=vd0%2BgHoMsbkDXBeU69JHVmPcCmLkT%2FqA%2BfQt0XlSaaW6HmxaEYOa8Vo8fc6sHArG
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uM64WhJO9QRXhW4zpTwWe2x9VDEpya4mj5ZnP2PofZ207qNWx6%2FkKvm15anFJFfr
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=GFq9Uey9KYNgdcCWjGfEta3FM33DTuQ%2BrbPNYC9bEmkxt6j1IcokGE%2BMWALanWEk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=r64%2BcqNMdI6hzAEbT99xJgMzFt0W1S5Jz6IVKl7sgxQWkeBwQcah6vFtZ85y4qDf
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rRQLBn4fgEE2CL92B8GrLw4zVWWNHIsKjvQNZJeRX5%2BLvG8pCi0CraF6puN02Iys
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tLDHRtAMgjo1mk8wx8kdqoos3%2Fl%2ByNkYd708z%2B0iRn%2FjXrYnROENVtENUaUHfChs
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ai8EcmG7YzZyqVqeMCPybvWFGLDFJcb7MWofHIlKBc06GxdUY1svcWF3n9AFg%2Ftg
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NW96GoQbITGZ7cCdtCCFGDXHdjAZMERdqDCHV9iZKaT8M0VEWnzaYs01LIAn2BQv
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7o811V7U7xZ5d5HXudaejc4q9XWhrQEJZV3L76oTHm4MFXktw6Z2qdykfOAhvhCP
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ff6%2F%2FRq6G9TvFNe61dFAMTEpb%2Bn4InMb%2BVYJwcrIp%2BWMt5x7ZJgtGeFZ3EaCAudV
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DvLDGYgN%2BsdRvXKXeNJA2yHpLg03YDrZyqAeM8WA8yjdpZArHHcSp84NEXM5Y21l
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9kSw4iQz0wxkGL7Ycb0Etf%2FrCeT7joZxI9Oxd9JTg2OL0m8ki9t%2BMnbQmrLkG2ZN
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  FOR 2023 06

10140101 ADMINSTRATION
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10140101 53300           PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICES
                70,000.00               0.00          70,000.00          20,758.08          48,091.92           1,150.00      98.4%
10140101 58110           TRAINING/MTGS/DUES/SUBSCRIP
                 3,675.00               0.00           3,675.00             520.00           2,277.50             877.50      76.1%

     TOTAL ADMINSTRATION                 
               198,870.00               0.00         198,870.00          79,542.06          50,369.42          68,958.52      65.3%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               198,870.00               0.00         198,870.00          79,542.06          50,369.42          68,958.52

10140103 HIGHWAY                            

10140103 51130           OVERTIME
                12,500.00               0.00          12,500.00           5,889.82               0.00           6,610.18      47.1%
10140103 51301           SEASONAL HELP SUMMER
                15,000.00               0.00          15,000.00           5,586.00               0.00           9,414.00      37.2%
10140103 51610           SUPERVISORS
                87,665.00               0.00          87,665.00          41,686.12               0.00          45,978.88      47.6%
10140103 51620           PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES
               827,966.00               0.00         827,966.00         363,912.28               0.00         464,053.72      44.0%
10140103 51710           POSITION UPGRADE PAY
                 7,500.00               0.00           7,500.00           2,898.81               0.00           4,601.19      38.7%
10140103 51805           PT SNOWPLOW DRIVERS
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00               0.00               0.00           5,000.00        .0%
10140103 51815           OVERTIME SNOW PLOWING
                95,000.00               0.00          95,000.00           8,413.31               0.00          86,586.69       8.9%
10140103 53645           TRAINING
                 1,800.00               0.00           1,800.00             545.00             500.00             755.00      58.1%
10140103 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00               0.00           2,000.00           1,000.00      66.7%
10140103 55300           TELEPHONE/CABLE
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           1,408.30           2,891.70             700.00      86.0%
10140103 56260           GASOLINE/OIL
                40,000.00               0.00          40,000.00           1,934.98          25,465.02          12,600.00      68.5%
10140103 56265           DIESEL FUEL
                60,000.00               0.00          60,000.00          13,508.39          36,491.61          10,000.00      83.3%
10140103 56730           UNIFORMS
                13,000.00               0.00          13,000.00           6,430.89           5,815.10             754.01      94.2%
10140103 56900           OTHER SUPPLIES
                 2,300.00               0.00           2,300.00           1,164.18           1,585.82            -450.00     119.6%
10140103 57300           NEW EQUIPMENT
                 1,500.00               0.00           1,500.00             743.03             706.97              50.00      96.7%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=zPJPoFg%2F3c0n94hV1kNCR1tn9CT2BuEpIGVwLuoTxMjf8kAqe5y%2BEONMhUyW1MFY
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=g4oXeg8n4CUDBc%2BQgeuiia8BRTvL8K42HX0lttTFJ%2BPWQw1rXgZL3kuHVxGjV1vm
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Qrs196hsnFFIo0FERlA1%2FZlD2xqGaTofyo%2FWMy1VNLU9pjCF1c6kNoteaKzsZQ1h
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2F42K95SuDkM9D4JKE4eEfObSWO6hFn5EAnnZsinCMCsl5By32An7wYl6rl9P1CeJ
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=R3IO8DM4Qng3UV2grBYoPJcgLKwBY8YPe0lsS3ip6p9HEXhmhi87ijUM7eF8ib%2FY
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hxFCjhGzI8iyv0qsBW53CpVv0nMFzJ%2BpQnwK3%2FZ9%2Ffb1meSFXIj%2FCtr3LfNf1EaL
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=i44srCrKwgqLeF2AL271CQIcuxiw3%2FGTQ%2FA9PFL8e6Xz3cP0xKWQaESJZi%2FTAPB8
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Bkadk%2B5oHyG6biAGhD0OWV9p354Ps1c5KwG%2FAY%2FdpYeXoXYnJuHdhnwYnFeSHEb5
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FSA41pAzbLrA03OYh%2FUhGBhjWI8Eg5ftxSkeU7bqCaCP6Tb%2B2G5Z8rMZGrR74RAw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Yi5d2UMM9hqPgqbaDlh4NrO2MsrzeXM7hTSDS%2FQo5Nth%2Bcd%2B%2BszatbFgvNKFb2Js
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=k%2FPluF3fkp3XczqM9T8amQOi7et0%2B6D%2BGUUI%2Fx4J0OZATyeWmtlYCF8O28USZm6q
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ygQfIO9dOb08mLR34PQHrJ3zrWemdF63%2FKpCvZOEpipZNLCNc33ewTIXes9dpIsE
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TJv4XledtMSGzpX2mBcWAwH6t58k%2FcfQAgVWQELUY4%2FjmG3ncxvwQgIylXZVl2Cd
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Fv1%2BB72%2F77nTmTwh1wrwTyYZdeVveOi1aYFX3EKO4RzdIk2jFXqamGK%2Fd%2BQFVKXV
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jieAIM6G%2F%2FUCxQwfSGXNSdiJZjYzi0ScS1fx7FaXE%2B%2FKssMqhEyGJgs9%2BytjBinF
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=N%2FINQHn3ZahF8mOm%2F8PeDugsdxjVu3mFVJDCUowPbFscn1b%2B5ku3jHR47htDtJZD
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZbU1M2lyPmIfMKiHyx7tclhcX%2BjADpyxL1mycnTNjyRQr8ShFZu504TYwHBmCq2c
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10140103 HIGHWAY
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10140103 58300           EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT
                 5,500.00               0.00           5,500.00             402.50               0.00           5,097.50       7.3%

     TOTAL HIGHWAY                       
             1,182,731.00               0.00       1,182,731.00         454,523.61          75,456.22         652,751.17      44.8%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
             1,182,731.00               0.00       1,182,731.00         454,523.61          75,456.22         652,751.17

10140105 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE                

10140105 51620           PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES
               126,589.00               0.00         126,589.00          58,947.30               0.00          67,641.70      46.6%
10140105 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 2,100.00               0.00           2,100.00           1,105.44             844.56             150.00      92.9%
10140105 56300           SNOW PLOW BLADES
                 5,500.00               0.00           5,500.00           3,250.00             250.00           2,000.00      63.6%
10140105 56700           VEHICLE/EQUIP PARTS
               135,000.00            -500.00         134,500.00          65,779.41          31,720.59          37,000.00      72.5%
10140105 56705           OXYGEN & WELDING
                 1,000.00             500.00           1,500.00           1,046.48             453.52               0.00     100.0%
10140105 56715           TIRES
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00          14,780.38             219.62          -5,000.00     150.0%

     TOTAL VEHICLE MAINTENANCE           
               280,189.00               0.00         280,189.00         144,909.01          33,488.29         101,791.70      63.7%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               280,189.00               0.00         280,189.00         144,909.01          33,488.29         101,791.70

10140107 ROAD UPKEEP                        

10140107 56301           SALT AND SAND
               125,000.00               0.00         125,000.00               0.00          95,580.00          29,420.00      76.5%
10140107 56302           SNOW DAMAGE
                   300.00               0.00             300.00               8.54             191.46             100.00      66.7%
10140107 56303           BITUMINOUS CONCRETE
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           4,569.60             430.40               0.00     100.0%
10140107 56304           STREETS SIGNS & MARKINGS
                 4,000.00               0.00           4,000.00           1,496.92             853.08           1,650.00      58.8%
10140107 56305           GUIDE RAILS
                 3,000.00              62.50           3,062.50           3,062.50               0.00               0.00     100.0%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=eb2wMJIhaEhcOvlLNvAp6jlebFw3%2BihA1kl3HJDkqNvlAfdkmpj6xk7%2Fukccq7xc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RiUVvS6EJz229eloZrnsp86965dyFcgcTzgS6dlY%2FoeIqFMOu%2BhMhweyRh2EjiNG
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=G84DtNLz4I9P8Y87%2FYSe5KySKM674EUUIagTbTfkipz%2BdwvZT3TuUALcbzYb9bAi
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=s%2Baq%2BPmi%2BsKql9487F10rBR%2FUtV0Rcq9zEFiWUdE5Uq1hQEWJjxpP9KEZPEMjI3R
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xf%2FA8WiNfRtHVK3Dpkp4hghAbM4c3QP%2FE20A1qn2EFrpFTZ9VWlgBGjhVdvIk2We
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=v%2BgEkEh1XK%2FuAmdEi95NoxzxQyf3Cdw%2Bsp3zYlMrZW5fm27HoSu43B7ilwzTt9Ax
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=95YH2fRgD84c1fehKiBjB8OlJAjxKRDCRIhzRukz7AVBZOlIojJmxmd9BQ9nTlwd
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=i2%2BUQ5S50lYk%2B%2B0SlAxaxNQFrGbkFhmpxhwL2JdJQecZ1BKcYTT7bs1rTKC9GZ5c
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rkdoj3H2rN18nQkdnMBpyzmy7fEtz3aUBoZExN6oBDI8x3N2ibsYWYtQMgFWAVie
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=m%2FM2gkEQejZZWjP3%2F%2FcXE%2BND9SNS02WgT5rW6vUoQ69Ev4bbdvFpY7QljHAfmsy3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RFN%2FCCM%2FBMx%2FQtUNd1Hz3ZO3zQgeOXUDqR3Vha1WnCUIT9loHCuFrH%2BixU%2BlnicA
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ruQvDUQl85D34eNqwcMjxyAs0PuktlbVRUiYKvhDnW8zTm4sF%2FINLyVswIf7Kh%2Bo
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10140107 ROAD UPKEEP
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10140107 56306           TREE REMOVAL
                 4,000.00          25,000.00          29,000.00             760.00          21,240.00           7,000.00      75.9%
10140107 56307           GRAVEL
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00           2,814.24             185.76               0.00     100.0%
10140107 56308           DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT
                 3,000.00               0.00           3,000.00           2,391.36             708.64            -100.00     103.3%
10140107 56312           STREETLIGHT MAINTENANCE
                 1,500.00             -62.50           1,437.50             247.50             502.50             687.50      52.2%
10140107 57301           EQUIPMENT RENTAL
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00              73.45           1,648.76             277.79      86.1%

     TOTAL ROAD UPKEEP                   
               150,800.00          25,000.00         175,800.00          15,424.11         121,340.60          39,035.29      77.8%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               150,800.00          25,000.00         175,800.00          15,424.11         121,340.60          39,035.29

10140111 PROPERTY MAINTENANCE               

10140111 58200           TOWN HALL AND ANNEX
                15,000.00               0.00          15,000.00           6,447.63           3,524.37           5,028.00      66.5%
10140111 58210           PW FACILITIES
                26,000.00               0.00          26,000.00          12,313.50          10,003.34           3,683.16      85.8%
10140111 58220           POLICE STATION
                15,000.00               0.00          15,000.00           5,672.26           5,303.74           4,024.00      73.2%
10140111 58225           EMERGENCY SERVICES BUILDING
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00           3,722.42           3,695.58           2,582.00      74.2%
10140111 58230           LIBRARY FAC
                 6,500.00               0.00           6,500.00           4,261.55           3,573.45          -1,335.00     120.5%
10140111 58235           SENIOR CENTER FACILITY
                 8,000.00               0.00           8,000.00           2,890.85           1,204.15           3,905.00      51.2%
10140111 58236           TOWN GREEN
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           2,565.49           2,012.13             422.38      91.6%

     TOTAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE          
                85,500.00               0.00          85,500.00          37,873.70          29,316.76          18,309.54      78.6%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
                85,500.00               0.00          85,500.00          37,873.70          29,316.76          18,309.54

10140113 SANITATION                         

10140113 51620           PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES
                 2,000.00               0.00           2,000.00             373.97               0.00           1,626.03      18.7%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wJ%2BJgH1EhEShXcgP3A5rYlnbqvN4AMyy8UoD22DEVpBv%2FunnYVFui0EDZ5lUx6Rb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jtG6rSXgX6RaZiwkFe0Tk31DktEnNFL%2BmfP65FX1BVlOMJ3b66xgHy7em0Zv4dFd
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=EFnXNhyFbItb5nZhYHzDaxhOwB8onngNqqg7EYSzyACzxJb%2BBk686gaWcAEhx9qd
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tjTN1%2BDAPySC9NEGXEEg7ERYqtXrHamfazz47HUebY5%2FzGlhsIEoT9EJojTZfw1E
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=KxKkx%2BT%2BrXhiBp9zlIiPt52zh%2FWTgyGlSHO%2BF2VSqqYF0FfDfbTm%2BQZGQ2oFoIgk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=genz513qqUzW8QIa1hEYnLhvNPxJwve79JuhVwTQ1ApCW0P7p7gaIui2PNj9y6jU
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tR8IkN9WELTpTRyKwtYkPpIzpHrXq%2BGyYYNk%2FsAGlxMpDCEVbifmoMe1u3%2BFkw8n
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=koTqCfS4sjDVFJiEowY%2BZXVIXE9kGOlZy9SrxMoi3aYr8449KA1Fakv1M4bY4JCc
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CQj%2B78OUTxKP3VAb5dY4w7f8h1PaXq7sRyO7e%2B00UzSr9vqmBj3bCdmGAIP80VzY
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=oln231JqnR%2FZNn%2Fwo0ThNJ1L1NSLPOgt4kJXZXd41FOSbtotOujcBngholwHBP2l
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=W4L%2Bx1pCd6nVspIs0c2k84CeYgEPVYPgSyPrGQ571qTD6F51hgBfz5W15LRgrmjO
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WiuZbNI9BBFyedFXUA6RHqzua13c7XFfWmdzufjgxtxIqxqDoBox42ZNIO6UbbFS
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=q%2BONkl%2BdSNVLdjct3zTO7JRB8umGltgo%2BdzsNexPBwZGVenD4ZAQwM8auT%2BY3aL%2F
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10140113 SANITATION
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10140113 54210           DISPOSAL SERVICE
               616,803.00               0.00         616,803.00         303,401.52         305,598.48           7,803.00      98.7%
10140113 54224           TIPPING FEES
               400,000.00               0.00         400,000.00         149,581.31         236,418.69          14,000.00      96.5%
10140113 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                 5,000.00               0.00           5,000.00           2,963.60           1,936.40             100.00      98.0%
10140113 58790           MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
                75,000.00               0.00          75,000.00          28,914.00          36,086.00          10,000.00      86.7%

     TOTAL SANITATION                    
             1,098,803.00               0.00       1,098,803.00         485,234.40         580,039.57          33,529.03      96.9%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
             1,098,803.00               0.00       1,098,803.00         485,234.40         580,039.57          33,529.03

10150101 LIBRARY                            

10150101 51160           CUSTODIAN SALARIES
                23,382.00               0.00          23,382.00          11,189.21               0.00          12,192.79      47.9%
10150101 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
                81,136.00          -3,240.00          77,896.00          36,251.60               0.00          41,644.40      46.5%
10150101 51610           SUPERVISORS
               162,753.00               0.00         162,753.00          63,323.26               0.00          99,429.74      38.9%
10150101 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
               102,528.00               0.00         102,528.00          56,673.11               0.00          45,854.89      55.3%
10150101 51800           PART-TIME WAGES
                55,765.00               0.00          55,765.00          26,511.70               0.00          29,253.30      47.5%
10150101 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
                 2,540.00           3,240.00           5,780.00           3,930.65           1,124.35             725.00      87.5%
10150101 55330           TELEPHONE  & FAX SERVICE
                 3,200.00               0.00           3,200.00             944.83           2,055.17             200.00      93.8%
10150101 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                12,283.00               0.00          12,283.00           7,124.12           4,543.66             615.22      95.0%
10150101 56140           LION REGIONAL COMPUTER NETWORK
                43,658.00               0.00          43,658.00          21,839.84          20,527.32           1,290.84      97.0%
10150101 56420           LIBRARY BOOKS
                55,000.00               0.00          55,000.00          27,581.60          21,533.20           5,885.20      89.3%

     TOTAL LIBRARY                       
               542,245.00               0.00         542,245.00         255,369.92          49,783.70         237,091.38      56.3%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               542,245.00               0.00         542,245.00         255,369.92          49,783.70         237,091.38

10160101 PARKS AND RECREATION               

10160101 51600           DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1En10x1OyfYsd1CcB06n8WGgmqUNbalgz5ef6nJqBl55b9WZSM2R4XptQ%2FwI%2FYIk
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=u7ZepBxY7dmSQzAAPSeju2pCHj62E98kYGV6%2Fwj3PWPqUsE5%2FxOb%2B1goPXiMnzAd
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=he%2B%2Br75B6KpfRWiIkZ4zo%2FvWdTQZwIfKCDfGgxoo03Dl6jQukm6u12AGEbs7Zzyy
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZHNM5gNZUROp2q5h4dTTH255JgrgMwrLU16WOHL6LmwhLQGeGcNwDcjE7QNcswxL
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7YSDvTunHU2AQiVddAKv%2FV0VxWAt0XQ0qxEaIC2Qua8kr0R3apt%2FInRgSDqcmse5
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=gFeKBEJig6BZDO9ojfgcJZcWF3Atqp3AxBFXPvDFMqpZWsht359%2B8oYfC%2BZoYFVo
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Xd9NQLYnb437Hqnj5EXCv2qL8dgcGxAsvTIWS8ddwAf7OvGFNRnZXl%2F6DzGElolI
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=yGma7uhKOweEVXfmWNK2mZ4PQj4rovm1GVpzSUYXPh16Rp%2FqXuFpNsacSsNyzooK
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZbdRInK5BCF0essiLHbpxf5ieUHN8O6QIyPyNJqov2o9gli6Nf3m%2BTsZVhSGsoKM
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5L%2FXneGUU9jWptgsxVimlWZOIOyIQ4JC8UsZfhzcJL3Xqk29xPsl0xmk9iKe%2FEzS
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=iXf3qTjNODxYCU8LYkQK2Mc19RhC3lcYHvQ0V4FycqD0LOj8M4%2FLTXBk9hpMIhim
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ui6BR%2F0p4SbY2pUnDUpIUKXWFsIc8afISGa3JinOSxmPGh%2Bt78bWgvO%2FBj3c4bUM
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=6cA9ApPhcmOBqO4ZngpQ%2BtbCxTXQcIxmpB0zGTgHSXxv01zfzB7tUU8JyQrxok7m
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0QIGJ6LcQJU2EBEzQlwg4THkl0ZTPGqXTSKe501XNztvGKqHi04z%2FklhcYzvIq5G
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=16yu9QnhLQM1n3SbNLDasJ%2BqQGRZ9HsP5xuD9kDdefd1f2uF%2FcRzcMH%2FsiVxk%2FiD
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10160101 PARKS AND RECREATION
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

                78,915.00               0.00          78,915.00          36,725.94               0.00          42,189.06      46.5%
10160101 51610           SUPERVISORS
                53,393.00               0.00          53,393.00          26,946.47               0.00          26,446.53      50.5%
10160101 51615           ASSISTANT WAGES
                77,036.00               0.00          77,036.00          30,089.52               0.00          46,946.48      39.1%
10160101 51710           PLAYGROUND & CUSTODIAN
                10,000.00               0.00          10,000.00               0.00               0.00          10,000.00        .0%
10160101 53700           CONTRACT MAINTENANCE/LEASES
               161,462.00               0.00         161,462.00          87,133.32          74,328.68               0.00     100.0%
10160101 54300           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
                32,046.00               0.00          32,046.00          16,367.66          13,857.34           1,821.00      94.3%
10160101 56100           OPERATING EXPENSES
                24,615.00               0.00          24,615.00           9,534.95          14,869.41             210.64      99.1%
10160101 56220           ELECTRICITY
                27,000.00               0.00          27,000.00          15,733.86          11,266.14               0.00     100.0%

     TOTAL PARKS AND RECREATION          
               464,467.00               0.00         464,467.00         222,531.72         114,321.57         127,613.71      72.5%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
               464,467.00               0.00         464,467.00         222,531.72         114,321.57         127,613.71

10170101 BOE EXPENDITURES                   

10170101 58790           BOARD OF EDUC EXPENSES
            34,555,319.00               0.00      34,555,319.00               0.00               0.00      34,555,319.00        .0%

     TOTAL BOE EXPENDITURES              
            34,555,319.00               0.00      34,555,319.00               0.00               0.00      34,555,319.00        .0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
            34,555,319.00               0.00      34,555,319.00               0.00               0.00      34,555,319.00

10180101 DEBT SERVICE                       

10180101 58810           GEN OBLIGATION BOND PRINCIPAL
             2,894,957.00               0.00       2,894,957.00       1,782,337.22               0.00       1,112,619.78      61.6%
10180101 58811           GEN OBLIGATION BOND INTEREST
             1,160,761.00               0.00       1,160,761.00         383,004.49               0.00         777,756.51      33.0%
10180101 58820           CWF/DWSRF LOAN PRINCIPAL
                84,266.00               0.00          84,266.00          20,932.04               0.00          63,333.96      24.8%
10180101 58821           CWF/DWSRF LOAN INTEREST
                13,705.00               0.00          13,705.00           3,560.53               0.00          10,144.47      26.0%
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https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1v6xH%2Bai%2BCRPjY%2F6pjiG7TnSuaZ%2FRmYaBr3OSLU%2FnBBBdksVNlgHSWTP8ogT9%2FKx
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wQxjn3ITDBGaOlDILhl%2BL%2Bxpq7E242ewqXGVJrRGQwlAcoJ1oemg5C4AlI5zlOa3
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=M2Trcb8QPJIITuJ6%2FJkRRfplvR41Z5Cs7tX%2FYvpdrLkBdSy2gKDhKK8dwzA1GK2e
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BiRldbyPD4Pjxt0iAJcasczrWsW7bNxUq%2Bhg%2FO%2FIxi%2BFxXXt%2Fh3t4yv7%2FOCq0Tl4
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QZi%2BtalSZh8LsYUHq9SSsLE%2FRjkoEHOZq%2BIyI1BK7fIR5zOuw72ct2kTgBv2cGLo
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hwL5MSbz8kXwIhlJUfslnqKGlU%2FO%2FhkblMTdD%2F%2Ba2aCOM11RdmIoHyLD1CzQ7%2BXs
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=btY%2FK4yJ8DeOiEaOKPELcCRZQiuEIztDIaNLBfpJQbdfBUXyq%2F5mwinsqvuhoF5D
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DOiBW1zk5MJubphDRBD0lZkV8ubYkkd6QtIyIhW3KZ6LUZuIJ%2BCc1Gvb%2FMImE6Vw
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qsu0F%2FdvpokDOOIEep4Xdng35QWmyu%2FOUqyvgK2jFBfYcFsROReABVUEkfFvSPiu
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ujr3Jp%2BVbcSyOYuEQTOyKNxZ2HWpZhkjIPp%2BF6JgtZWcCIMAo6d8cN3LSwb9vfLt
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9G%2FuWl6O%2BshyV%2F%2BDjx3kDGBkkirqPntNTu6KkVm0a42EoN3F8RDWQ4mS52nmtQkb
https://townofledyardctmunisapp.tylerhost.net/6695prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4kRE6J08W8WVR5REO3ye5YZwymgtHLPr3O4ZvXr3Se978qU2feC6tPq%2BuWRZ4RId
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10180101 DEBT SERVICE
          ORIGINAL APPROP      TRANS/ADJSMTS     REVISED BUDGET       YTD EXPENDED       ENCUMBRANCES   AVAILABLE BUDGET    % USED

10180101 58823           DEBT TRANSFER TO WPCA
               550,971.00               0.00         550,971.00               0.00               0.00         550,971.00        .0%
10180101 58830           PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
                50,000.00               0.00          50,000.00               0.00               0.00          50,000.00        .0%

     TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                  
             4,754,660.00               0.00       4,754,660.00       2,189,834.28               0.00       2,564,825.72      46.1%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
             4,754,660.00               0.00       4,754,660.00       2,189,834.28               0.00       2,564,825.72

10185101 CAPITAL AND NON-RECURRING          

10185101 58790           CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL
             1,150,285.00               0.00       1,150,285.00               0.00               0.00       1,150,285.00        .0%

     TOTAL CAPITAL AND NON-RECURRING     
             1,150,285.00               0.00       1,150,285.00               0.00               0.00       1,150,285.00        .0%

                     TOTAL EXPENSES
             1,150,285.00               0.00       1,150,285.00               0.00               0.00       1,150,285.00

                        GRAND TOTAL
            63,507,221.00          43,994.79      63,551,215.79      12,159,378.45       2,080,429.85      49,311,407.49      22.4%

                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Matthew Bonin **                                          
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TOWN OF LEDYARD 741 Colonel Ledyard
Highway

Ledyard, CT 06339-1511

File #: 22-064 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 1.

AGENDA REQUEST
GENERAL DISCUSSION ITEM

Subject:
Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital
Non-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve
ARPA Projects and expend ARPA Funding.

Background:

The Town has been slated to receive approximately $4,327,000 from the American Rescue Plan Act.

· Local governments would  receive funding in two tranches (2nd tranche May/June 2022)

· Funds must be “obligated” by the end of calendar year 2024, “liquidated” by end of calendar year 2026.

Although the federal guidelines did not require approval by the taxpayers for the use of the American Rescue Plan
Act (ARPA) Funding that the Finance Committee decided to include projects that were not time-sensitive in
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that would be presented and voted on by the taxpayers as part of the May 17,
2022 Budget Referendum

To ensure that each project and all suggestions were given their due diligence that over the past year the Finance
Committee developed a rubric to evaluate/rate each project, held an Information Forum on February 15, 2022
to receive and comments and suggestions on the proposed ARPA Projects, and received input from town
departments and residents through conversations, and other sources such as social media

v Final rule defines five (5) broad eligible categories:

· Responding to the public health emergency and the negative economic impacts of COVID-19

· Replacement of lost revenue

· Provide premium pay

· Water and sewer infrastructure

· Broadband infrastructure

v Responding to the public health emergency and the negative economic impacts of COVID-19
(subcategories)

· public health

· assistance to households

· assistance to small businesses

· assistance to nonprofits
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· aid to impacted industries

· public sector capacity

v Why not just “give the money back”?

· Funds cannot be used to reduce taxes

· Each resident would receive $288

· Current plan supports all of the above categories, invests in the community, and generates a return on
the investment.

During the ARPA Projects evaluation process the Town Council approved to allocate ARPA Funding for some
projects or expenses that were safety issues or time sensitive issues that could not wait until the May Budget
Referendum. He presented the List of ARPA Projects the Town Council  approved funding for as follows:

Project Location Estimated
Cost

Funds
Committe
d

Date
Approved

Sewer line extension Phase I Ledyard Center to LHS 1,200,000 Yes 4/27/2022

Skid mounted sewer pumps Ledyard WPCA 175,000 Yes 4/27/2022

Add funds to Housing Rehab Grant Town wide 100,000 Yes 12/8/2021

Town Hall A/C Replacement 741 Colonel Ledyard Hwy 80,000 Yes 4/13/2022

Town Green Improvements Ledyard Center 75,000 Yes 2/9/2022

Concrete floor Pole Barn, lower Town
Green

55,000 Yes 12/8/2021

LLHD Town wide 43,270 Yes 1/26/2022

Thames Valley Council for
Community Action

Town wide 15,000 Yes 12/8/2021

Replace brackets on lamp poles Ledyard Center 2,520 Yes 4/27/2022

Balance of funds for OwlPro
meeting camera

Town wide 831 Yes 12/8/2021

The following initiatives were presented and included as part of the Annual Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget
process for the use of the ARPA Funding:

Project Location Estimate
d Cost

Court of Probate Town wide TBD

Sewer line extension Phase III Ledyard Center 950,000

Ledyard Center sewer line extension Phase II Ledyard Center 612,500

Sandy Hollow Guardrails Sandy Hollow Road 225,000

Funding for youth mental health clinicians Town wide 190,000

Ledyard Up/Down Sawmill Ledyard 125,000

Replace 2 dispatch stations in Emergency Ops Center Town wide 75,000

Playscape replacement 13 Winthrop, Gales Ferry 65,000

Erickson Park enhancements Gales Ferry 55,000

Athletic Field Fence Education 55,000

Police radio replacement Town wide 46,125

Nathan Lester House repairs Ledyard 40,000

LED Sign Panel, Gales Ferry Gales Ferry 35,000

Sidewalk infill Ledyard Center 35,000

Sidewalks Gales Ferry 35,000
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Project Location Estimate
d Cost

Court of Probate Town wide TBD

Sewer line extension Phase III Ledyard Center 950,000

Ledyard Center sewer line extension Phase II Ledyard Center 612,500

Sandy Hollow Guardrails Sandy Hollow Road 225,000

Funding for youth mental health clinicians Town wide 190,000

Ledyard Up/Down Sawmill Ledyard 125,000

Replace 2 dispatch stations in Emergency Ops Center Town wide 75,000

Playscape replacement 13 Winthrop, Gales Ferry 65,000

Erickson Park enhancements Gales Ferry 55,000

Athletic Field Fence Education 55,000

Police radio replacement Town wide 46,125

Nathan Lester House repairs Ledyard 40,000

LED Sign Panel, Gales Ferry Gales Ferry 35,000

Sidewalk infill Ledyard Center 35,000

Sidewalks Gales Ferry 35,000

Project Location Estimated
Cost

LED Sign Panel, Ledyard Center Ledyard Center 35,000

 Lead Abatement project Nathan Lester House 30,000

SCCOG recovery planner Town wide 28,399

SE Cultural Coalition Town wide 28,399

Replace food pantry roof Ledyard Town Green 25,000

Southeastern Council on Alcoholism and Drug
Addiction

Town wide 25,000

Replace 6 doors in Town Hall 741 Colonel Ledyard Hwy 23,000

Electric Vehicle charging stations Gales Ferry 20,000

Re-vinyl side food pantry Ledyard Town Green 17,500

Gales Ferry Corridor Study Gales Ferry 15,000

Solar charging station Town Green, Bill Library GF Lib 12,000

Add ClearGov modules Town wide 10,500

Homeless Hospitality Center of New London Town wide 10,000

Parks and Rec Summer Scholarships Town wide 10,000

Replace Firehouse software Ledyard / Gales Ferry Fire Stations 8,000

Solar powered crosswalk signs Ledyard Center 7,500

Town promotional video Town wide 6,000

Install wi-fi in pantry Pantry, Town Green 2,500

Since the townspeople’s May 17, 2022 approval of the $63,484,221 Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget Accounts have been
setup for all of the approved ARPA Projects and staff has been assigned to manage and oversee each of the Projects.
Due to inflation rates the costs of the projects have increased significantly since the town began the process last
October-November, 2021. Therefore, the town has been working to monitor costs to determine which projects to
proceed with and whether they should hold off on other projects.
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Meeting Detail Action:

Finance Committee Meeting  12/7/2022:

File #: 22064 Version:  1

Type: General Discussion

Title: Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and
Capital Non-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to
approve ARPA Projects and expend ARPA Funding.

Action: Discussed/Continued

Minute Note:
Councilor Ryan noted the ARPA Projects spreadsheet columns included “Funds Appropriated” and “Balance
Available”. He questioned whether the funds available took into account completed projects that have come in under
budget. Finance Director Matthew Bonin stated the spreadsheet that was attached to tonight’s meeting packet was
not the most up-to-date spreadsheet, noting that he was maintaining a more detailed spreadsheet to track the projects
as they were progressing. Councilor Ryan stated it would be good for the Finance Committee to see the rolling
balance so that they could reallocate funds from completed projects that came in under budget, to projects that may
be coming in over budget or to projects that were on the ARPA List but were not budgeted yet. He noted the ARPA
Funding had to be appropriated before the end of 2024.

Action: Discussed/Continued

_____________________________________________________________________________

Finance Committee Meeting 11/2/2022

File #: 22064 <https://ledyardct.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?

ID=5725357&GUID=5B74E3A2-A070-4240-AE66-3D26A65C96BD> Version: 1

Type: General Discussion �����

Title: Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital Non

-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects

and expend ARPA Funding. �����

Minutes Note:
No Action

Action : No Action (Continued)

Finance Committee Meeting 10/19/2022
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File #: 22064

<https://ledyardct.legista

r.com/LegislationDetail.as

px?

ID=5725357&GUID=5B7

4E3A2-A070-4240-AE66-

3D26A65C96BD>

Version: 1

Type: General Discussion �����

Title: Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital Non

-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects

and expend ARPA Funding. �����

Action : Discussed

Minute Note:

Finance Director Matthew Bonin, Mayor Allyn, III and the Finance Committee reviewed the status and
progress of the ARPA Projects as noted below:

American Rescue Plan Act Funding

Total Allocation4,327,093.49

ARPA FundsARPA FundsARPA Funds

Request TitleDept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

DateAppropriatedExpendedRemainingStatus

Sewer Line

Extension Phase I

Ian Stammel

& Steve

Banks

Town Council

Action

04/27/221,200,000.001,200,000.00Underway

Sewer Line

Extension Phase III

Ian Stammel

& Steve Banks

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22950,000.00950,000.00Not Started

Funding for youth

mental health

clinicians

Kate SikorskiBudget

Referendum

05/17/22190,000.00190,000.00Not Started

Position is

posted

Skid Mounted

Sewer Pumps

Ian Stammel

& Steve

Banks

Town Council

Action

04/27/22175,000.007,515.50167,484.50In Progress

Ledyard Up/Down

Sawmill

Vin Godino &

Christina &

Kristen

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22125,000.00125,000.00Not Started

Road Restoration

Fund

Steve

Masalin

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22114,885.0088,546.8526,338.15In Progress

Housing Rehab

Grant - additional

funding

Juliet Hodge

(Local

Program

Town Council

Action

12/08/21100,000.00100,000.00In Progress

Town Hall HVAC

system

replacement

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

04/13/2280,000.0035,101.0044,899.00In Progress

Town Green

Upgrade Project

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

02/09/2275,000.0049,361.4225,638.58In Progress

Replace Dispatch

Stations (2) in EOC

James MannBudget

Referendum

05/17/2275,000.0060,486.9814,513.02Completed

ARPA FundsARPA FundsARPA Funds

Request TitleDept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

DateAppropriatedExpendedRemainingStatus

Playscape

Replacement at 13

Winthrop, Gales

Ferry

Scott

Johnston

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2260,000.0027,296.0032,704.00In Progress

Concrete Floor -

Pole Barn

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

12/08/2155,000.0055,000.00Underway

Erickson Park

Enhancements

Scott

Johnston

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2255,000.0055,000.00Not Started

Police Radio

Interoperability

John RichBudget

Referendum

05/17/2246,125.0046,125.00Not Started

Ledge Light Health

District - support

COVID initiatives

Matt BoninTown Council

Action

01/26/2243,270.0043,270.00- Completed

Nathan Lester

House repairs

Vin Godino &

Christina &

Kristen

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2240,000.0040,000.00Not Started

Add Sidewalks in

Gales Ferry

($15,000 for

Study to map

out sidewalk

plan)

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

LED Sign Panel,

Gales Ferry

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Underway

LED Sign Panel,

Ledyard Center

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

Sidewalk Infill in

Ledyard Center

Steve MasalinBudget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

Replace Food

Pantry Roof

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2225,000.008,700.0016,300.00Completed

Exterior Doors (TH

and Annex) w/

Electronic Locking

Systems

Steve MasalinBudget

Referendum

05/17/2223,000.0023,000.00Not Started

Electric Vehicle

charging stations

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2220,000.0020,000.00Not Started

Vinyl Re-siding of

Food Pantry

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2217,500.0017,500.00Not Started

TVCCA -

Commissary

project

Matt BoninTown Council

Action

12/08/2115,000.0015,000.00- Completed

Gales Ferry

Corridor Study

Juliet HodgeBudget

Referendum

05/17/2215,000.0015,000.00Not Started

Solar Charging

Stations

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2212,000.0012,000.00Not Started
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American Rescue Plan Act Funding

Total Allocation4,327,093.49

ARPA FundsARPA FundsARPA Funds

Request TitleDept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

DateAppropriatedExpendedRemainingStatus

Sewer Line

Extension Phase I

Ian Stammel

& Steve

Banks

Town Council

Action

04/27/221,200,000.001,200,000.00Underway

Sewer Line

Extension Phase III

Ian Stammel

& Steve Banks

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22950,000.00950,000.00Not Started

Funding for youth

mental health

clinicians

Kate SikorskiBudget

Referendum

05/17/22190,000.00190,000.00Not Started

Position is

posted

Skid Mounted

Sewer Pumps

Ian Stammel

& Steve

Banks

Town Council

Action

04/27/22175,000.007,515.50167,484.50In Progress

Ledyard Up/Down

Sawmill

Vin Godino &

Christina &

Kristen

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22125,000.00125,000.00Not Started

Road Restoration

Fund

Steve

Masalin

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22114,885.0088,546.8526,338.15In Progress

Housing Rehab

Grant - additional

funding

Juliet Hodge

(Local

Program

Town Council

Action

12/08/21100,000.00100,000.00In Progress

Town Hall HVAC

system

replacement

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

04/13/2280,000.0035,101.0044,899.00In Progress

Town Green

Upgrade Project

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

02/09/2275,000.0049,361.4225,638.58In Progress

Replace Dispatch

Stations (2) in EOC

James MannBudget

Referendum

05/17/2275,000.0060,486.9814,513.02Completed

ARPA FundsARPA FundsARPA Funds

Request TitleDept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

DateAppropriatedExpendedRemainingStatus

Playscape

Replacement at 13

Winthrop, Gales

Ferry

Scott

Johnston

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2260,000.0027,296.0032,704.00In Progress

Concrete Floor -

Pole Barn

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

12/08/2155,000.0055,000.00Underway

Erickson Park

Enhancements

Scott

Johnston

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2255,000.0055,000.00Not Started

Police Radio

Interoperability

John RichBudget

Referendum

05/17/2246,125.0046,125.00Not Started

Ledge Light Health

District - support

COVID initiatives

Matt BoninTown Council

Action

01/26/2243,270.0043,270.00- Completed

Nathan Lester

House repairs

Vin Godino &

Christina &

Kristen

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2240,000.0040,000.00Not Started

Add Sidewalks in

Gales Ferry

($15,000 for

Study to map

out sidewalk

plan)

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

LED Sign Panel,

Gales Ferry

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Underway

LED Sign Panel,

Ledyard Center

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

Sidewalk Infill in

Ledyard Center

Steve MasalinBudget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

Replace Food

Pantry Roof

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2225,000.008,700.0016,300.00Completed

Exterior Doors (TH

and Annex) w/

Electronic Locking

Systems

Steve MasalinBudget

Referendum

05/17/2223,000.0023,000.00Not Started

Electric Vehicle

charging stations

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2220,000.0020,000.00Not Started

Vinyl Re-siding of

Food Pantry

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2217,500.0017,500.00Not Started

TVCCA -

Commissary

project

Matt BoninTown Council

Action

12/08/2115,000.0015,000.00- Completed

Gales Ferry

Corridor Study

Juliet HodgeBudget

Referendum

05/17/2215,000.0015,000.00Not Started

Solar Charging

Stations

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2212,000.0012,000.00Not Started
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American Rescue Plan Act Funding

Total Allocation4,327,093.49

ARPA FundsARPA FundsARPA Funds

Request TitleDept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

DateAppropriatedExpendedRemainingStatus

Sewer Line

Extension Phase I

Ian Stammel

& Steve

Banks

Town Council

Action

04/27/221,200,000.001,200,000.00Underway

Sewer Line

Extension Phase III

Ian Stammel

& Steve Banks

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22950,000.00950,000.00Not Started

Funding for youth

mental health

clinicians

Kate SikorskiBudget

Referendum

05/17/22190,000.00190,000.00Not Started

Position is

posted

Skid Mounted

Sewer Pumps

Ian Stammel

& Steve

Banks

Town Council

Action

04/27/22175,000.007,515.50167,484.50In Progress

Ledyard Up/Down

Sawmill

Vin Godino &

Christina &

Kristen

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22125,000.00125,000.00Not Started

Road Restoration

Fund

Steve

Masalin

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22114,885.0088,546.8526,338.15In Progress

Housing Rehab

Grant - additional

funding

Juliet Hodge

(Local

Program

Town Council

Action

12/08/21100,000.00100,000.00In Progress

Town Hall HVAC

system

replacement

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

04/13/2280,000.0035,101.0044,899.00In Progress

Town Green

Upgrade Project

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

02/09/2275,000.0049,361.4225,638.58In Progress

Replace Dispatch

Stations (2) in EOC

James MannBudget

Referendum

05/17/2275,000.0060,486.9814,513.02Completed

ARPA FundsARPA FundsARPA Funds

Request TitleDept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

DateAppropriatedExpendedRemainingStatus

Playscape

Replacement at 13

Winthrop, Gales

Ferry

Scott

Johnston

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2260,000.0027,296.0032,704.00In Progress

Concrete Floor -

Pole Barn

Steve

Masalin

Town Council

Action

12/08/2155,000.0055,000.00Underway

Erickson Park

Enhancements

Scott

Johnston

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2255,000.0055,000.00Not Started

Police Radio

Interoperability

John RichBudget

Referendum

05/17/2246,125.0046,125.00Not Started

Ledge Light Health

District - support

COVID initiatives

Matt BoninTown Council

Action

01/26/2243,270.0043,270.00- Completed

Nathan Lester

House repairs

Vin Godino &

Christina &

Kristen

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2240,000.0040,000.00Not Started

Add Sidewalks in

Gales Ferry

($15,000 for

Study to map

out sidewalk

plan)

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

LED Sign Panel,

Gales Ferry

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Underway

LED Sign Panel,

Ledyard Center

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

Sidewalk Infill in

Ledyard Center

Steve MasalinBudget

Referendum

05/17/2235,000.0035,000.00Not Started

Replace Food

Pantry Roof

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2225,000.008,700.0016,300.00Completed

Exterior Doors (TH

and Annex) w/

Electronic Locking

Systems

Steve MasalinBudget

Referendum

05/17/2223,000.0023,000.00Not Started

Electric Vehicle

charging stations

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2220,000.0020,000.00Not Started

Vinyl Re-siding of

Food Pantry

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2217,500.0017,500.00Not Started

TVCCA -

Commissary

project

Matt BoninTown Council

Action

12/08/2115,000.0015,000.00- Completed

Gales Ferry

Corridor Study

Juliet HodgeBudget

Referendum

05/17/2215,000.0015,000.00Not Started

Solar Charging

Stations

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/2212,000.0012,000.00Not Started

ARPA Funds ARPA Funds ARPA Funds

Request Title Dept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

Date Appropriated Expended Remaining Status

Added ClearGov

Modules

Regina

Brulotte

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 10,500.00 10,500.00 Completed

Homeless

Hospitality Center

of New London

Matt Bonin Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 10,000.00 10,000.00 - Completed

Parks and Rec

Summer

Scholarships

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 10,000.00 2,087.50 7,912.50 In Progress

Replace Firehouse

software

Steve

Holyfield

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 8,000.00 8,000.00 In Progress

Automated Doors -

Senior Center

Steve Masalin Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 5,000.00 5,000.00 Not Started

Replace brackets

on streetlight poles

Steve Masalin Town Council

Action

04/27/22 2,520.00 2,476.84 43.16 Purchased-

Not

Installed

Install WI-FI in

Food Pantry

Regina

Brulotte

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 2,500.00 2,640.76 (140.76) In-Progress

Balance of funding

for Owl Pro

Regina

Brulotte

Town Council

Action

12/08/21 831.00 831.00 - Completed

Concrete Floor -

Pole Barn

(additional

funding)

Steve Masalin Town Council

Action

10/12/22 45,000.00 45,000.00 In-Progress

TOTALS Total

Allocated

3,746,131.00

Total

Expended

353,313.85

Balance

Available

580,962.49
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File #: 22-064 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 1.

ARPA Funds ARPA Funds ARPA Funds

Request Title Dept. Head /

Owner

Approval

Process

Date Appropriated Expended Remaining Status

Added ClearGov

Modules

Regina

Brulotte

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 10,500.00 10,500.00 Completed

Homeless

Hospitality Center

of New London

Matt Bonin Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 10,000.00 10,000.00 - Completed

Parks and Rec

Summer

Scholarships

Kristen

Chapman

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 10,000.00 2,087.50 7,912.50 In Progress

Replace Firehouse

software

Steve

Holyfield

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 8,000.00 8,000.00 In Progress

Automated Doors -

Senior Center

Steve Masalin Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 5,000.00 5,000.00 Not Started

Replace brackets

on streetlight poles

Steve Masalin Town Council

Action

04/27/22 2,520.00 2,476.84 43.16 Purchased-

Not

Installed

Install WI-FI in

Food Pantry

Regina

Brulotte

Budget

Referendum

05/17/22 2,500.00 2,640.76 (140.76) In-Progress

Balance of funding

for Owl Pro

Regina

Brulotte

Town Council

Action

12/08/21 831.00 831.00 - Completed

Concrete Floor -

Pole Barn

(additional

funding)

Steve Masalin Town Council

Action

10/12/22 45,000.00 45,000.00 In-Progress

TOTALS Total

Allocated

3,746,131.00

Total

Expended

353,313.85

Balance

Available

580,962.49

Key:
· In-Progress - Work was currently being done.

· Underway - Preparing for project (obtaining cost estimates, working to solicit bids, etc.).

· Completed - Project complete, and funds have been expended.

The Group discussed ARPA Projects that came in under budget to-date, such as the Linda C. Davis Food Pantry
Roof. The also discussed the importance to redirect the unused funds to projects that may come-in over the
estimated budget costs, and/or to redirect the unused funds to projects that were not funded such as Phase II &
III of the Ledyard Center Sewer Extension Project.

Finance Director Matthew Bonin stated of the ARPA Projects that have been completed to-date that there was
an excess of $31,000 funds that could be reappropriated.

The Group noted that the ARPA funding had to be obligated by 2024 and fully expended by 2026.

Action: Discussed

______________________________________________________________________________
Finance Committee Meeting 10/5/2022

File #: 22064 <https://ledyardct.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?

ID=5725357&GUID=5B74E3A2-A070-4240-AE66-3D26A65C96BD> Version: 1

Type: General Discussion �����

Title: Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital Non

-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects

and expend ARPA Funding. �����

Minutes Note:
Councilor Saums suggested the Committee deferred discussion regarding the ARPA Funded projects to their
September 21, 2022 meeting, noting that he would like Mayor Allyn, III to be present for their discussion.

Action : No Action (Continued)
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File #: 22-064 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 1.

________________________________________________________________________________

Finance Committee Meeting 9/21/2022

File #: 22064

<https://ledyardct.legista

r.com/LegislationDetail.as

px?

ID=5725357&GUID=5B7

4E3A2-A070-4240-AE66-

3D26A65C96BD>

Version: 1

Type: General Discussion �����

Title: Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital Non

-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects

and expend ARPA Funding. �����

Minutes Note:
Councilor Saums suggested the Committee deferred discussion regarding the ARPA Funded projects to their
September 21, 2022 meeting, noting that he would like Mayor Allyn, III to be present for their discussion.

Action : No Action (Continued)

Finance Cmt Meeting 9/7/2022

File #: 22064

<https://ledyardct.legista

r.com/LegislationDetail.as

px?

ID=5725357&GUID=5B7

4E3A2-A070-4240-AE66-

3D26A65C96BD>

Version: 1

Type: General Discussion �����

Title: Continued discussion regarding the status and possible changes to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Capital Non

-Recurring (CNR) Fund based on the American Rescue Act Funding (ARPA) and the process to approve ARPA Projects

and expend ARPA Funding. �����

Action: No Action �����

Minutes Note:
Councilor Saums suggested the Committee deferred discussion regarding the ARPA Funded projects to their September 21, 2022
meeting, noting that he would like Councilor Ingalls to participate in their discussion.

Action: No Action (Continued)
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TOWN OF LEDYARD 741 Colonel Ledyard
Highway

Ledyard, CT 06339-1511

File #: 22-093 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 2.

AGENDA REQUEST
GENERAL DISCUSSION ITEM

Subject:
Any other Old Business proper to come before the Committee.
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TOWN OF LEDYARD 741 Colonel Ledyard
Highway

Ledyard, CT 06339-1511

File #: 23-1056 Agenda Date: 1/25/2023 Agenda #: 1

AGENDA REQUEST
GENERAL DISCUSSION ITEM

Subject:
Discussion and possible action on the transfer of the Board of Education FY 21-22 operating budget audited
surplus of $448,253 to the BOE Capital Reserve Fund in accordance with the Town Council adopted
resolution that created the funding mechanism. Not factored into the aforementioned surplus is the Board of
Education Healthcare deficit for the same audit period of $861,753.

Background:

The Town Council adopted a resolution on September 28, 1988 that established a separate line item within
the Town Capital Reserve Fund for Capital Expenditures for the Board of Education. Per the resolution, all
surplus funds returned to the General Fund by the Board of Education are to be deposited in the Capital
Reserve Fund for the Board of Education. Surplus funds shall be defined as reserves accumulated by the
Board of Education according to their year-end audit statement.

Department Comment/Recommendation:

The General Fund ended Fiscal Year 21-22 with an overall operating deficit of $43,375. The deficit reduced
fund balance at year end to $4,971,207. The biggest factor leading to the deficit was the under budgeting of
Board of Education Healthcare. Healthcare for active employees was under budgeted by approximately
$350,000 and healthcare for retirees ($512,000) was erroneously omitted entirely from the budget. In
addition to the healthcare deficit, several Board of Education revenue sources fell well short of budget.
Impact Aid fell short of budget by almost $113,000 and tuition revenues fell short of budgeted projections by
almost $257,000. It should be noted that Vo-Ag Stabilization Funding exceeded the budgetary estimate by
$302,00 but that excess was already transferred out of the general fund by previous Town Council action.
The overall net impact to the general fund for all these items is a $783,500 reduction to fund balance.
Factoring in the transfer out of the prior year Board of Education surplus of $566,000 and the reduction to
fund balance increases to $1,349,500. Budgetary savings and revenues in excess of budgetary estimates in the
Town portion of the budget resulted in a positive impact to fund balance of $1,305,500. The net of the
aforementioned fund balance impacts make up the overall fiscal year 21-22 deficit of $44,000.

The Town’s fund balance policy calls for a minimum undesignated fund balance that equates to 7% of
current year general fund expenditures with an ultimate goal of 10%. As of June 30, 2022, the undesignated
fund balance was 6% of current year general fund expenditures. Transferring non-budgeted funds out of the
general fund will only further deplete undesignated fund balance. Fund balance and compliance with the
Town’s fund balance policy is one of the areas of focus for the rating agencies. Falling below this threshold
further could have a negative impact on the Town’s bond rating.
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File #: 23-1056 Agenda Date: 1/25/2023 Agenda #: 1

The current resolution for funding the Capital Reserve Fund for the Board of Education will always have a
negative impact on general fund undesignated fund balance as it’s transferring funds to the Capital Fund that
have not been factored into the budget. A potential alternative to this funding method would be budgeting
for a capital contribution to the capital fund, similar to how the town funds its capital.

Budget Actual

Variance - 

Positive 

(Negative)

Revenues

Impact Aid 1,500,000             1,387,082             (112,918)               

Vo Ag Tuition 772,973                 717,110                 (55,863)                  

Special Education Tuition 179,072                 82,089                   (96,983)                  

Non-Resident Tuition 138,590                 34,648                   (103,942)               

Expenditures

Education 33,671,969           33,223,716           448,253                 

Healthcare - Board of Education 4,254,907             5,116,660             (861,753)               

Overall fund balance impact before transfer of prior year surplus (783,206)               

Prior year surplus transfer to capital account (566,000)               

Total combined fund balance impact (1,349,206)            
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AGENDA REQUEST 

GENERAL DISCUSSION ITEM 

 
Subject: 

Discussion and possible action on the transfer of the Board of Education FY 21-22 

operating budget audited surplus of $448,253 to the BOE Capital Reserve Fund in 

accordance with the Town Council adopted resolution that created the funding 

mechanism. Not factored into the aforementioned surplus is the Board of Education 

Healthcare deficit for the same audit period of $861,753. 

 

Background: 
The Town Council adopted a resolution on September 28, 1988 that established a 

separate line item within the Town Capital Reserve Fund for Capital Expenditures for 

the Board of Education. Per the resolution, all surplus funds returned to the General 

Fund by the Board of Education are to be deposited in the Capital Reserve Fund for 

the Board of Education. Surplus funds shall be defined as reserves accumulated by 

the Board of Education according to their year-end audit statement. 

 
Department Comment/Recommendation 

The general fund ended fiscal year 21-22 with an overall operating deficit of $43,375. 

The deficit reduced fund balance at year end to $4,971,207. The biggest factor 

leading to the deficit was the under budgeting of Board of Education Healthcare. 
Healthcare for active employees was under budgeted by approximately $350,000 

and healthcare for retirees ($512,000) was erroneously omitted entirely from the 

budget. In addition to the healthcare deficit, several Board of Education revenue 

sources fell well short of budget.  Impact Aid fell short of budget by almost $113,000 

and tuition revenues fell short of budgeted projections by almost $257,000.  It should 

be noted that Vo-Ag Stabilization Funding exceeded the budgetary estimate by 

$302,00 but that excess was already transferred out of the general fund by previous 

Town Council action.  The overall net impact to the general fund for all these items is 

a $783,500 reduction to fund balance.  Factoring in the transfer out of the prior year 

Board of Education surplus of $566,000 and the reduction to fund balance increases 

to $1,349,500. Budgetary savings and revenues in excess of budgetary estimates in 

the Town portion of the budget resulted in a positive impact to fund balance of 

$1,305,500.  The net of the aforementioned fund balance impacts make up the overall 

fiscal year 21-22 deficit of $44,000. 

 

The Town’s fund balance policy calls for a minimum undesignated fund balance that 

equates to 7% of current year general fund expenditures with an ultimate goal of 10%.  

As of June 30, 2022, the undesignated fund balance was 6% of current year general fund 
expenditures.  Transferring non-budgeted funds out of the general fund will only further 

deplete undesignated fund balance.  Fund balance and compliance with the Town’s fund 

balance policy is one of the areas of focus for the rating agencies.  Falling below this 

threshold further could have a negative impact on the Town’s bond rating. 
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The current resolution for funding the Capital Reserve Fund for the Board of Education 

will always have a negative impact on general fund undesignated fund balance as it’s 

transferring funds to the Capital Fund that have not been factored into the budget.  A 

potential alternative to this funding method would be budgeting for a capital contribution 

to the capital fund, similar to how the town funds its capital. 

 

 

 

Budget Actual

Variance - 

Positive 

(Negative)

Revenues

Impact Aid 1,500,000             1,387,082             (112,918)               

Vo Ag Tuition 772,973                 717,110                 (55,863)                  

Special Education Tuition 179,072                 82,089                   (96,983)                  

Non-Resident Tuition 138,590                 34,648                   (103,942)               

Expenditures

Education 33,671,969           33,223,716           448,253                 

Healthcare - Board of Education 4,254,907             5,116,660             (861,753)               

Overall fund balance impact before transfer of prior year surplus (783,206)               

Prior year surplus transfer to capital account (566,000)               

Total combined fund balance impact (1,349,206)            
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TOWN OF LEDYARD 741 Colonel Ledyard
Highway

Ledyard, CT 06339-1511

File #: 22-877 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 2.

RESOLUITON

Motion/Request:
MOTION to adopt proposed revisions to the “Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits”
as contained in the draft dated January 9, 2023.

Background:

Updates to the “Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits” have been proposed which
include the following: (See attached Draft Resolution)

· Increase Department Heads from 16 to 17

· Update Titles of Positions as follows:
ü Assistant Director of Finance/Treasurer
ü Librarian Library Director
ü Town Treasurer
ü Police Lieutenant Captain **

· Insurance Section - Updated paragraph (c) regarding employee’s premium.

Effective with the adoption of this Resolution, each employee shall be responsible for the percentage of
the applicable conventional premium rate determined by the insurance carrier or administrator for all
health and dental benefits as outlined in Paragraph d below.

· Pension Section - Updated language for employee enrollment in Defined Contribution Plan and town match:

Effective July 1, 2022 employees eligible for the Defined Contribution Plan will be automatically enrolled
at date of hire at a contribution rate of ten percent (10%) of base salary.  The Town will match the
employee’s contribution effective six months after the date of hire

· New Section “Wages and Compensation” to address salary increases and cell phone reimbursement:

WAGES AND COMPENSATION

Employees shall be paid at the rate as designated by the Mayor or contractually negotiated. Increases in
wages shall be effective on the first day of July and may not be less than the highest gross wage increase
(GWI)percentage of the highest union contracted increase for that fiscal year.

Employees required to be available via cell phone outside of regular work hours who are not issued a
Town cell phone, shall receive a monthly stipend for usage of their personal cell phone at a rate
equivalent to the highest stipend paid to any of the Town’s bargaining units.
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File #: 22-877 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 2.

With the implementation of this Resolution, retroactive reimbursement for wages and personal cell
phones shall be paid to employees who were on staff as of July 1, 2022.

· Longevity - Updated rates

a. Ten years, but less than fifteen years $350.00
b. Fifteen years, but less than twenty years $450.00
c. Twenty or more years $550.00

Department Comment/Recommendation:
(type text here)

Mayor Comment/Recommendation:
(type text here)

Body:
(type text here)

Meeting Action Detail:

Finance Committee Meeting  1/04/2023

File #: 22877 Version:  1

Type: Resolution

Title: MOTION to adopt proposed revisions to the “Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head
Benefits” as contained in the draft dated December 6, 2022.

Mover: Ingalls Seconder:  Ryann

Action: Withdrawn

Minute Note:
Moved by Councilor Ingalls, seconded by Councilor Ryan
Discussion: Mayor Allyn, III, explained that proposed revisions to the “Resolution Establishing
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File #: 22-877 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 2.

Discussion: Mayor Allyn, III, explained that proposed revisions to the “Resolution Establishing
Administrator/Department Head Benefits” were drafted to update the language to include the addition of a new “
Wages and Compensation” Section and other editorials as noted below.

“WAGES AND COMPENSATION

Employees shall be paid at the rate as designated by the Mayor or contractually negotiated. Increases in
wages shall be effective on the first day of July and may not be less than the percentage of the highest union
contracted increase for that fiscal year.

Employees required to be available via cell phone outside of regular work hours who are not issued a
Town cell phone, shall receive a monthly stipend for usage of their personal cell phone at a rate
equivalent to the highest stipend paid to any of the Town’s bargaining units.

With the implementation of this Resolutions, retroactive reimbursement for personal cell phone use shall
be paid to employees who were on-staff during the period beginning with the Covid 19 pandemic of
March, 2020; as outlined in the above paragraph.”

Mayor Allyn continued to explain that the highest union contracted increase for this fiscal year was 3%. He presented
a spreadsheet that was prepared by Administrator of Human Resources Don Steinhoff which showed the difference
in the hourly rate of the Department Heads covered under this Resolution, noting the difference in the hourly rate
ranged from 0.07 to 0.29 per hour; for a total cost of $4,813.02 for Fiscal Year 2022/2023.

Mayor Allyn went on to note the other change in the Resolution was to provide a stipend to the Department Heads
who use of their personal cell phones to conduct town business. He stated it was more cost effective for the town to
provide a stipend to these Department Heads for using their personal cell phones for town business than it would be
for the town to purchase additional cell phones and additional monthly contracts for phone. He stated the cost of the
cell phone stipend was $4,320 per year. He stated the wage adjustment and cell phone stipends would be retroactive
to July 1, 2022.

Councilor Saums addressed the language in the new Wage and Compensation Section as follows: “Employees
shall be paid at the rate as designated by the Mayor or contractually negotiated. Increases in wages shall be
effective on the first day of July and may not be less than the percentage of the highest union contracted increase
for that fiscal year.” He stated the town has been very careful with raises for Department Heads; noting that the
Department Heads have not received many raises; and the raises they received have not been much. Therefore, he
stated that he was in-favor with keeping the Department Head’s wage increases at par or upping them a little based
on the past cycle. However, he stated if this clause was included in the Resolution; and for some reason one union
asked for a 5% wage increase, and the town said “No”; but the union then won their case through Arbitration; that
the fourteen Department Heads covered by the Resolution would also receive a 5% wage increase. Therefore, he
stated he had concerns, because the town did not have total control over what they give their union employees. He
stated he did not have a solution this evening with regard to what they could replace this language with.

Mayor Allyn, III, stated historically the town has been aggressive with keeping the wage increases for bargaining
units low. Councilor Saums agreed with Mayor Allyn’s comment, and he added that the town has actually fallen
behind in some areas, noting in some cases Ledyard’s wages were lower than other towns. Mayor Allyn stated
keeping wages lower than other towns has been an issue for Ledyard with respect to trying to keep staff and in
trying to fill vacancies for certain roles/positions. He stated that this has become a problem for the Town.

Councilor Saums stated in certain instances some union employees did receive a 5% wage increase because they
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File #: 22-877 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 2.

Councilor Saums stated in certain instances some union employees did receive a 5% wage increase because they
were correcting past inequalities. He stated that he believed he believed Ledyard would be negotiating differently,
noting that employees read our labor contracts/agreements and the contracts/agreements of neighboring
communities He concluded by expressing concern that with the proposed wage language, as written, in the “
Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits” that they could end up giving some big raises
unintentionally. He questioned whether they could write the wage language in a way that would prevent them from
unintentionally giving big raises to Department Heads.

Councilor Ryan suggested basing the Department Head wage increases on an average of wage increases of the
bargaining units.

The Finance Committee agreed to withdrawn the motion to obtain additional information.

Action: Withdrawn

__________________________________________________________________________

Administration Committee Meeting  12/14/2022

File #: 22877 Version:  1

Type: Resolution

Title: MOTION to adopt proposed revisions to the “Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head
Benefits” as contained in the draft dated December 6, 2022.

Mover: Irwin Seconder: McGrattan

Action: Recommend to Approve

Minute Note:
Moved by Councilor Irwin, seconded by Councilor McGrattan
Discussion: Councilor Ingalls noted that she was pleased to see the language to encourage staff to use their
vacation days, noting that taking time off away from their job was better for peoples’ well-being.

VOTE: 3 - 0 Approved and so declared

Action: Recommend to Approve
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Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits
Page 1 of 6

Submitted to T. Clerk’s Office on: 1/15/2016/rm

Draft 12/6/2022 1/9/2023

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING
ADMINISTRATOR/DEPARTMENT HEAD BENEFITS

WHEREAS, The Town Council recognizes the need to compensate its
Administrators/Department Heads in a fair and equitable manner;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Town Council reaffirms the practices,
policies, plans and benefits set forth in the Town of Ledyard Employee Handbook which
applies to all Employees, including Administrators/Department Heads and provides further that
if the terms of this Resolution differ from the terms of the Town of Ledyard Employee
Handbook, the provisions and terms of this Resolution shall apply exclusively.

For the purpose of this Resolution, the Town Council Chairperson shall be the immediate
supervisor of the Administrative Assistant to the Town Council; the Chairperson of the Town
Council Finance Committee shall be the immediate supervisor for the Town Treasurer; the
Director of Finance shall be the immediate supervisor for the Assistant Director of Finance;
the Mayor shall be the immediate supervisor for all other Administrators/Department Heads.

All benefits are computed based on a 40 hour work week. Benefits for employees working
less than 40 hours will be pro-rated based on a 40 hour work week.

As of the date of this revision there are 1617 non-union positions covered by the
Administrator /Department Head Resolution:
1. Town Clerk
2. Director of Finance
3. Assistant Director of Finance/Treasurer
4. Director of Administrative Services/Mayoral Assistant
5. Director of Human Resources
6. Administrator of Emergency Services
7. Director of Civil Preparedness and Emergency Management
8. Librarian Library Director
9. Public Health Nursing Administrative Supervisor
10. Director of Parks and Recreation
11. Public Works Director/Town Engineer
12. Director of Planning and Development
13. Administrative Assistant to the Town Council
14. Town Treasurer
15. WPCA Wastewater Operations Supervisor
16. Mayor *
17. Chief of Police **
18. Police Lieutenant Captain **

* Elected position. Applicable sections of this Resolution are limited to insurance, pension,
and workers compensation.

** Appointed/Contracted Position. Applicable sections of this Resolution are limited to those
not specifically covered in the contract.

Note: At times some of the positions listed above may be unfilled, combined, or contracted.
Appropriate adjustments to benefits will be made in these circumstances.

LEAVES AND ABSENCES

All leaves and absences are based on a 40 hour work week. Leave and absences for
employees working less than 40 hours will be pro-rated based on a 40 hour work week.

VACATION

See Personnel Handbook
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Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits
Page 2 of 6

Submitted to T. Clerk’s Office on: 1/15/2016/rm

SPECIAL LEAVE

Special Holiday leave shall be granted on the days, or portions thereof, listed below:

a. December 24, whenever it occurs on a Monday;
b. December 24, after having worked one-half of their normal daily work schedule,

whenever it occurs on a Tuesday, Wednesday, or Thursday;
c. December 26, whenever it occurs on a Friday;
d. December 31, whenever it occurs on a Monday;
e. December 31, after having worked one-half of their normal daily work schedule,

whenever it occurs on a Tuesday, Wednesday, or Thursday;
f. January 2, whenever it occurs on a Friday.

The above Holiday leave may be adjusted based on Town Hall schedules; e.g. if union
contracts are negotiated to allow the Town Hall to be open on any of these days
compensatory time-off may be granted.

The Administrators/Department Heads whose duties and responsibilities require them to work
during periods of special leave shall be eligible for equivalent amounts of compensatory time
off.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

All requests for a Leave of Absence Without Pay must be made in writing and approved in
advance by the Mayor. If the leave is for more than five (5) days in any one month, the
Administrator/Department Head shall not earn sick or vacation leave for that month. The
Administrator/Department Head shall not be paid for any holiday or special leave day which
may occur during the Leave of Absence Without Pay. In order to qualify to be paid for a holiday
or a special leave day, an Administrator/Department Head who has been on a Leave of Absence
Without Pay must have worked the last work day directly preceding said holiday or special
leave day.

SICK LEAVE TERMINATION

Upon termination of service from the Town of Ledyard, all unused sick leave up to a maximum
of fifty (50) days will be paid to the Administrator/Department Head in a lump sum payment,
provided the individual has been an Employee of the Town for a minimum of ten (10) years,
and said Administrator/Department Head is not terminated for cause.

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014 with a minimum of ten (10) consecutive years of
service will upon termination be paid for a maximum of twenty (20) days.

PERSONAL LEAVE

Each Administrator/Department Head shall be entitled to three (3) personal leave days annually
without loss of pay, provided such Administrator/Department Head notifies the Supervisor at
least twenty-four (24) hours in advance, except in the case of a personal emergency. Personal
days may be used in conjunction with a holiday or vacation provided a two (2) week written
notice is supplied to the Supervisor and provided approval is granted by the Supervisor. During
an Employee’s first fiscal year, he or she shall be eligible for one (1) personal day for every four
(4) months worked.

COMPENSATORY TIME

Administrator/Department Heads may, with the advanced approval of the Supervisor or Mayor,
be provided compensation in the form of compensatory time at the rate of one hour of
compensatory time for each hour worked in excess of the maximum work week of each
employee. Salaried exempt employees shall be eligible for compensatory time off for work
performed which is beyond the normal scope of duties. All compensatory time must be taken
within three months, unless otherwise approved by immediate supervisor. Compensatory time
which is not taken within three months of accrual will be forfeited.
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INSURANCE

The Town shall continue to provide eligible Employees and their dependents substantially
similar group health and dental insurance coverage and benefits as exist in the Town’s
conventional insurance plan. The Town reserves the right to change or provide alternate
insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, or benefit levels or to self-insure as it
deems appropriate for any form or portion of insurance coverage, so long as the new coverage
and benefits are substantially similar to the conventional insurance. The Town will not be
responsible for changes unilaterally imposed by an insurance provider so long as the Town
uses its best efforts to minimize changes by incumbent insurance providers from one plan year
to another.

a. Each Employee shall be responsible for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the dental
plan for spouse or family coverage, and the applicable Employee contribution rate,
as set forth below, for the Employee’s dental coverage.

b. The Town will purchase for each Employee at no cost to Employee, life insurance
which in the event of death of the Employee while employed by the Town, will
provide a benefit of $50,000 or a sum equivalent to the Employee’s base salary,
whichever is less.

c. Effective with the adoption of this Resolution, each Employee shall be responsible
for ten percent (10%) of the applicable conventional premium rate (COBRA rate)
determined by the insurance carrier or administrator for all health and dental
insurance benefits, excluding life insurance. An Employee with individual coverage
shall have deducted from his/her monthly wages ten percent (10%) of the monthly
conventional premium rate (COBRA rate) for individual coverage. An Employee
and spouse or an Employee and eligible dependent, (two person coverage
classification), shall have deducted from his/her monthly wages ten percent (10%)
of the monthly conventional premium rate (COBRA rate) for such two person
coverage. An Employee with family coverage shall have deducted from his/her
monthly wages ten percent (10%) of the monthly conventional premium rate
(COBRA rate) for family coverage.

c. Effective with the adoption of this Resolution, each employee shall be responsible
for the percentage of the applicable conventional premium rate determined by the
insurance carrier or administrator for all health and dental benefits as outlined in
Paragraph d below.

d. Effective July 1, 2010 and each July 1 following, the co-insurance and co-pay
contributions shall be the same as the lowest negotiated Town Hall labor contracts
effective on that date.

e. Employees may elect to waive all group insurance benefits, and in lieu thereof, be
remunerated in the amount of twenty-five percent (25%) of the actual premium saved.

f. Employees are required to notify Human Resources of significant changes to
circumstances affecting insurance, including but not limited to births, death of
dependents, marriage, adoptions, divorce, or change in eligibility of dependents.

PENSION

Employees hired prior to July 1, 2009 may be eligible to participate in the town’s Defined
Benefit Pension Plan. Details of this plan are provided in the Defined Benefit Summary Plan
Description which will be provided to all eligible employees.

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2009 may be eligible to participate in the town's Defined
Contribution Pension Plan. Details of this plan are provided in the Defined Contribution
Summary Plan Description which will be provided to all eligible employees.

Effective July 1, 2014 employees eligible for the Defined Contribution Plan will be auto-

enrolled at an employee contribution rate of 3% of base salary effective the first day of

the first full quarter of the fiscal year after the hire date. Unless the employee directs the
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town otherwise, the employee minimum contribution rate will increase by 1% on July 1st

each year until an employee contribution rate of 15% is achieved. Employees have the

right to opt-out of or modify the auto-enrollment by notifying Human Resources within

90 days after the actions are effective. The Town will match the employee’s contributions up

to a rate equal to the highest rate negotiated by Town Hall labor contracts currently in effect

on July 1st of each fiscal year.

Effective July 1, 2022 employees eligible for the Defined Contribution Plan will be
automatically enrolled at date of hire at a contribution rate of ten percent (10%) of base
salary. The Town will match the employee’s contribution effective six months after the date
of hire.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

If an Employee is injured in the performance of his or her duties or is otherwise qualified for
benefits under the Workers’ Compensation Act, the net after tax difference between his or her
regular base pay and Workers’ Compensation shall be paid by the Employer for a period not
to exceed six (6) months or until maximum recovery is attained (whichever is first.)

Until a determination is made as to the eligibility for Workers’ Compensation payments,
absences shall be charged, at the Employee’s option, to accumulated sick leave and/or vacation
time, provided eligibility requirements are met. The Employee’s time will be credited when
compensation becomes effective.

Notwithstanding the above, if the Town, in its sole discretion, advances pay before an
eligibility determination is made, and the Employee is thereafter found ineligible or the
Employee’s eligibility is terminated for any reason, the deficiency shall be charged at the
Employee’s option to accumulated sick leave and/or accumulated vacation leave. However, if
an Employee has not accumulated sufficient sick and/or annual leave to cover the period of
absence, the Employee shall be considered on leave with pay and shall be required to repay the
Town for any salary advanced while on leave with pay in the following manner:

a. Sick Leave
b. Vacation
c. Personal Leave
d. Incentives
e. Wages
f. Welfare Benefits

WAGES AND COMPENSATION

Employees shall be paid at the rate as designated by the Mayor or contractually negotiated.
Increases in wages shall be effective on the first day of July and may not be less than the
highest gross wage increase (GWI) percentage of the highest union contracted increase for
that fiscal year.

Employees required to be available via cell phone outside of regular work hours who
are not issued a Town cell phone, shall receive a monthly stipend for usage of their
personal cell phone at a rate equivalent to the highest stipend paid to any of the Town’s
bargaining units.

With the implementation of this Resolution, retroactive reimbursement for wages and
personal cell phones shall be paid to employees who were on staff as of July 1, 2022.

EDUCATION AND TRAINING

The Administrator/Department Head shall be reimbursed for travel expenses, meals, lodging,
registration fees and other appropriate expenses as may be required when attending
professional meetings, training and/or conducting Town business, provided prior approval to
attend such meeting and incur such expenses is obtained from the immediate supervisor.

Any Administrator/Department Head who successfully completes an education or vocational
course approved, in advance, by the immediate supervisor shall be reimbursed the cost of such
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courses up to a maximum of fifty percent (50%) not to exceed One Thousand Dollars ($1,000)
per year. Courses eligible for reimbursement must be at an accredited college or university and
directly relate to the Administrator/Department Head’s professional development. Employees
who receive tuition reimbursement shall remain in the employment of the Town for one year
following completion of the course or shall be required to reimburse the tuition.

LONGEVITY

In return for good and faithful service to the Town, each Administrator/Department Head shall
receive the following longevity payments:

a. Ten years, but less than fifteen years $250.00 $350.00
b. Fifteen years, but less than twenty years $350.00 $450.00
c. Twenty or more years $450.00 $550.00

Payment shall be paid in one lump sum annually on the pay date nearest the
Administrator/Department Head’s anniversary date of employment.

Employees hired after July 1, 2014 shall not be eligible for Longevity payments.

Adopted by the Ledyard Town Council on: __________________.

_______________________
Kevin J. Dombrowski, Chairman

*************************************************************************(********************
Revisions: March 10, 1989; July 13, 1998; September 26, 1990; January 27, 1993; October 8, 2003; May 28, 2014;
January 13, 2016.

History:

2022: Updated the titles of the following positions:

Librarian to Library Director; Assistant Finance Director to include Treasurer; Police Lieutenant
to Police Capitan.

Insurance Section paragraph (c): Removed/replaced the following language
Effective with the adoption of this Resolution, each Employee shall be responsible for ten percent
(10%) of the applicable conventional premium rate (COBRA rate) determined by the insurance carrier
or administrator for all health and dental insurance benefits, excluding life insurance. An Employee
with individual coverage shall have deducted from his/her monthly wages ten percent (10%) of the
monthly conventional premium rate (COBRA rate) for individual coverage. An Employee and spouse
or an Employee and eligible dependent, (two person coverage classification), shall have deducted from
his/her monthly wages ten percent (10%) of the monthly conventional premium rate (COBRA rate) for
such two person coverage. An Employee with family coverage shall have deducted from his/her
monthly wages ten percent (10%) of the monthly conventional premium rate (COBRA rate) for family
coverage.

(New Language): Effective with the adoption of this Resolution, each employee shall be
responsible for the percentage of the applicable conventional premium rate determined by the
insurance carrier or administrator for all health and dental benefits as outlined in Paragraph d
below.

Pension Section: Removed/replaced the following language:

Effective July 1, 2014 employees eligible for the Defined Contribution Plan will be auto-enrolled at an
employee contribution rate of 3% of base salary effective the first day of the first full quarter of the
fiscal year after the hire date. Unless the employee directs the town otherwise, the employee minimum
contribution rate will increase by 1% on July 1st each year until an employee contribution rate of 15%
is achieved. Employees have the right to opt-out of or modify the auto-enrollment by notifying Human
Resources within 90 days after the actions are effective. The Town will match the employee’s
contributions up to a rate equal to the highest rate negotiated by Town Hall labor contracts currently
in effect on July 1st of each fiscal year.

245



Resolution Establishing Administrator/Department Head Benefits
Page 6 of 6

Submitted to T. Clerk’s Office on: 1/15/2016/rm

Effective July 1, 2022 employees eligible for the Defined Contribution Plan will be automatically
enrolled at date of hire at a contribution rate of ten percent (10%) of base salary. The Town will
match the employee’s contribution effective six months after the date of hire.

Added New Section : “Wages and Compensation”.

Longevity Section: Updated longevity payments as follows:

a. Ten years, but less than fifteen years $250.00 $350.00
b. Fifteen years, but less than twenty years $350.00 $450.00
c. Twenty or more years $450.00 $550.00
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ADJUSTMENT TO DEPARTMEN HEADS SALARY

Emp # Job Pay Effective Date Hours Rate FY23

with 2.5%

increase

Proposed

NEW FY23

3%

FY23

Hourly Diff

FY23

Additional

Cost

Rate FY22 Period Pay Annual Pay Last Name First Name Grade NEW Cell

Stipend

819 1771 100 07/01/2022 80.00 40.76 40.96 0.20 422.45 39.77 3,260.80 84,780.80 STAMMEL IAN TRFN Cell

941 1740 100 07/01/2022 80.00 37.94 38.12 0.18 375.02 37.01 3,035.20 78,915.20 JOHNSON SCOTT P&RD Cell

1032 1711 100 07/01/2022 60.00 28.23 28.37 0.14 215.28 27.54 1,693.69 44,036.00 CHAPMAN KRISTEN EXEC Cell

1057 1720 100 07/01/2022 80.00 44.25 44.47 0.22 448.87 43.17 3,540.23 92,046.00 HODGE JULIET DPLN

1079 1715 100 07/01/2022 80.00 50.44 50.51 0.07 136.98 49.04 4,035.50 104,923.00 BONIN MATTHEW DFIN Cell

1086 1730 100 07/01/2022 80.00 37.45 37.63 0.18 384.08 36.54 2,996.00 77,896.00 SMITH JENNIFER LIBD Cell

5095 1750 100 07/01/2022 80.00 60.19 60.48 0.29 606.53 58.72 4,815.20 125,195.20 MASALIN STEVEN PWTE

5257 1745 100 07/01/2022 80.00 45.45 45.68 0.22 461.10 44.35 3,636.38 94,546.00 GOETCHIUS KAREN PHAS Cell

5284 1760 100 07/01/2022 80.00 31.66 31.82 0.16 328.08 30.89 2,532.80 65,852.80 MAHER ROXANNE TCAD Cell

5521 1755 100 07/01/2022 80.00 42.76 42.97 0.21 440.13 41.72 3,420.80 88,940.80 BANKS STEPHEN SOSP

6112 1765 100 07/01/2022 80.00 30.25 30.39 0.15 307.37 29.51 2,419.73 62,913.00 RILEY PATRICIA TCLK Cell

6169 1700 100 07/01/2022 25.00 31.37 31.52 0.15 100.05 30.60 784.25 20,390.50 HOLYFIELD STEPHEN ADES

6203 1726 100 07/01/2022 80.00 57.89 58.17 0.28 587.08 56.48 4,630.96 120,405.00 STEINHOFF DONALD HRAD Cell

734 1005 100 07/01/2022 80.00 63.03 63.33 0.30 633.78 61.49 5,042.40 131,102.40 RICH JOHN CHIE

5441 1006 100 07/01/2022 80.00 *51.87 0.00 0.00 45.67 4,149.60 107,889.60 CREUTZ KENNETH CAPT

4,813.02 4,320.00

TOTAL FY23 Added Cost 9,133.02

838 1735 100 07/01/2022 80.00 45.67 45.67 3,653.85 95,000.00 ALLYN FREDERIC MAYR

CONFIDENTIAL - PREPARED FOR TOWN COUNCIL January 4, 2023 247



TOWN OF LEDYARD 741 Colonel Ledyard
Highway

Ledyard, CT 06339-1511

File #: 22-279 Agenda Date: 1/18/2023 Agenda #: 3.
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TOWN OF LEDYARD Printed on 1/12/2023Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™248

http://www.legistar.com/

	~ AGENDA ~
	 Legislative Item
	Town of Ledyard 2022 Audit Presentation.pdf
	Annual Audit FYE-2022-06-30-Management Advisory Letter.pdf
	revised Signed Final Report and Financial Statements.-fye-2022-06-30.pdf
	Signed Federal Single Audit Report-FYE-2022-06-30-REVISED.pdf
	Signed Governance Communication-FYE-2022-06-30.pdf
	Signed State Single Audit Report.-FYE-2022-06-30pdf.pdf
	Annual Audit FYE-2022-06-30-Management Advisory Letter.pdf
	 Legislative Item
	FIN-MIN-2023-01-04.pdf
	 Legislative Item
	REVENUE REPORT - YEAR TO DATE VS ACTURAL2022-12-30.pdf
	EXPENDITURE REPORT - YEAR TO DATE VS ACTURAL-2022-12-30.pdf
	1. Legislative Item
	2. Legislative Item
	1 Legislative Item
	Discussion Item- School Surplus.docx
	2. Legislative Item
	2022 REVISIONS - RES DEPT HEAD ADMINSTRATORS BENEFITS-2023-01-09.pdf
	TADP Revision for new Resolution JAN2023.pdf
	3. Legislative Item

